ZIONS BANCORPORATION /UT/ Form 424B5 April 24, 2008

#### SUBJECT TO COMPLETION, DATED APRIL 24, 2008

## PRELIMINARY PROSPECTUS SUPPLEMENT

(To Prospectus Dated March 31, 2006)

The information in this prospectus supplement and the accompanying base prospectus is not complete and may be changed without notice. This prospectus supplement and the accompanying base prospectus are not an offer to sell these securities and we are not soliciting offers to buy these securities in any state where the offer or sale is not permitted.

180,000 Units

#### ZIONS BANCORPORATION

Zions Bancorporation Employee Stock Option Appreciation Rights Securities, Series 2008

We are offering 180,000 units of our Zions Bancorporation Employee Stock Option Appreciation Rights Securities, Series 2008 (the "ESOARS<sup>TM</sup>," and each unit thereof, an "ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> Unit"). ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> are securities that entitle holder receive specified payments from us upon the exercise, if any, from time to time of stock options comprising a reference pool of stock options that we have granted to our employees. We call our stock options that comprise this

reference pool our "reference options." The ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> represent our payment obligation but do not represent any ownership interest in us or in any of the reference options.

We are offering the ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> in part to provide a market basis that may be used to help us estimate the fair value of our reference options and determine our compensation expense with respect to the issuance of our reference options.

We will make periodic payments upon the exercise, if any, of reference options to the extent payments are then payable thereunder (as described in this prospectus supplement) on or before the 15th day of the month (or, if any such day is not a business day, then on the next business day) following the end of each calendar quarter. We expect that such periodic payments, if any, will commence on or about July 15, 2009. Each ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> Unit will entitle the holder thereof to receive, over the term of the reference options, the "net realized value" (as more particularly described herein) realized by employee optionees upon the exercise, if any, of reference options divided by the number of shares of our common stock underlying reference options that vest. Payments to holders may be made, in our sole discretion, in cash, shares of our common stock or some combination of cash and shares of our common stock, subject to certain limits described herein.

The price to the public and the allocation of our ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> will be determined by an auction process through the www.auctions.zionsdirect.com electronic bid submission system ("www.auctions.zionsdirect.com"). The auction will open at 4:30 p.m., E.D.T., on April 24, 2008 and will close at 12:00 p.m. E.D.T., on April 25, 2008, unless extended as described in the section entitled "The Auction Process" beginning on page S-15 of this prospectus supplement. The minimum number of ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> Units for a bid in the auction will be one. We will not issue fractional ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> Units.

The timing and method for submitting bids and a description of this auction process are described in the section entitled "The Auction Process" beginning on page S-15 of this prospectus supplement. In general, once a bidder has submitted and confirmed a bid, the bid will be binding and may not thereafter be rescinded or revoked. As part of this auction process, we are attempting to assess the market demand for our ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> and to set the price to the public of this offering to meet that demand. Investors should not expect to be able to sell their ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> for a profit after the conclusion of this offering and the allocation of our ESOARS<sup>TM</sup>.

We will offer the ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> directly to investors. Zions Direct, Inc., the auction agent for this offering, is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Zions First National Bank, which is the issuing and paying agent with respect to the ESOARS<sup>TM</sup>. Zions First National Bank, in turn, is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Zions Bancorporation.

We expect to deliver the ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> through the facilities of The Depository Trust Company in book-entry form on or about April 30, 2008.

Investing in our ESOARS™ involves risk. See "Risk Factors" beginning on page S-7 of this prospectus supplement.

We will not list the ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> on any securities exchange. Currently there is no public market for the ESOARS<sup>TM</sup>. We cannot assure you that an active market for the ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> will develop.

ZIONS DIRECT, INC.

Auction Agent

Neither the Securities and Exchange Commission nor any state securities commission has approved or disapproved of these securities or determined if this prospectus supplement or the accompanying base prospectus is truthful or complete. Any representation to the contrary is a criminal offense.

\_\_\_\_\_

The date of this prospectus supplement is , 2008.

# TABLE OF CONTENTS

# Prospectus Supplement

	Page
About This Prospectus Supplement	<u>iii</u>
Where You Can Find More Information	<u>iv</u>
Disclosure Regarding Forward-Looking Statements	<u>iv</u>
Summary	<u>S-1</u>
Risk Factors	<u>S-7</u>
Use of Proceeds	<u>S-11</u>
Description of Our ESOARS <sup>TM</sup>	<u>S-11</u>
The Auction Process	<u>S-15</u>
Zions Bancorporation 2005 Stock Option And Incentive Plan	<u>S-21</u>
Description of Reference Options	<u>S-25</u>
Historical Stock Option Exercise Data	<u>S-26</u>
Valuation of Recent Stock Option Grants	<u>S-44</u>
Material United States Federal Income Tax Consequences	<u>S-47</u>
Certain ERISA Considerations	<u>S-51</u>
Legal Investment Considerations	<u>S-51</u>
Legal Ownership and Book-Entry Issuance	<u>S-52</u>
Legal Matters	<u>S-53</u>
Experts	<u>S-53</u>
ANNEX A - Form of	<u>A-</u> .
Global Certificate	
ANNEX B - Zions	<u>B-</u>
Bancorporation 2005	
Stock Option and	
Incentive Plan	
ANNEX C – Standard	
Stock Option Award	<u>C-</u>
Agreement	
i	

## TABLE OF CONTENTS

Base Prospectus

	Page
About This	1
Prospectus	_
Where You Can Find More	<u>1</u>
Information	
Disclosure Regarding Forward-Looking	<u>2</u>
Statements	
Use of	<u>3</u>
Proceeds	
Description of Debt Securities We May	<u>3</u>
Offer	
Description of Warrants or Other Rights We May	<u>22</u>
Offer	
Description of Stock Purchase Contracts We May	<u>27</u>
Offer	
Description of Units We May	<u>28</u>
Offer	
Description of Common Stock We May	<u>31</u>
Offer	
Description of Preferred Stock We May	<u>34</u>
Offer	
Description of Depositary Shares We May	<u>36</u>
Offer	
The Issuer	<u>39</u>
Trusts	
Description of Capital Securities and Related	<u>41</u>
Instruments	
Description of Junior Subordinated	<u>52</u>
Debentures	
Description of	<u>64</u>
Guarantees	
Relationship Among the Capital Securities and the Related	<u>68</u>
Instruments	
Legal Ownership and Book-Entry	<u>69</u>
Issuance	
Securities Issued in Bearer	<u>74</u>
Form	
Considerations Relating to Indexed	<u>78</u>
Securities	_
United States	<u>80</u>
Taxation	
Plan of	<u>101</u>
Distribution	

Employee Retirement Income Security Act	<u>104</u>
Validity of the	105
·	<u>105</u>
Securities	107
Experts	<u>105</u>
ii	

#### ABOUT THIS PROSPECTUS SUPPLEMENT

This document is in two parts. The first part is this prospectus supplement, which describes the specific terms of this offering. The second part is the accompanying base prospectus, which gives more general information about us and our securities that we may offer, some information of which does not apply to this offering. Generally, when we refer to the "prospectus," we are referring to both parts combined. If information varies between this prospectus supplement and the accompanying base prospectus, you should rely on the information in this prospectus supplement.

You should carefully read this entire prospectus supplement, the accompanying base prospectus and the other information we have incorporated by reference, as described under the section entitled "Where You Can Find More Information" on page 1 of the accompanying base prospectus and elsewhere in this prospectus supplement, to understand fully the terms of the ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> being offered hereby, as well as the tax and other considerations that you should consider before making your investment decision. You should pay special attention to the section entitled "Risk Factors" beginning on page S-7 of this prospectus supplement and on page 9 of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for our fiscal year ended December 31, 2007, to determine whether an investment in our ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> is appropriate for you. See "Where You Can Find More Information" on page 1 of the accompanying base prospectus.

The information in this prospectus supplement is accurate as of April 24, 2008. You should rely only on the information contained in this prospectus supplement, the accompanying base prospectus and the information we have incorporated by reference. We have not authorized anyone to provide you with different information. You should not assume that the information provided by this prospectus supplement, the accompanying base prospectus or the information we have incorporated by reference is accurate as of any date other than the date of the respective document or information, as applicable. If information in any of the documents we have incorporated by reference or in the accompanying base prospectus conflicts with information in this prospectus supplement, you should rely on the most recent information. If information in an incorporated document conflicts with information in another incorporated document, you should rely on the information in the most recent incorporated document. We are not making an offer to sell these securities in any jurisdiction where the offer or sale is not permitted.

For purposes of this prospectus supplement, unless the context otherwise indicates:

references to "Zions Bancorporation," "we," "our" and "us" are only to Zions Bancorporation, excluding its consolidated subsidiaries;

• references to "you" are to any investor who invests in our ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> being offered hereby, whether they are the holders or only indirect owners of those ESOARS<sup>TM</sup>;

references to "ESOARSTM" are to the Zions Bancorporation Employee Stock Option Appreciation Rights Securities, Series 2008;

references to "this offering" or "the offering" are to the initial offering of our ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> made in connection with their original issuance, and not to any subsequent resales of our ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> in market-making transactions; and

• references to "holders" are to those persons or entities that own any of our ESOARS<sup>TM</sup>, registered in their own names, on the books that we or our agent maintain for this purpose, and not those who own beneficial interests in our ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> registered in street name or in ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> Units issued in book-entry form through one or more depositaries.

.

iii

## **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

#### WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION

You may request a copy of any of the documents or information we have incorporated by reference in this prospectus supplement, as described in the section entitled "Where You Can Find More Information" on page 1 of the accompanying base prospectus, at no cost to you by writing or telephoning us at:

Investor Relations
Zions Bancorporation
One South Main Street, Suite 1500
Salt Lake City, Utah 84111
(801) 524-4787

In addition, you may also access further information about us by visiting our website at www.zionsbancorporation.com. Please note that the information and materials found on our website, except for our SEC filings incorporated by reference in this prospectus supplement, are not part of this prospectus supplement and are not incorporated by reference into this prospectus supplement.

For additional information concerning this offering, the ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> being offered hereby, the website www.auctions.zionsdirect.com or the registration and auction process, you may contact Zions Direct:

- by telephone at (800) 524-8875 or (800) 554-1688 (ask for ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> support); or
  - by e-mail at auctions@zionsdirect.com.

#### DISCLOSURE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This prospectus supplement, including information incorporated by reference, contains "forward-looking statements" within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. Forward-looking statements provide current expectations or forecasts of future events and include, among others:

- statements with respect to the beliefs, plans, objectives, goals, guidelines, expectations, anticipations and future financial condition, results of operations and performance of Zions Bancorporation and its consolidated subsidiaries; and
- statements preceded by, followed by or that include the words "may," "could," "should," "would," "believe," "anticip "estimate," "expect," "intend," "plan," "projects" or similar expressions.

These forward-looking statements are not guarantees of future performance, nor should they be relied upon as representing our management's views as of any subsequent date. Forward-looking statements involve significant risks and uncertainties, and actual results may differ materially from those presented, either expressed or implied, in this prospectus supplement, including the information incorporated by reference. You should carefully consider those risks and uncertainties in reading this prospectus supplement. Factors that might cause such differences include, but are not limited to:

- our ability to successfully execute our business plans, manage our risks and achieve our objectives;
- changes in political and economic conditions, including the economic effects of terrorist attacks against the United States and related events:

changes in financial market conditions, either nationally or locally in areas in which we conduct our operations, including without limitation, reduced rates of business formation and growth, commercial and residential real estate development and real estate prices;

fluctuations in markets for equity, fixed-income, commercial paper and other securities, including availability, market liquidity levels and pricing;

changes in interest rates, the quality and composition of the loan and securities portfolios, demand for loan products, deposit flows and competition;

iv

## **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

- acquisitions and integration of acquired businesses;
- increases in the levels of losses, customer bankruptcies, claims and assessments;

changes in fiscal, monetary, regulatory, trade and tax policies and laws, including policies of the U.S. Treasury and the Federal Reserve Board;

- continuing consolidation in the financial services industry;
  - new litigation or changes in existing litigation;
- success in gaining regulatory approvals, when required;
  - changes in consumer spending and savings habits;
- increased competitive challenges and expanding product and pricing pressures among financial institutions;
  - demand for financial services in our market areas;
    - inflation and deflation:
  - technological changes and our implementation of new technologies;
  - our ability to develop and maintain secure and reliable information technology systems;
    - legislation or regulatory changes which adversely affect our operations or business;
      - our ability to comply with applicable laws and regulations; and

changes in accounting policies or procedures as may be required by the Financial Accounting Standards Board or regulatory agencies.

You should not put undue reliance on any forward-looking statements. All forward-looking statements are subject to risks and uncertainties that could cause actual results to differ materially from those expressed in or implied by such statements.

See the section entitled "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations" in Item 7 of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for our fiscal year ended December 31, 2007, which is incorporated by reference in this prospectus supplement, for a more detailed description of these and other factors that may affect any forward-looking statements. When considering forward-looking statements, you should keep in mind the risk factors described under the section entitled "Risk Factors" beginning on page S-7 of this prospectus supplement and on page 9 of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for our fiscal year ended December 31, 2007. We will not update any forward-looking statements unless the securities laws require us to do so.

V

## **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

#### **SUMMARY**

#### Zions Bancorporation

Zions Bancorporation is a financial holding company organized under the laws of the State of Utah in 1955, and registered under the Bank Holding Company Act of 1956, as amended. Zions Bancorporation and its subsidiaries own and operate eight commercial banks with a total of 508 domestic branches at December 31, 2007. We provide a full range of banking and related services through our banking and other subsidiaries, primarily in Utah, California, Texas, Arizona, Nevada, Colorado, New Mexico, Idaho, Washington and Oregon. Full-time equivalent employees totaled 10,933 at December 31, 2007.

We focus on maintaining community-minded banking services by continuously strengthening our core business lines of 1) small, medium sized businesses and corporate banking; 2) commercial and residential development, construction and term lending; 3) retail banking; 4) treasury cash management and related products and services; 5) residential mortgage; 6) trust and wealth management; and 7) investment activities. We operate eight different banks in ten western and southwestern states with each bank operating under a different name and each having its own chief executive officer and management team. The banks provide a wide variety of commercial and retail banking and mortgage lending products and services. They also provide a wide range of personal banking services to individuals, including home mortgages, bankcard, other installment loans, home equity lines of credit, checking accounts, savings accounts, time certificates of various types and maturities, trust services, safe deposit facilities, direct deposit and 24-hour ATM access. In addition, certain banking subsidiaries provide services to key market segments through their women's financial, private client services and executive banking groups. We also offer wealth management services through a subsidiary, Contango Capital Advisors, Inc., that was launched in 2004 and online brokerage services through Zions Direct, Inc.

In addition to these core businesses, we have built specialized lines of business in capital markets, public finance and certain financial technologies, and we are also a leader in U.S. Small Business Administration lending. Through our eight banking subsidiaries, we provide Small Business Administration 7(a) loans to small businesses throughout the United States and we are also one of the largest providers of SBA 504 financing in the nation. We own an equity interest in the Federal Agricultural Mortgage Corporation ("Farmer Mac"), and we are the nation's top originator of secondary market agricultural real estate mortgage loans through Farmer Mac. We are a leader in municipal finance advisory and underwriting services. We also control four venture capital funds that provide early-stage capital primarily for start-up companies located in the Western United States. Finally, our NetDeposit, Inc. and P5, Inc. subsidiaries are leaders in the provision of check imaging and clearing software and of web-based medical claims tracking and cash management services, respectively.

Our executive offices are located at One South Main, Suite 1500, Salt Lake City, Utah 84111, and our telephone number is (801) 524-4787.

#### **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

## The Offering

Issuer Zions Bancorporation.

Securities Offered Zions Bancorporation Employee Stock Option Appreciation Rights

Securities, Series 2008 (the "ESOARS<sup>TM</sup>," and each unit thereof, an "ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> Unit"). ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> are securities that entitle holders to receive specified payments from us upon the exercise, if any, from time to time of stock options comprising a reference pool of stock options that we have granted to our employees. We call our stock options that comprise this reference pool our "reference options." See "Description of Our ESOARS<sup>TM</sup>." The ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> represent our payment obligation but do not represent any ownership interest in us or in any of the reference options. See "Risk Factors - Risks Related to an Investment in Our

ESOARSTM - You will have no stockholder rights."

CUSIP Number 989701 404

Number of ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> Units We

Are Offering 180,000

Offering Price To be determined through an auction process conducted by our auction

agent. See "The Auction Process."

Reference Options Our board of directors approved a grant of 1,542,238 reference options

on April 24, 2008. The reference options will vest ratably over three years, have an exercise price equal to the market closing price of our shares of common stock on The Nasdaq Stock Market on April 24, 2008 and will expire on April 23, 2015. See "Description of Reference"

Options."

Vesting Period The three-year vesting period of the reference options ending on April

24, 2011.

Bid Limit In order to ensure a broad participation in this offering, we or our

auction agent will assign each bidder a bid limit. The auction website allows a bidder to place up to five separate, active bids. A bidder will not be able to place aggregate "in-the-money" bids that exceed that bidder's bid limit (as described below). See "The Auction Process -

Auction Bidding Process; Irrevocability of Bids."

Prospective bidders registering to bid on ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> for the first time on the website www.auctions.zionsdirect.com will automatically qualify to bid for up to an individual bid limit of \$20,000. Prospective bidders who want to bid for more than that amount may contact our auction agent by telephone at (800) 524-8875 or by e-mail at auctions@zionsdirect.com to request a greater bid limit. Any decision to increase a bidder's bid limit, upon such request, will be in our

auction agent's or our sole and absolute discretion. In no event will a purchaser be able to purchase more than 50% of the aggregate number of ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> Units offered. A bidder will not be able to place a bid that exceeds that bidder's bid limit. See "The Auction Process - Auction Bidding Process; Irrevocability of Bids."

Allocation of ESOARSTM

To be determined through our auction process based on the number of ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> Units designated as "in-the-money" by the auction website. See "The Auction Process - Allocation."

## **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

Purpose

We are offering the ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> in part to provide a market basis that may be used to help us estimate the fair value of our reference options and determine our compensation expense with respect to the issuance of our reference options, as required under Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123R, Share Based Payment, issued by the Financial Accounting Standards Board, or FASB. See "Description of Our ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> - Purpose of the Offering."

Auction Agent; Issuing and Paying Agent

Our auction agent is Zions Direct, Inc., a wholly-owned subsidiary of Zions First National Bank, which is our issuing and paying agent. Zions First National Bank, in turn, is a wholly-owned subsidiary of us.

Use of Proceeds

We intend to use the net cash proceeds from this offering for general corporate purposes. See "Use of Proceeds."

Listing

The ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> will not be listed on any securities exchange.

Periodic Payments

We will, from time to time, deposit with Zions First National Bank, as our paying agent, the applicable amounts per ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> Unit determined as described under the caption "Calculation of Payments" below. We will make each deposit on or before the fifth business day of the month following the end of each calendar quarter, commencing on or about July 8, 2009. Zions First National Bank will then make the applicable payments to each holder of our ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> on or before the 15th day of that month (or, if any such day is not a business day, then on the next business day). We expect that such periodic payments will commence on or about July 15, 2009.

Each date that the paying agent makes a payment with respect to the ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> is referred to in this prospectus supplement as a "payment date."

See "Description of Our ESOARSTM - Payments."

Calculation of Payments

The calculations of payments, if any, made to holders of ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> described below include adjustments intended to eliminate the effect of any forfeiture of reference options prior to vesting. The aggregate of payments, if any, made to holders of ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> will be equal to the aggregate amount they would have received if all of the reference options had vested, assuming that the reference options forfeited prior to vesting would have been exercised at the same times and market prices as those options that vest. See "Description of our ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> - Calculation of Payments."

Net Realized Value

For purposes of the calculation of payments in respect of ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> Units, the "net realized value" for a particular payment period means the amount, if any, by which:

•the trading price per share of our common stock on The Nasdaq Stock Market (or other national stock exchange on which our common stock is then traded) at the applicable time of exercise of a reference option, exceeds

•the exercise price of that reference option,

multiplied by:

•the number of shares of our common stock as to which the applicable reference option was exercised.

Payments During Vesting Period

During the vesting period, payments from time to time in respect of each ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> Unit will be equal to:

#### **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

•the "net realized value" realized upon the exercise of any reference options during the period (any such period, a "payment period") beginning on the first day of each calendar quarter (or in the case of the first payment period, beginning on April 24, 2009) and ending on and including the last day of such calendar quarter,

## divided by

•the number of shares of our common stock underlying reference options that have not been forfeited prior to vesting, modified or cancelled as of the last day of such calendar quarter.

Additional Payment to Adjust for Pre-Vesting Forfeitures

Holders of ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> Units may be entitled to an additional payment, which will be made on July 15, 2011 (the first payment date following the completion of the vesting period or, if such day is not a business day, then on the next business day), to adjust for any reference options forfeited by our employee optionees prior to the vesting of such options. The amount of such payment, if any, in respect of each ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> Unit will be equal to:

•the aggregate "net realized value" realized upon the exercise of any reference options during the vesting period divided by the number of shares of our common stock underlying reference options that have vested and have not been modified or cancelled as of the end of the vesting period,

#### minus

•the sum of the amounts previously paid in respect of each ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> Unit during the vesting period.

Payment if None of the Reference Options Vest If, upon the completion of the first annual vesting period, all of the reference options have been forfeited prior to vesting, an amount equal to the initial public offering price per ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> Unit sold in this offering, together with interest in respect of such amount at a rate of 4.0% per annum for the period from the settlement date for the ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> to (but not including) the date of such payment, will be paid in respect of each ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> Unit on July 15, 2009 (or, if such day is not a business day, then the next business day) and the ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> will thereafter be canceled.

Payments During Post-Vesting Period

Following the completion of the vesting period, payments from time to time in respect of each ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> Unit will be equal to:

•the "net realized value" realized upon the exercise of any reference options during the relevant payment period, divided by

•the number of shares of our common stock underlying reference options that have vested and have not been forfeited, modified or cancelled.

Form of Payment

Payments to holders of ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> Units on each payment date may be in the form of cash, shares of our common stock or some combination of cash and shares of our common stock, in our sole discretion. If payment is made in shares of our common stock, the number of shares delivered will be determined by dividing the cash value of the payment due (or portion thereof) by the closing price of our shares of common stock on The Nasdaq Stock Market (or, if our common stock is not listed on The Nasdag Stock Market, on the principal exchange or over-the-counter market on which our common stock is then listed) on the last trading day prior to the applicable payment date. We may deliver cash in lieu of any fractional shares of common stock based on the closing price of our shares of common stock determined in accordance with the immediately preceding sentence. The maximum aggregate number of shares of our common stock that we will issue in connection with payments, if any, in respect of our ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> is 540,000. Once we issue the maximum aggregate number of shares of our common stock, we will have no further obligation to make payments in either cash or shares of our common stock in respect of the ESOARS<sup>TM</sup>.

#### **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

Record Date

The record date to determine holders eligible to receive payments on a given payment date will be the last business day of the calendar quarter preceding that payment date.

Modification of Reference Options

If one or more reference options is modified (pursuant to Section 3.1(c) of our 2005 Stock Option and Incentive Plan) or canceled (pursuant to Section 2.5 or Section 3.1(c) of our 2005 Stock Option and Incentive Plan) in a manner that would be treated as a modification pursuant to paragraphs 51-57 of FASB Statement No. 123R, Share-Based Payment, or in other specified circumstances, we will pay in respect of each ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> Unit an amount equal to the cancellation value of the modified reference option(s) divided by the number of shares of our common stock underlying reference options that have not been forfeited prior to vesting. The cancellation value of the modified options will be determined by an independent valuation agent appointed by us. See "Description of Our ESOARSTM -Modification of Reference Options."

**Book-Entry Form** 

The ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> will be evidenced by one or more fully-registered global certificates, a form of which is attached hereto as Annex A. The global certificate(s) will be deposited with, or on behalf of, The Depository Trust Company ("DTC"), and will be registered in the name of Cede & Co., a nominee of DTC.

Cede & Co. will be the only registered holder of the ESOARS<sup>TM</sup>. Your beneficial interest in the ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> will be evidenced solely by entries on the books of the securities intermediary acting on your behalf as a direct or indirect participant in DTC.

In this prospectus supplement, all references to payments or notices to "you" or to a "holder" or "holders" mean payments or notices to DTC or its nominee, in either case as the registered holder of our ESOARSTM, and not those persons or entities that hold beneficial interests in our ESOARS<sup>TM</sup>. For more information regarding DTC and book-entry securities, see "Legal Ownership and Book-Entry Issuance."

Settlement

We expect that settlement will take place three business days following the conclusion of the auction and the allocation of our ESOARS<sup>TM</sup>. Institutional customers will settle delivery versus payment through their Zions Direct account. Winning bidders who are individuals and who do not have an account with Zions Direct will be required to open such an account, or arrange for their primary broker to enter into a selling group agreement with Zions Direct, in order to facilitate delivery and payment for their ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> Units. See "The Auction Process - Settlement."

Federal Income Tax Considerations The proper U.S. federal income tax characterization of our ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> is unclear. In the absence of clear authority, we intend to file information

returns with the Internal Revenue Service reporting income with respect to our ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> under a method analogous to the method applicable to income with respect to cash-settled call options if an ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> Unit is cash-settled, or under a method analogous to the method applicable to income with respect to stock-settled stock appreciation rights if an ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> Unit is settled in stock. However, it is unclear whether either method of reporting income on our ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> is proper. Prospective investors should carefully consider the discussion in the section below entitled "Material United States Federal Income Tax Consequences" with their own tax advisors.

## **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

Certain ERISA Matters

No ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> may be purchased by or transferred to:

•any "employee benefit plan" within the meaning of Section 3(3) of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended ("ERISA") (whether or not subject to ERISA, and including, without limitation, foreign or government plans);

•any "plan" described in Section 4975(e)(1) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended; or

•any entity whose underlying assets include plan assets of any of the foregoing by reason of an employee benefit plan's or plan's investment in such entity.

Any purported purchase or transfer of the ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> in violation of the foregoing restrictions will be null and void ab initio. Each bidder who purchases the ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> will be deemed to have represented, warranted and acknowledged to us that its purchase or transfer is not in violation of the restrictions set forth above.

Governing Law

State of New York.

## **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

#### **RISK FACTORS**

You should consider carefully the risk factors discussed below and the risk factors discussed in the section entitled "Risk Factors" beginning on page 9 of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for our fiscal year ended December 31, 2007, which is incorporated by reference in this prospectus supplement, for a discussion of particular factors you should consider before determining whether an investment in our ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> is appropriate for you. Investing in our ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> is speculative and involves risk.

Any of the risks described in this prospectus supplement or in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for our fiscal year ended December 31, 2007 could materially and adversely impair our business, financial condition and operating results. In such case, the trading price, if any, of our ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> could decline or you could lose all or part of your investment. Because the investment return, if any, realized by a holder of ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> will depend on the behavior of our employee optionees and other factors beyond our control, you may lose some or all of your investment even if our business, financial condition and operating results were not materially and adversely impaired.

## Risks Related to an Investment in Our ESOARSTM

You may lose some or all of your investment.

Any investment return realized by a holder of ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> will be affected by many factors that are out of our and your control. Some of these factors include:

- the amounts and timing of exercises, if any, of the reference options by our employee optionees;
  - the vesting schedule of the reference options;
  - the exercise price(s) of the reference options and the other terms of the reference options;
    - the modification of the exercise price(s) or other terms of the reference options;

the trading price per share of our common stock in the public markets at the time of exercise, if any, of the reference options;

decreases in the trading price per share of our common stock in the public markets between the last trading day prior to the applicable payment date and the delivery to ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> holders of the shares by the paying agent, if we elect to make payment in the form of shares of our common stock;

the post-vesting termination of an employee optionee's employment with us (whether that termination is at our election for cause or at the election of the employee) since the reference options are generally canceled when an employee's employment with us ceases; and

• the death or disability of any employee optionee.

For example, if our common stock price in the public markets were below the exercise price(s) of the reference options in any period in which an employee optionee is eligible to and willing to exercise a reference option, the optionee would be unlikely to exercise the reference option because that would result in a purchase of our common stock at a price per share that is higher than the price that is available in the open market. In addition, if the option exercise period were to expire or the optionee were no longer eligible to exercise the reference option due to

termination of employment, death, disability or other factors, the reference option would expire unexercised. In each such case, the reference option would not yield any net realized value, and no payments would be made to any ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> holder with respect to any such reference option that had vested.

Summary information regarding the reference options are set forth in the section entitled "Description of Reference Options" beginning on page S-25 of this prospectus supplement. Information regarding our business and financial results may be found in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for our fiscal year ended December 31, 2007 and our other filings that we have made with the SEC. As a result of the interaction between the above-described and other factors, the actual return, if any, on our ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> may vary substantially over the life of the reference options. As a consequence, you may lose some or all of your investment.

## **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

You will not receive any payments with respect to the ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> until July 15, 2009, if at all.

The reference options are subject to a three-year vesting schedule, which will prevent any employee from exercising any reference options until April 24, 2009. Absent special circumstances such as an unforeseen modification of reference options, holders of ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> will not receive any payments with respect to their ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> until the payment date in July, 2009 at the earliest. The reference options will not fully vest until April 24, 2011, so the number of reference options that may be exercised prior to that date is restricted by the vesting schedule. We cannot assure you that you will ever receive payments as an ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> holder even with respect to vested reference options, since payments on the ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> will be generated only as a result of actual exercises of the reference options by our employees except in the event that all of the reference options are forfeited prior to vesting as described in the sections entitled "Description of Our ESOARSTM — Calculation of Payments — Payment if None of the Reference Options Vest" beginning on page S-13 of this prospectus supplement or in the event that the reference options are modified as described in "Description of Our ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> — Modification of Reference Options" beginning on page S-14 of this prospectus supplement.

The ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> will not be listed; there is no secondary market for our ESOARS<sup>TM</sup>.

Our ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> will not be listed on any securities exchange. Therefore, there may be little or no secondary market for the ESOARS<sup>TM</sup>. If a secondary market does develop, there is no assurance that it will be sustained. Even if there is a secondary market, it may not provide enough liquidity to allow you to easily trade or sell the ESOARS<sup>TM</sup>. We do not expect that market makers will participate significantly in a secondary market, if any, for the ESOARS<sup>TM</sup>.

The amount, if any, and timing of returns on our ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> is uncertain.

Some articles and research reports have been written on rates of return for employee stock options similar to the reference options, and we have provided specified historical information regarding exercises of our stock options in the section entitled "Historical Stock Option Exercise Data" beginning on page S-26 of this prospectus supplement. Nonetheless, the ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> are a novel financial instrument for which, to our knowledge, there is no source for relevant data or standardized method of measuring the anticipated return with regard to the ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> or the reference options. Furthermore, the past performance of our stock options is not necessarily indicative of their future performance. Because the characteristics and behaviors of the employees comprising each pool of employees varies, you should not rely on the historical information relating thereto in this prospectus supplement as an indicator of the behavior of the employees who have been granted the reference options. You should be aware that our ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> are a relatively new and novel type of financial product with no meaningful performance history. You should therefore consider and determine for yourself the likely amount and timing of returns on our ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> during the life of the reference options.

You will have no stockholder rights.

Investing in our ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> is not equivalent to investing in us. The ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> represent our payment obligation but do not represent any ownership interest in us or in any of the reference options. As an investor in our ESOARS<sup>TM</sup>, you will not have voting rights, rights to receive dividends or other distributions, or any other rights generally understood to be incidental to ownership of our equity securities, except as expressly set forth in this prospectus supplement with respect to our ESOARS<sup>TM</sup>.

If we choose to make payments on our ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> in the form of shares of common stock, you will bear the risk of changes in the market value of our common stock between the time we determine the amount of your stock payment and the time it is received in your securities account.

Payments to holders of ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> Units on each payment date may be in the form of cash, shares of our common stock or some combination of cash and shares of our common stock, in our sole discretion. If we choose to make payments in shares of our common stock, the number of shares to which you will be entitled will be determined based on the closing price of our shares of common stock on the last trading day prior to the applicable payment date, while we will not actually issue the shares to you until the payment date. You will bear the risk of any decline in the market value of our common stock between the time that we determine the number of shares to which you are entitled and the time that you receive the shares in your securities account and you are able to trade them.

If we choose to make payments on our ESOAR S<sup>TM</sup> in the form of shares of our common stock, our obligation to make payments is limited.

Payments to holders of ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> Units on each payment date may be in the form of cash, shares of our common stock or some combination of cash and shares of our common stock, in our sole discretion. The maximum aggregate number of shares of our

## **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

common stock that we will issue in connection with payments, if any, in respect of our ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> is 540,000. Once we issue the maximum aggregate number of shares of our common stock, we will have no further obligation to make payments in either cash or shares of our common stock in respect of our ESOARS<sup>TM</sup>.

The U.S. federal tax characterization of our ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> is uncertain.

There are no cases, Treasury regulations, revenue rulings or other binding authorities that directly address the U.S. federal income tax characterization of our ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> or of securities with terms substantially the same as those of our ESOARS<sup>TM</sup>. Therefore, the proper U.S. federal tax characterization of, and method of reporting income and loss with respect to, our ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> is uncertain. In the absence of guidance, we intend to file information returns with the Internal Revenue Service reporting income with respect to our ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> under a method analogous to the method applicable to income with respect to cash-settled call options if an ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> Unit is cash-settled, or under a method analogous to the method applicable to income with respect to stock-settled stock appreciation rights if an ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> Unit is settled in stock. However, other U.S. federal income tax characterizations of, and methods of reporting payments on, our ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> are possible. If these other characterizations or methods applied, they could materially adversely affect the amount, timing and character of income or loss that is properly reportable with respect to our ESOARS<sup>TM</sup>, as compared to the method reported by us. In addition, we intend to take the position that payments on our ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> that are made to non-U.S. investors are subject to a 30 percent U.S. withholding tax, unless the non-U.S. investor establishes an exemption. Therefore, our ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> may not be an appropriate investment for non-U.S. investors. Because of the uncertainty of treatment of income and loss with respect to our ESOARS<sup>TM</sup>, we urge prospective investors to consult their own tax advisors as to the proper classification and reporting of income and loss with respect to our ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> for U.S. federal income tax purposes. See "Material United States Federal Income Tax Consequences" beginning on page S-47 of this prospectus supplement.

The interests of holders of ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> may differ from the interests of us or our affiliates.

We or one or more of our affiliates may engage in trading activities, including securities offerings of shares of our common stock, or other activities, including business restructurings, that involve termination of service of one or more of our employees who are holders of the reference options, or involve repricings or modifications of the reference options. These activities may not necessarily be in your best interests. Any of these activities may negatively affect the value of, and returns on, our ESOARS<sup>TM</sup>. We do not have, and we specifically disclaim, any duty or obligation to act in the best interests of holders.

Our ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> Units will be contractually subordinated to our secured and unsecured indebtedness and our preferred stock, if any.

The ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> Units will be contractually subordinated to any secured and unsecured indebtedness we may incur and any right to distributions of our assets pursuant to ownership of our preferred stock now or hereafter issued and outstanding. In the event of a bankruptcy or similar proceeding involving us, our assets will be available to satisfy the obligations under any secured and unsecured indebtedness and any right to distributions of our assets pursuant to ownership of our preferred stock now or hereafter issued and outstanding before any payments are made on the ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> Units.

Risks Related to the Auction Process

Once you submit a bid, you may generally not revoke it.

Once you have submitted and confirmed a bid, you may not subsequently lower your bid price or lower the number of ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> Units bid for in that bid. Therefore, even if circumstances arise after you have placed and confirmed a bid

that make you want to decrease your original bid price or the number of ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> originally bid for, you will nonetheless be bound by that bid.

We reserve the right to reject any bid.

We reserve the right, in our sole discretion, to reject any bid that we deem to be manipulative, mistaken or made due to a misunderstanding of our ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> on the part of the bidder. We reserve this right in order to preserve the integrity of the auction process. Other conditions for valid bids, including eligibility and account funding requirements of participating dealers and individuals, may vary. As a result of these varying requirements, we may reject a bidder's bid, even while we accept another bidder's identical bid. See the section entitled "The Auction Process - Allocation" beginning on page S-19 of this prospectus supplement. You will not be entitled to an allocation of ESOARS<sup>TM</sup>, even if your bid is "in-the-money" at the time the auction closes, until our auction agent has reviewed the results of the auction and informed you that your bid or bids have been accepted.

## **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

You may receive a full allocation of our ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> Units that you bid for if your bid is successful; therefore, you should not bid for more ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> than you are prepared to purchase.

Successful bidders may be allocated all or nearly all of the ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> Units that they bid for in the auction. See "The Auction Process - Allocation." Therefore, we caution investors against submitting a bid that does not accurately represent the number of ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> Units that they are willing and prepared to purchase.

Even if you submit a bid that is equal to or greater than the market-clearing price you may not be allocated any of the ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> Units for which you bid.

We will determine the offering price for our ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> Units sold pursuant to this prospectus supplement and the applicable pricing supplement through an auction conducted by Zions Direct, our auction agent. The auction process will reveal a market-clearing price for such ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> Units. The market-clearing price will be the highest offering price at which all of the ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> Units offered in an auction would be sold to bidders. For an explanation of the meaning of market-clearing price see "The Auction Process—Market Clearing Price" beginning on page S-18 of this prospectus supplement. If your bid price equals the market-clearing price, you will be allocated ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> Units only to the extent that ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> Units have not been allocated to bidders with higher bid prices. If there are two or more bids that equal the market-clearing price, then the ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> Units that have not been allocated to bidders with higher bid prices will be allocated to the bid with the earliest time stamp, then to the bid with the next earliest time stamp and so on until all of the ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> Units being offered are allocated to bidders.

You should not expect to sell your ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> Units after the conclusion of this offering and the allocation of our ESOARS<sup>TM</sup>.

As we mentioned above, the auction process will reveal a market-clearing price for our ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> offered in this offering. However, this clearing price may bear little or no relationship to market demand for our ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> following this offering, or the price at which the ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> may be sold. If there is little or no market demand for our ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> following the closing of the auction, the price of our ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> may decline. If your objective is to make a short-term profit by selling your ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> after the conclusion of the auction, you should not submit a bid in the auction. See the risk factor above entitled "- The ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> will not be listed; there is no secondary market for our ESOARS<sup>TM</sup>."

## **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

#### **USE OF PROCEEDS**

We intend to use the net cash proceeds from this offering for general corporate purposes.

#### DESCRIPTION OF OUR ESOARSTM

In this prospectus supplement, all references to payments or notices to "you" or to a "holder" or "holders" mean payments or notices to DTC or its nominee, in either case as the registered holder of the ESOARS<sup>TM</sup>, and not those persons or entities that hold beneficial interests in the ESOARS<sup>TM</sup>. For more information regarding DTC and book-entry securities, see the section entitled "Legal Ownership and Book-Entry Issuance" beginning on page S-52 of this prospectus supplement. You will own a "beneficial interest" in our ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> if you hold ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> through direct or indirect participants in DTC. Owners of beneficial interests in our ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> should read the section entitled "Legal Ownership and Book-Entry Issuance" beginning on page S-52 of this prospectus supplement.

#### General

We will issue the Zions Bancorporation Employee Stock Option Appreciation Rights Securities, Series 2008 (the "ESOARS<sup>TM</sup>," and each unit thereof, an "ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> Unit") directly to investors. The ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> are securities that entholders to receive specified payments from us upon the exercise, if any, from time to time of stock options comprising a reference pool of stock options that we have granted to our employees. We call our stock options that comprise this reference pool our "reference options." Some characteristics of the reference options are described in the section entitled "Description of Reference Options."

The ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> will be issued only in fully-registered book-entry form.

Upon the exercise, if any, from time to time by our employees of our reference options, holders of our ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> will be entitled to receive payments as described below in "- Payments."

The ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> represent our payment obligation but do not represent any ownership interest in us or in any of the reference options. See "Risk Factors — Risks Related to an Investment in Our ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> - You will have no stockholder rights."

## Purpose of the Offering

We are offering our ESOARS™ in part to provide a market basis that may be used to help us estimate the fair value of our reference options and determine our compensation expense with respect to the issuance of the reference options, as required under Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123R, Share Based Payment, issued by the FASB.

Determination of Offering Price; Allocation

The price to the public and the allocation of our ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> will be determined through an auction process in which prospective investors will bid for our ESOARS<sup>TM</sup>. See the section entitled "The Auction Process" beginning on page S-15 of this prospectus supplement.

#### **Payments**

We will, from time to time, deposit with Zions First National Bank, as our paying agent, the applicable amounts per ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> Unit as described under "- Calculation of Payments" below. We will make each deposit on or before the fifth

business day of the month following the end of each calendar quarter, commencing on or about July 8, 2009. Zions First National Bank will then make the applicable payments to each holder of our ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> on or before the 15th day of that month (or, if any such day is not a business day, then on the next business day). We expect that such periodic payments will commence on or about July 15, 2009. However, we will also make payments as described below in "Calculation of Payments - Additional Payment to Adjust for Pre-Vesting Forfeitures," "Calculation of Payments - Payment if None of the Reference Options Vest" and "- Modification of Reference Options."

Each date that the paying agent makes a payment with respect to the ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> is referred to in this prospectus supplement as a "payment date."

#### **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

#### Calculation of Payments

ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> are intended to track the cost to us of the reference options. Because under FASB Statement No. 123R options that do not vest will not result in compensation expense to the option-granting company, ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> are designed to determine the fair market value of a vested option. Accordingly, in order that bidders in the auction are not required to consider the effect of pre-vesting forfeitures of reference options when determining the price they are willing to pay for our ESOARS<sup>TM</sup>, the calculations of payments, if any, made to holders of ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> described below include adjustments intended to eliminate the effect of any forfeiture of reference options prior to vesting.

Because the number of reference options that will vest cannot be known until the end of the vesting period, a different calculation will apply for payments during the vesting period and payments during the post-vesting period, as described below. In addition, an additional payment may be required following the completion of the vesting period to effectively adjust the payments, if any, made during the vesting period so that cumulative payments, if any, made up to that payment date reflect the actual number of reference options that have vested. As a result of the calculations of payments described below, the aggregate of payments, if any, made to holders of ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> will be equal to the aggregate amount they would have received if all of the reference options had vested, assuming that the reference options forfeited prior to vesting would have been exercised at the same times and market prices as those options that vest. However, if upon completion of the first annual vesting period, all of the reference options have been forfeited prior to vesting, an amount equal to the initial public offering price per ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> Unit sold in this offering, together with interest specified below, will be paid to the holders of ESOARS<sup>TM</sup>.

For purposes of the calculation of payments in respect of ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> Units, the "net realized value" for a particular payment period means the amount, if any, by which:

the trading price per share of our common stock on The Nasdaq Stock Market (or other national stock exchange on which our common stock is then traded) at the applicable time of exercise of a reference option, exceeds

• the exercise price of that reference option,

#### multiplied by:

• the number of shares of our common stock as to which the applicable reference option was exercised.

Payments During Vesting Period. During the vesting period, payments from time to time in respect of each ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> Unit will be equal to:

the "net realized value" realized upon the exercise of any reference options during the period (any such period, a "payment period") beginning on the first day of each calendar quarter (or in the case of the first payment period, beginning on April 24, 2009) and ending on and including the last day of such calendar quarter,

#### divided by

the number of reference options that have not been forfeited prior to vesting, modified or cancelled as of the last day of such calendar quarter.

Additional Payment to Adjust for Pre-Vesting Forfeitures. Holders of ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> Units may be entitled to an additional payment, which will be made on July 15, 2011 (the first payment date following the end of the vesting period or, if such day is not a business day, then on the next business day), to adjust for any reference options forfeited by our employee optionees prior to the vesting of such options. The amount of such payment, if any, in respect of each

## ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> Unit will be equal to:

the aggregate "net realized value" realized upon the exercise of any reference options during the vesting period divided by the number of shares of our common stock underlying reference options that have vested and have not been modified or cancelled as of the completion of the vesting period,

## minus

• the sum of the amounts previously paid in respect of each ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> Unit during the vesting period.

#### **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

Payment if None of the Reference Options Vest. If, upon the completion of the first annual vesting period, all of the reference options have been forfeited prior to vesting, an amount equal to the initial public offering price per ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> Unit sold in this offering, together with interest in respect of such amount at a rate of 4.0% per annum for the period from the settlement date for the ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> to (but not including) the date of such payment, will be paid in respect of each ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> Unit on July 15, 2009 (or, if such day is not a business day, then on the next business day) and the ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> will thereafter be canceled.

Payments During Post-Vesting Period. Following the completion of the vesting period, payments from time to time in respect of each ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> Unit will be equal to:

the "net realized value" realized upon the exercise of any reference options during the relevant payment period, divided by

the number of shares of our common stock underlying reference options that have vested and have not been forfeited, modified or cancelled.

## Form of Payment

Payments to holders of ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> Units on each payment date may be in the form of cash, shares of our common stock or some combination of cash and shares of our common stock, in our sole discretion. If payment is made in shares of our common stock, the number of shares delivered will be determined by dividing the cash value of the payment due (or portion thereof) by the closing price of our shares of common stock on The Nasdaq Stock Market (or, if our common stock is not listed on The Nasdaq Stock Market, on the principal exchange or over-the-counter market on which our common stock is then listed) on the last trading day prior to the applicable payment date. We may deliver cash in lieu of any fractional shares of common stock based on the closing price of our shares of common stock determined in accordance with the immediately preceding sentence. The maximum aggregate number of shares of our common stock that we will issue in connection with payments, if any, in respect of our ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> is 540,000. Once we issue the maximum aggregate number of shares of our common stock, we will have no further obligation to make payments in either cash or shares of our common stock in respect of the ESOARS<sup>TM</sup>.

#### Reports and Notices

No later than 15 days after a given payment date, we will deliver to each holder a report relating to payments made on the applicable payment date. The report will set forth, with respect to the applicable payment period, information such as:

- the number of reference options exercised during the preceding calendar quarter;
  - the exercise price(s) at which the reference options were exercised;
- the number of reference options forfeited, if any, upon the termination of any optionee's employment with us;

the number of reference options, if any, deemed modified pursuant to paragraphs 51-57 of FASB Statement No. 123R during the preceding calendar quarter and their cancellation value; and

• the calculation of the payment with respect to each ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> Unit.

Mergers and Similar Transactions Permitted; No Control Rights

The ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> do not restrict our ability to merge or consolidate with, or sell all or substantially all of our assets to, another corporation or other entity, or engage in any other transactions. If at any time we merge or consolidate with, or sell all or substantially all of our assets to another corporation or other entity, the successor entity may assume our obligations with respect to the ESOARS<sup>TM</sup>. We will then be relieved of any further obligation with respect to the ESOARS<sup>TM</sup>. In addition, subject to applicable law and the terms of our stock option plans and any stock option agreements covering the reference options, we and an acquirer of us or all or substantially all of our assets may determine to terminate or modify the reference options. In such case, we will appoint an independent valuation agent to determine the cancellation value of the modified or terminated reference options as described under "- Modification of Reference Options" below.

## **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

Holders will not have any control or other rights with respect to our employees who were granted reference options, including any control as to whether or not such employee optionees exercise any reference options.

## Modification of Reference Options

If one or more reference options is modified (pursuant to Section 3.1(c) of our 2005 Stock Option and Incentive Plan) or canceled (pursuant to Section 2.5 or Section 3.1(c) of our 2005 Stock Option and Incentive Plan) in a manner that would be treated as a modification pursuant to paragraphs 51-57 of FASB Statement No. 123R, Share-Based Payment, then we will pay in respect of each ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> Unit an amount equal to the cancellation value of the modified reference option(s) divided by the number of shares of our common stock underlying reference options that have not been forfeited prior to vesting, cancelled or modified.

We will deposit the applicable amount payable to holders of ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> on or before the sixtieth day following the end of each calendar quarter in which a qualifying modification occurs. Payment to holders of ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> will occur on or before the 15th day of the month (or, if any such day is not a business day, then on the next business day) following the end of the calendar quarter in which such deposit is made. The cancellation value of the modified reference options will be determined by an independent valuation agent appointed by us.

The reference options will also be considered to be modified and we will follow the procedures contained in the immediately preceding paragraph with respect to determination and payment of cancellation value, upon the occurrence of specified events, including without limitation:

- a liquidation, dissolution or winding up of us;
- any consolidation or merger of us with or into any other corporation or other entity, or any other corporate reorganization in which our stockholders immediately prior to such consolidation, merger or reorganization own less than 50% of the surviving entity's voting power immediately after such consolidation, merger or reorganization; and
  - a sale or other disposition to a third party of all or substantially all of our assets.

In the event of a liquidation, dissolution or winding up of us, any and all payment of cancellation value to be made shall be subject, subordinate and junior, in right of payment and exercise of remedies to the prior payment of any and all of our indebtedness, liabilities and other obligations, now existing or hereafter arising, and any and all payment or distributions of any of our assets to the holders of any of our preferred stock, now or hereafter issued and outstanding, by reason of their ownership thereof.

#### Amendment

The ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> may be amended or supplemented, and any existing default or non-compliance with any provision of the ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> may be waived, with the consent of persons holding at least a majority of the ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> then outstanding. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> may be amended or supplemented, without the consent of any holder of ESOARS<sup>TM</sup>, in order to cure any ambiguity, defect, omission or inconsistency in the certificate evidencing the ESOARS<sup>TM</sup>.

## Governing Law

The ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> will be governed by the laws of the State of New York.

#### **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

#### THE AUCTION PROCESS

The method of distribution that we will use in this offering is an auction, which will be conducted by Zions Direct, Inc., our auction agent. We will pay Zions Direct, Inc. a fee of \$50,000 as compensation for its services as auction agent. The public offering price for our ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> and the allocation thereof will be determined by the auction process. The auction will be modeled after that used by the United States Treasury Department, with some notable differences, some of which are described below. The auction will be held on the website www.auctions.zionsdirect.com, which also contains the rules that govern the auction. The following generally describes how our auction agent will conduct the auction. We reserve the right to change the rules that govern the auction and potential investors should review the website www.auctions.zionsdirect.com for the exact auction rules.

Date, Time and Location of Auction

The auction will open at 4:30 p.m., E.D.T., on April 24, 2008 and will close at 12:00 p.m., E.D.T., on April 25, 2008, unless extended as described under "- Auction Bidding Process; Irrevocability of Bids." The auction will be hosted on the internet website www.auctions.zionsdirect.com.

Qualification of Bidders; Suitability

Our objective is to conduct an auction in which you submit informed bids.

Prospective bidders that want to bid for our ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> will, by registering with the website www.auctions.zionsdirect.com, automatically qualify to bid for up to an individual bid limit of \$20,000. Prospective bidders who want to bid for more than that amount may contact our auction agent by telephone at (800) 524-8875 or by e-mail at auctions@zionsdirect.com to request a greater bid limit. Any decision to increase a bidder's bid limit, upon such request, will be in our auction agent's or our sole and absolute discretion. To ensure that there will be sufficient time to process requests for an increase in a bidder's automatically assigned bid limit prior to the end of the auction, we recommend that requests be made prior to the start of the auction. If you request an increase in your bid limit after the start of the auction, our auction agent will attempt to process your request. However, we cannot assure you that our auction agent will be able to process the request prior to the end of the auction. A bidder may be required to submit specified financial information in order to establish an individual bid limit of more than \$20,000 and to establish the bidder's suitability for a larger investment in our ESOARS<sup>TM</sup>. We or our auction agent may contact a bidder to request any other pertinent information that we or our auction agent require to establish the bid limit and the suitability of such bidder.

We caution you that our ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> may not be a suitable investment for you even if you qualify to participate in the auction. Moreover, even if you qualify to participate in the auction and place a bid, you may not receive an allocation of ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> in our offering for a number of reasons described below.

No employees of Zions Direct, our auction agent, will be allowed to participate in the auction. Additionally, specified employees of us and some of our other affiliates will not be allowed to participate in the auction. Some of these employees include specified executive officers, our stock option plan administrators, anyone involved in the creation and structuring of our ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> and employees involved in the auction process.

#### Registration

In order to participate in the auction, a prospective bidder must (1) register to have a Bidding Account and (2) satisfy and agree to the terms and conditions specific to the auction in order to become a qualified bidder. In connection with the registration process, prospective bidders will be required to answer certain questions that indicate that such bidder

has accessed or received the offering materials and understands the risk of investing in ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> and that ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> are suitable for such bidder. In addition, by registering to bid in the auction, a prospective bidder represents and warrants to us that such bidder's bid is submitted for and on behalf of such prospective bidder by himself, herself or itself, as applicable, or by an officer or agent who is duly authorized to bind the prospective bidder to a legal, valid and enforceable contract with respect to the bid for, and purchase of, our ESOARS<sup>TM</sup>.

#### **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

#### STEP 1: Become a registered bidder

(a) Register to have a Bidding Account. Individuals and institutions who wish to participate in the auction must have a Bidding Account. Individuals and institutions can open a Bidding Account and obtain a Bidder ID and password by going to the website (https://auctions.zionsdirect.com/user/register), filling in minimal contact information and submitting the Bidder Registration Form electronically. During the registration process, each prospective bidder will select a user identification, or user ID, and password to access the bid page on www.auctions.zionsdirect.com and to submit bids in the auction. Institutions can also apply to open a Bidding Account by calling (888) 357-3375. We or our auction agent will confirm by e-mail a prospective bidder's successful registration. A prospective bidder is not obligated to submit a bid in the auction simply because that bidder has registered to bid in the auction.

### STEP 2: Become a qualified bidder

- (a) Qualifying for the auction. After logging into the bidder's Bidding Account, the bidder must qualify to participate in the auction. To qualify to bid in the auction, a bidder must (1) review and acknowledge all documents pertinent to the auction, (2) verify that their suitability profile includes objectives and an investment time horizon that are consistent with an investment in the securities being auctioned and (3) authorize and direct the broker/dealer through which it will hold the securities won in the auction, which broker/dealer may or may not be our auction agent, to update its suitability profile, if necessary, to include the appropriate objectives and investment time horizon. Such review, verification, certification and authorization are acknowledged by clicking on the corresponding checkboxes and by clicking on "I Agree" on the webpage that appears when accessing the auction. Such certification and authorization is a requirement for bidders to qualify to participate in the auction. Once updated, a bidder's suitability profile may remain so updated after the auction in the bidder's broker/dealer account through which the bidder will hold any securities won in the auction in the auction to further update their suitability profile. By satisfying and accepting the terms and conditions of the auction and authorizing updates in the suitability profile if necessary, a bidder becomes qualified to participate in the auction.
- (b) Qualifying for subsequent auctions. Qualification to participate in the auction does not transfer over to any subsequent auction of ESOARS<sup>TM</sup>. Therefore, bidders are required to review and acknowledge the terms of any subsequent auction of ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> when they enter to participate in such new auction.
- (c) Winning Bidders. If a bidder is awarded ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> in the auction, the bidder must then provide additional information, and must either provide a brokerage account that can receive delivery of the ESOARS<sup>TM</sup>, or have or open a brokerage account with our auction agent.

Each prospective bidder will be solely responsible for making necessary arrangements to access www.auctions.zionsdirect.com for purposes of submitting its bid in a timely manner and in compliance with the requirements described in this prospectus supplement.

Neither we nor our auction agent have any duty or obligation to undertake such registration to bid for any prospective bidder or to provide or assure such access to any prospective bidder, and neither we nor our auction agent will be responsible for a bidder's failure to register to bid or for proper operation of www.auctions.zionsdirect.com, or have any liability for any delays or interruptions of, or any damages caused by, www.auctions.zionsdirect.com.

#### **Bid Limit**

Individuals and institutions registered at www.auctions.zionsdirect.com will be able to participate in the auction.

In order to ensure a broad participation in this offering, we or our auction agent will assign to each bidder an individual bid limit. The auction website allows a bidder to place up to five separate, concurrent bids. A bidder will not be able to place aggregate "in-the-money" bids that exceed that bidder's individual bid limit (as described below).

Prospective bidders registering to bid on ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> for the first time on the website www.auctions.zionsdirect.com will automatically qualify to bid for up to an individual bid limit of \$20,000. Prospective bidders who want to bid for more than that amount may contact us by telephone at (800) 524-8875 or by e-mail at auctions@zionsdirect.com to request a greater bid limit. Any decision to increase a bidder's bid limit, upon such request, will be in our auction agent's or our sole and absolute discretion. In no event will a purchaser be able to purchase more than 50% of the aggregate number of ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> Units offered. A bidder will not be able to place a bid that exceeds that bidder's individual bid limit.

#### **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

Auction Bidding Process; Irrevocability of Bids

The auction will open at 4:30 p.m., E.D.T., on April 24, 2008 and will close at 12:00 p.m., E.D.T., on April 25, 2008, unless extended as described below. Bids must be submitted electronically at www.auctions.zionsdirect.com. No bids by facsimile or e-mail shall be accepted. Each prospective bidder will be solely responsible for registering to bid at www.auctions.zionsdirect.com as described above.

You will not be able to bid in the auction unless you have registered on www.auctions.zionsdirect.com. Each bidder will be able to access the auction beginning at 4:30 p.m., E.D.T., on April 24, 2008, using the Bidder ID and password obtained at the time of registration.

The minimum size of a bid is one whole ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> Unit. You will not be allowed to bid for fractional ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> Units. We reserve the right in our sole and absolute discretion to reject any bid that we deem to be manipulative, mistaken or made due to a misunderstanding of our ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> on the part of the bidder. We reserve this right in order to preserve the integrity of the auction process.

You should be aware that your bid will be binding on you once you submit and confirm it. Unless you change a bid to increase the resulting net value of your bid as described below, you will not thereafter be able to retract or cancel that bid. Once you have posted and confirmed a bid, you may not then lower the bid price or lower the number of ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> Units bid for while that bid is "in-the-money." You also may not increase the number of ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> Units bid for on a bid row that is "in-the-money"; this is to protect the time stamp of your "in-the-money" bid. If your bid is or becomes "out-of-the-money," you will be able to:

- increase the number of ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> Units that you are bidding for (subject to your individual bid limit); and/or
  - increase the bid price per ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> Unit that you are willing to pay; or

• both.

Each bidder may place up to five separate, concurrent bids. Each bid may be made for different numbers of ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> Units and for different bid prices. A bidder who has one active bid will be able to bid up to his individual bid limit in that one bid. However, if a bidder has more than one active bid, the aggregate amount of "in-the-money" bids (as described below) cannot exceed that bidder's individual bid limit.

The individual bid limit for any given bidder is allocated first to the highest price per unit bid by such bidder multiplied by the number of ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> Units bid at that price. Any remaining individual bid limit for that bidder is then allocated to the next highest price per unit bid by such bidder multiplied by the number of ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> Units bid at that price, and so on until the individual bid limit assigned to that bidder has been reached. The bids of a bidder who has placed multiple bids may be deemed to be "in-the-money" only to the extent that (1) the bid price is at or above the market-clearing price and (2) the aggregate dollar amount of the multiple bids that are "in-the-money" is less than or equal to that individual bidder's bid limit. In short, the maximum number of ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> Units that a bidder may be allocated will be those ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> Units designated as "in-the-money" by the auction website.

Each separate bid may be modified as described above in order to increase the number of ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> Units bid for or to increase the bid price, or both. There is no limit to the number of times that a bidder may improve an individual bid. In no event will a bidder be allowed to submit or modify a bid in a manner that would result in a change in that bidder's aggregate number of ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> Units that are currently designated as "in-the-money." A modification of one bid does not modify any other bid. Because each bid is independent of any other bid, each bid may result in an allocation of

ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> Units; consequently, the sum of a bidder's bid sizes should be no more than the total number of ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> Units the bidder is willing to purchase.

Once the auction begins, all bidders that have registered may submit bids only through www.auctions.zionsdirect.com.

You should consider all the information in this prospectus supplement and the accompanying base prospectus in determining whether to submit a bid, the number of ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> Units you are interested in purchasing and the price per ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> Unit that you are willing to pay.

#### **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

In connection with submitting a bid, you must log on to www.auctions.zionsdirect.com and do the following:

- state the number of ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> Units that you are interested in purchasing;
- state the purchase price per ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> Unit that you are willing to pay; and
  - review your bid to ensure accuracy and confirm that bid.

#### Once an investor:

- places a bid on www.auctions.zionsdirect.com, and
- confirms that bid on www.auctions.zionsdirect.com,

that bid will constitute an irrevocable offer to purchase our ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> Units (except as set forth above), on the terms provided for in the bid.

For purposes of the electronic bidding process at www.auctions.zionsdirect.com, the time as maintained on www.auctions.zionsdirect.com will constitute the official time of a bid. Bidders will be able to monitor the status of their bids as described more fully below. Bids submitted on www.auctions.zionsdirect.com must be received by us before 12:00 p.m., E.D.T., on April 25, 2008, which is when the auction ends, unless the auction is extended as described in the next sentence. During the final two (2) minutes of the auction, if there is a change in the market-clearing price of the ESOARS<sup>TM</sup>, the auction will automatically be extended two (2) minutes from the time of such change.

While the auction platform has been subjected to stress testing to confirm its functionality and ability to handle numerous bidders, it is impossible for us to predict the response of the investing public to this offering. Bidders should be aware that if enough bidders try to access the platform and submit bids simultaneously, there may be a delay in receiving and/or processing their bids. Bidders should be aware that auction website capacity limits may prevent last-minute bids from being received by the auction website and should plan their bidding strategy accordingly. Neither we nor our auction agent guarantee that any submitted bid will be received, processed and accepted during the auction process.

The auction process is modeled after that used by the United States Treasury, with some notable differences, some of which are described below. The auction will be an "open" auction, with bidders being updated on the status of their bids relative to other bidders, as described in this paragraph. At no point during the auction, however, will bidders have access to other bidders' actual bids, and at no point will bidders have access to other bidders' identities. After submission and confirmation of bid quantity and price, the www.auctions.zionsdirect.com web page will indicate whether that bid is at that time in a winning position, or "in-the-money." If a bid is "in-the-money" at a particular point in time during the auction, that means that, if the auction ended at that particular time, the number of "in-the-money" ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> Units of that bidder's bid would be accepted. In order for a bid to be accepted, a bid must be "in-the-money" at the close of the auction. In order to monitor the progress of the auction, bidders may need to manually refresh the bid page to see whether their status has changed. This process will continue until the end of the auction, at which point our auction agent will review the submitted bids and determine the auction winners and allocations. See "Risk Factors - Risks Related to the Auction Process" beginning on page S-9 of this prospectus supplement.

Market-Clearing Price

The market-clearing price for our ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> will be the highest price at which all of the ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> Units offered hereunder are sold. We will determine this price by moving down the list of accepted bids in descending order of bid price until the total quantity of ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> Units bid for is greater than or equal to the 180,000 ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> Units being offered hereunder.

#### **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

For example, assume that 100,000 ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> Units are being offered and that the following bidders have bid as follows:

Bidder	ESOARS <sup>TM</sup>	Bid
	Units	Price
	Represented	
	by Bid	
A	50,000	\$
		100.00
В	50,000	\$
		75.00
C	50,000	\$
		50.00

In this example, \$100.00 is not the market-clearing price because only 50,000 of the ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> Units offered could be sold at that price. Furthermore, \$50.00 is not the market-clearing price because, although all of the ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> Units being offered are sold for prices over \$50.00, this is not the highest price at which all of the ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> Units offered could be sold. Instead, all of the ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> Units being offered in this example would be sold at the higher price of \$75.00. Therefore, \$75.00 is the market-clearing price in this example.

The entire issue of ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> Units would be sold at the market-clearing price (similar to the United States Treasury auction). Therefore, in the example above, all of the ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> Units sold, even those that were bid for at \$100.00, would have been sold for \$75.00. We caution you that the market-clearing price may have little or no relationship to the price that would be established using other indicators of value. The scenario above is an example only and should not be considered indicative of an appropriate or likely market-clearing price of our ESOARS<sup>TM</sup>.

#### Allocation

During the auction, ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> Units are allocated to bids with the highest price. Bids with the same price are allocated by time stamp to the earliest bid. Once the auction is fully subscribed, allocation of ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> Units being auctioned is determined first by price and second by time stamp. Bidders bidding above the market-clearing price will be allocated the entire quantity of ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> Units for which they bid; however, in no event will a bidder be allowed to purchase a greater number of ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> Units than the lesser of (1) the number of ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> Units that that bidder's individual bid limit would purchase and (2) the total number of ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> Units of that bidder's bid designated as "in-the-money" by the auction website. In the event that multiple bidders bid at the market-clearing price and the total quantity of ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> Units for which they have bid exceeds the aggregate amount of ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> Units not allocated to higher bidders, the auction agent will allocate the remaining ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> Units to the bids with the earliest time stamp. The ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> Units will first be allocated to the bid with the earliest time stamp, then to the bid with the next earliest time stamp, and so on until all of the ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> Units being offered are allocated to bidders. To preserve the bidder's earliest time stamp, a bidder will be required to use an additional bid row to increase the number of ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> Units bid for without improving the price.

For example, assume that 100,000 ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> Units are being offered and that the following bidders have bid as follows:

	ESOARS <sup>TM</sup> Units Represented	ESOARS <sup>TM</sup> Units		
Bidder	by Bid	Allocated	Bid Price	Time Stamp

A	40,000	40,000	\$ 100.00	11:00 AM
В	40,000	40,000	\$ 75.00	10:00 AM
C	40,000	20,000	\$ 75.00	10:30 AM
D	40,000	0	\$ 75.00	10:31 AM

In this example, \$75.00 is the market-clearing price because it is the highest price at which all of the ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> Units offered could be sold. Therefore, Bidder A is allocated all 40,000 ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> Units bid for. This leaves 60,000 ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> Units to be allocated to the bidders that bid at the market-clearing price. Bidder B, Bidder C and Bidder D bid for an aggregate of 120,000 ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> Units at the same price. However, Bidder B has a time stamp that is earlier than Bidder C's time stamp and Bidder C's time stamp is earlier than Bidder D's time stamp. Therefore, the remaining 60,000 ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> Units are allocated first to Bidder B and the remaining ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> Units are allocated to Bidder C. Bidder D receives no ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> Units. This scenario is an example only and should not be considered indicative of an appropriate or likely market-clearing price for our ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> Units. In the event that a single bidder bids at the market-clearing price but the available quantity is less than that for which the bidder bid, the bidder will receive the available quantity.

We reserve the right to alter the method of allocation of our ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> Units as we deem necessary to ensure a fair and orderly distribution. We also reserve the right, in our sole and absolute discretion, to reject any bid that we deem to be manipulative, mistaken or made due to a misunderstanding of our ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> Units on the part of the bidder. We reserve this right in order to preserve the

#### **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

integrity of the auction process. We further reserve the right to reject all bids and cancel the auction, if we are unable to sell all of the ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> Units offered in the auction, or for any other reason. You will not be entitled to an allocation of ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> Units, even if your bid is "in-the-money" at the time an auction closes, until our auction agent has reviewed the results of the auction and informed you that your bid or bids have been accepted.

#### Results of Auction and Bid Acceptance

As soon as practicable after the auction has ended, our auction agent will: (a) notify via telephone or e-mail each winning bidder who was awarded ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> Units in the auction, which notice will specify at a minimum (i) that the auction has closed; (ii) that such bidder's bid has, or bids have, been accepted; (iii) the number of ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> Units that have been allocated to such winning bidder; and (iv) the market clearing price to be paid for such ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> Units; and (b) cause the results of the auction to be posted on the website, www.auctions.zionsdirect.com. You should be aware that bidders who submitted successful bids will be obligated to purchase the ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> Units allocated to them, regardless of whether they are aware that the e-mail notice of acceptance has been sent.

#### Settlement

We expect that settlement will take place three business days following the conclusion of the auction and the allocation of our ESOARS<sup>TM</sup>. Institutional customers will settle delivery versus payment through their Zions Direct account. Winning bidders who are individuals and who do not have an account with Zions Direct will be required to open such an account, or arrange for their primary broker to enter into a selling group agreement with Zions Direct, in order to facilitate delivery and payment for their ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> Units. Zions Direct will make a suitability determination with respect to those winning bidders seeking to open a Zions Direct account.

#### **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

#### ZIONS BANCORPORATION 2005 STOCK OPTION AND INCENTIVE PLAN

We issued each of the reference options pursuant to our 2005 Stock Option and Incentive Plan dated effective as of May 6, 2005 (the "Incentive Plan"). We filed a copy of our Incentive Plan as Exhibit 4.7 to our Registration Statement on Form S-8, which we filed with the SEC on May 6, 2005. We have attached a copy of our Incentive Plan as Annex B of this prospectus supplement. We also filed a copy of our Standard Stock Option Award Agreement (the "Standard Option Agreement") as Exhibit 10.5 to our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for our fiscal quarter ended March 31, 2005, which we filed with the SEC on May 5, 2005. We have attached a copy of our Standard Option Agreement as Annex C of this prospectus supplement. We issued substantially all of our reference options pursuant to the terms and conditions contained in the Standard Option Agreement.

The following description is only a summary of the material relevant provisions of our 2005 Stock Option and Incentive Plan. It does not restate the Incentive Plan in its entirety. This summary, as well as any other discussion of our Incentive Plan and our reference option grants in this prospectus supplement, is qualified by reference to the text of the Incentive Plan and the Standard Option Agreement. We urge you to read the Incentive Plan and the Standard Option Agreement, because they, and not this description or any other discussion in this prospectus supplement, define the terms under which an employee optionee may exercise a reference option.

Summary of Our 2005 Stock Option and Incentive Plan

Purpose. The purpose of the Incentive Plan is to promote our long-term success by providing an incentive for the officers, employees and directors of, and consultants and advisors to, us and our affiliates to acquire a proprietary interest in our success, to remain in our service or the service of our affiliates and to render superior performance during such service.

Administration. The Incentive Plan is administered by the executive compensation committee of our board of directors or a subcommittee thereof (the "Committee"). The Committee has the authority to:

- construe, interpret and implement the Incentive Plan;
- prescribe, amend and rescind rules and regulations relating to the Incentive Plan;
- make all determinations necessary or advisable in administering the Incentive Plan;
- correct any defect, supply any omission and reconcile any inconsistency in the Incentive Plan;
  - amend the Incentive Plan to reflect changes in applicable law;
- determine whether awards may be settled in shares of our common stock, cash or other property;
  - determine whether amounts payable under an award should be deferred; and
  - make other determinations and take other actions relative to the Incentive Plan.

The determination of the Committee on all matters relating to the Incentive Plan or any award agreement is final and binding.

Eligibility. Acting and prospective directors, officers and employees of, and consultants and advisors to, us and our affiliates, as selected by the Committee in its discretion, are eligible to participate in the Incentive Plan.

Shares of Common Stock Available for Issuance Through the Incentive Plan. Up to 8,900,000 shares of our common stock were initially authorized for issuance through the Incentive Plan. As of December 31, 2007, 5,367,875 of those shares remained available for issuance in connection with future stock option grants. Only 1,542,238 shares of our common stock are subject to reference options. See "Description of Reference Options." Shares of our common stock may be issued under the Incentive Plan from authorized but unissued shares of our common stock or authorized and issued shares of our common stock held in our treasury or otherwise acquired for the purposes of the Incentive Plan.

#### **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

Provisions in our Incentive Plan permit the reuse or reissuance of shares of our common stock underlying forfeited, terminated or canceled awards of stock-based compensation. If awards or underlying shares of our common stock are tendered or withheld as payment for the exercise price of an award, then we may not reuse or issue, or otherwise treat as available under our Incentive Plan, the shares of such common stock. Any shares of our common stock delivered by us, any shares of common stock with respect to which awards under the Incentive Plan are made by us and any shares of common stock with respect to which we become obligated to make awards, through the assumption of, or in substitution for, outstanding awards previously granted by an acquired entity, are not counted against the shares available for awards under the Incentive Plan.

The Committee has the authority to adjust the terms of any outstanding awards and the number of shares of our common stock issuable under our Incentive Plan for any increase or decrease in the number of issued shares of common stock resulting from a stock split, reverse stock split, stock dividend, recapitalization, rights offering, combination or reclassification of the common shares, or other events affecting our capitalization.

Stock Options. The Committee has discretion to award to eligible employees:

incentive stock options ("ISOs"), which are intended to comply with Section 422 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, or

nonqualified stock options, which are not intended to comply with Section 422 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.

The Committee determines the number of shares of our common stock covered by the applicable option and the exercise period and exercise price of such option. However, the exercise period may not exceed ten years and the exercise price may not be less than the fair market value of a share of our common stock on the date the option is granted. The Committee has discretion to set such additional limitations, conditions and provisions on or relating to option grants as it deems appropriate.

Upon the exercise of an option granted under our Incentive Plan, the exercise price is payable in full to us either:

in cash or its equivalent;

by delivery of shares of our common stock having a fair market value at the time of exercise equal to all or a part of the exercise price (provided such shares have been held for at least six months prior to their tender); or

• any other method approved by the Committee in its discretion.

Grantees of an option award generally will not have any of the rights of our shareholders with respect to shares subject to their award until the issuance of the shares.

Performance Goals. The Committee may grant awards under the Incentive Plan subject to the attainment of specified performance goals. The performance goals applicable to an award may provide for a targeted or measured level or levels of achievement or change using one or more of the following measures:

• revenue;

earnings per share;

• net income;

	•	return on assets;
	•	return on equity;
	•	stock price;
•		economic profit or shareholder value added; and
	•	total shareholder return.

#### **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

Termination of Employment and Change in Control. The Incentive Plan determines the extent to which a grantee will have the right to exercise or obtain the benefits of an award or underlying shares following termination of the grantee's employment or service by or for us or our affiliates or upon a change in control of us, unless modified by the Committee with respect to an award.

The Incentive Plan provides that, unless the Committee determines otherwise at the time of an award, upon a change in control of us, the exercisability of, and the lapse of restrictions with respect to, the award will be accelerated, the exercise period, if any, of the award will be extended and, if so determined by the Committee, the award may be cashed out. The termination and change in control provisions need not be uniform among all grantees and may reflect distinctions based on the reasons for termination of employment or service by or for us or our affiliates.

Adjustments and Amendments. The Incentive Plan provides for appropriate adjustments in the number and nature of shares of our common stock subject to awards and available for future awards and in the exercise price of options in the event of changes in our issued and outstanding common stock by reason of a merger, stock split or other specified events.

The Committee may amend the Incentive Plan at any time and for any purpose that the Committee deems appropriate. However, no amendment may adversely affect any outstanding awards in a material way without the affected holder's consent, except in specified circumstances.

No Repricing or Reloads. Options issued under our Incentive Plan may not be repriced without the approval of our shareholders. The plan does not allow reload options to be issued upon exercise of outstanding options.

Nontransferability. Unless the Committee determines otherwise in specified circumstances, no award (including options) granted pursuant to, and no right to payment under, our Incentive Plan will be assignable or transferable by a grantee except by will or by the laws of descent and distribution, and any option or similar right will be exercisable during a grantee's lifetime only by the grantee or by the grantee's legal representative.

Duration of the Incentive Plan. Unless earlier terminated by our board of directors, our Incentive Plan will terminate on the tenth anniversary of adoption of the plan by our board of directors; provided, however, that the terms of our Incentive Plan will continue to govern until all then-outstanding options granted thereunder have been satisfied or terminated pursuant to the terms of the Incentive Plan, and all restricted periods and performance periods have lapsed.

Federal Income Tax Consequences to Employees With Respect to Stock Options

Incentive Stock Options. A grantee will not be subject to tax upon the grant of an ISO, or, generally, upon the exercise of an ISO. However, the excess of the fair market value of the shares of our common stock on the date of exercise over the exercise price paid will generally be included in the grantee's alternative minimum taxable income. Whether a grantee is subject to the alternative minimum tax will depend on his or her particular circumstances. Following exercise of an ISO, if a grantee disposes of the shares of our common stock acquired upon exercise of an option on or after the later of:

- the second anniversary of the date of grant of the ISO, and
- the first anniversary of the date of exercise of the ISO (the "statutory holding period"),

then the grantee will recognize a capital gain or loss in an amount equal to the difference between the amount realized on such disposition and the grantee's basis in the shares. If the grantee disposes of those shares before the end of the

statutory holding period, he or she will have engaged in a "disqualifying disposition." As a result, the disposition will be subject to tax:

on the excess of the fair market value of the shares on the date of exercise (or the amount realized on the disqualifying disposition, if less) over the exercise price paid, as ordinary income, and

on the excess, if any, of the amount realized on such disqualifying disposition over the fair market value of the shares on the date of exercise, as capital gain.

If the amount a grantee realizes from a disqualifying disposition is less than the exercise price paid and the loss sustained upon such disposition would otherwise be recognized, the grantee will not recognize any ordinary income from such disqualifying

### **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

disposition and instead will recognize a capital loss. In the event of a disqualifying disposition, the amount recognized by the grantee as ordinary income is generally deductible by us. We are currently not obligated to withhold income or other employment taxes upon a disqualifying disposition of an ISO.

Nonstatutory Stock Options. A grantee will not be subject to tax upon the grant of an option which is not intended to be (or does not qualify as) an ISO (a "nonstatutory stock option"). Upon exercise of a nonstatutory stock option, an amount equal to the excess of the fair market value of the shares acquired on the date of exercise over the exercise price paid is taxable to the grantee as ordinary income, and such amount is generally deductible by us. This amount of income will be subject to income tax and employment tax withholding.

#### **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

#### DESCRIPTION OF REFERENCE OPTIONS

Our board of directors approved the reference options on April 24, 2008. The board of directors approved the granting of 1,542,238 options. The exercise price of \$47.29 per share was set at the market closing price of our shares of common stock on The Nasdaq Stock Market on April 24, 2008. One-third of the reference options vest on the grant date anniversary in each of the first three years. There are no other vesting conditions. The vesting conditions are identical for all reference options. The reference options expire seven years after the grant date, on April 23, 2015.

Some of the granted options will be classified as incentive stock options, with the remainder classified as non-qualified options. In general, incentive and non-qualified differ as to their tax consequences for the option grantee. Other than the classification of our reference options as incentive or non-qualified options, the reference options are identical. There are no differences in terms, including vesting, termination or cancellation.

The Standard Option Agreement, under which we issued substantially all of the reference options, generally provides that the reference options will terminate immediately upon:

- the employee's termination of his or her employment with us for any reason, or
  - our termination of that employee's employment for cause.

The following table shows the allocation of the reference options among employee groups:

	Number of	Number of
	Employees	Reference Options
		Granted
Executives(1)	48	981,052
Upper-level	129	486,952
Managers(2)		
Mid-level Managers & Other Top	57	74,234
Performers(3)		
Total	234	1,542,238

<sup>(1)</sup> Refers primarily to our Chief Executive Officer, our Chief Financial Officer, Chief Executive Officers of our affiliate banks and Executive Vice Presidents of Zions Bancorporation and our affiliate banks.

(2) Refers primarily to non-executive managers having a change in control provision in their employment contract.

(3) Includes all other employees receiving options.

Of the 234 employees who were granted reference options, 34 employees (receiving options relating to an aggregate of 449,922 shares of our common stock) were eligible for retirement under the terms of our 2005 Stock Option and Incentive Plan at the date of grant. By contrast, of the 149 employees who were granted options in connection with our May 4, 2007 grant of options, 41 employees (receiving options relating to an aggregate of 360,997 shares of our common stock) were eligible for retirement under the terms of our 2005 Stock Option and Incentive Plan at the date of grant, and, of the 121 employees who were granted options in connection with our May 1, 2006 grant of options, 32

employees (receiving options relating to an aggregate of 312,060 shares of our common stock) were eligible for retirement under the terms of our 2005 Stock Option and Incentive Plan at the date of grant. Some of these option grantees may have negotiated separate employment contracts that may have retirement provisions that differ from those in our 2005 Stock Option and Incentive Plan.

#### **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

#### HISTORICAL STOCK OPTION EXERCISE DATA

The tables, charts and graphs shown on the following pages are select summaries of our past large option grants and the exercise behavior of our employee recipients of those options. The data from which these select summaries are derived is available at www.auctions.zionsdirect.com. The information and materials found on that website are not part of this prospectus supplement and are not incorporated by reference into this prospectus supplement. While we have attempted to summarize this data in a useful way, you should determine its usefulness for yourself. Also, you may determine that alternative analyses of the data are more useful.

Our option grants and incentive option plans have varied in material ways over time. The composition of the group of employees in terms of specific individuals and rank and/or title of individuals has also varied over time. For example, prior to 2005, we granted a larger number of stock options to more varied groups of employees. To illustrate, we have granted:

•	1,473,270 stock options in 2001;
---	----------------------------------

- 1,577,550 stock options in 2002;
- 1,463,450 stock options in 2003; and
  - 1,699,750 stock options in 2004.

However, we granted only:

- 741,941 stock options in 2005
- 936,024 stock options in 2006; and
  - 994,180 stock options in 2007.

Our board of directors granted 1,542,238 stock options on April 24, 2008. See "Description of Reference Options."

The following shows the number of persons to whom we have granted stock option grants for the past five years:

- for 2004, 879 individuals;
- for 2005, 102 individuals, mainly executives and upper-level managers
- for 2006, 121 individuals, mainly executives and upper-level managers;
- for 2007, 149 individuals, mainly executives and upper-level managers; and
  - for 2008, 234 individuals, mainly executives and upper-level managers.

Also, we granted shares of restricted stock to 615 employees in 2005, 888 employees in 2006 and 982 employees in 2007, in each case mostly in middle management.

The pattern of exercise of the reference options may differ significantly from that of options granted in years 2004 and earlier, as the composition of the employee group receiving options changed significantly. Additionally, the terms of our option plans have varied over time with respect to, among other things, vesting, expiration dates and employment termination conditions. Because of these and other differences between our previous option grants and the April 24, 2008 grant of the reference options, you should consider this past exercise behavior as general background information only. You should not consider that it is necessarily indicative of future exercise behavior, nor should you necessarily rely on it for precise analysis.

The option grants summarized below represent summaries of the large option grants that we have made annually to select employees. From time to time throughout each year, we have also made additional, smaller option grants largely to newly-hired employees. We do not reflect these additional, smaller option grants in the tables, charts and graphs below. We also do not reflect

#### **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

option grants to our directors and option grants made pursuant to our "You're the Owner" program, which program has been discontinued. In 2000, we made two sizeable option grants, summaries for each of which we have provided below.

The summary for each grant contains brief information about the key vesting conditions and the length of time until expiration. You can find additional details regarding the option terms by reading our previous form of option award agreements and stock option plans under which we have granted the options described in this section, which we have filed with the SEC. See "Where You Can Find More Information" on page iv of this prospectus supplement.

Grant Summary Table. The "Grant Summary" table for each year (or, in the case of 2000, for the applicable grant date) contains summary information regarding the grant date, number of options granted, grant price, the number of options exercised and the number of options canceled. The "Grant Date" is the date on which our board of directors approved the granting of the options.

The "Grant Price" is the exercise, or "strike," price of the options granted and is equal to the closing market price of our common stock on the date of the option grant. The number of options exercised is equal to the number of the granted options exercised, and in the case of option grants that have not expired, it is the number exercised through March 31, 2008. "Terminated" options represent vested options that were not exercised (in the case of grants that have expired) or options that will not be exercised (in the case of options that have not expired). Typically, terminated options result upon termination of employment. Holders of ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> will not receive any payments with respect to any vested reference options that are terminated as a result of the termination of an employee's employment with us.

Exercise by Year Table. The "Exercise by Year" table for each year (or, in the case of 2000, for the applicable grant date) contains year-by-year summary information regarding the number of options exercised, the weighted average market value at which they were exercised, the dollar value realized from the exercises and the cumulative percentage of options exercised. The number of options exercised represents the options exercised during the calendar year. Note that due to vesting provisions and the expiration of the options on the option grant date anniversary, exercises will not occur throughout the entirety of the calendar year in the initial and final calendar year of the period during which the reference options may be exercised. We computed the figures in the "Weighted Average Market Value at Exercise" column by:

- multiplying each option exercised in a given year by the price at which it was exercised;
  - summing all such products for all of the exercises in the calendar year; and

dividing that sum by:

the number of options exercised during said calendar year.

We obtained the figures in the "\$Value Realized" column by multiplying, for each option exercise:

the number of options exercised

by the difference between:

- the price at which they were exercised, and
- the grant price (also known as the exercise, or "strike," price).

We arrived at the figures in the "Cumulative % Exercised" column for a given year by taking:

• the sum of all options exercised in that year and prior years,

divided by:

• the total number of options that we granted.

Cumulative Exercise Graph. The "Cumulative Exercise" graph for each year (or, in the case of 2000, for the applicable grant date) contains the cumulative options exercised over time, as well as the cumulative dollar value realized over time. The graphs start with

#### **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

the first anniversary of the grant date, which is the first date at which options may be exercised, and end with the expiration of the option period. We created the graph for the cumulative percentage of stock options exercised by plotting the numbers derived by:

- dividing the cumulative options exercised for each day covered by the graph, by
  - the total number of options granted.

We created the graph for cumulative dollar value realized by plotting the cumulative dollar value realized for each day covered by the graph. We obtained the amount of dollar value realized by multiplying for each option exercise:

• the number of options exercised,

by the difference between:

- the price at which those options were exercised, and
- the grant price (also known as the exercise, or "strike," price).

The cumulative dollar value realized is the sum of the dollar value realized starting with the first anniversary of the option grant up to the day represented by each point in the graph. For grants that have not yet expired, the scale for cumulative dollar value realized is chosen to scale the graph approximately in line with the cumulative percent exercised and should not be interpreted as indicative of the final cumulative value that will be realized. The final cumulative value that will be realized with respect to unexpired grants is unknown.

# TABLE OF CONTENTS

# Zions Bancorporation March 18, 1994 Option Grant

	Grant Terms			
Vesting Term	Vest 25% a four years Expire after	fter each of	first	
Grant Sun Grant Date	nmary Granted	Grant Price	Exercised	Terminated
3/18/1994	397,000	\$ 9.94	364,996	17,252
Exercise by	Year  Number  Exercised	Weighted Average Market Value at Exercise	\$ Value Realized	Cumulative %  Exercised
rear	Exercised	Exercise	Reanzed	Exercised
1995	17,988	\$ 14.36	\$ 79,52	3 4.5%
1996	43,696	\$ 20.30	\$ 452,70	
1997	85,430	\$ 32.78	\$ 1,950,82	
1998	101,213	\$ 50.32	\$ 4,086,67	
1999	79,273	\$ 63.46	\$ 4,242,49	1 82.5%
2000	37,396	\$ 48.03	\$ 1,424,38	0 91.9%
Total	364,996		\$ 12,236,60	

# TABLE OF CONTENTS

# Zions Bancorporation April 28, 1995 Option Grant

		Gra	ant Term	S		
Vesting Term	Vest 25% after each of first four years Expire after 6 years					
Grant Sur Grant Date	mmary Granted		Grant Price	F	Exercised	Terminated
4/28/1995	5 277,700	\$	10.66		260,920	3,005
Exercise by	Year	W	eighted			
		A	verage			Cumulative
	NT1		arket	ф	X7 - 1	%
Year	Number Exercised		alue at xercise		Value ealized	Exercised
1 Cai	Exclessed	ĽΛ	CICISC	IX	canzcu	Exclesed
1996	14,792	\$	19.96	\$	137,621	5.3%
1997	33,128	\$	33.57	\$	758,957	17.3%
1998	55,300	\$	50.58	\$	2,207,844	37.2%
1999	76,464	\$	63.04	\$	4,005,034	64.7%
2000	38,932	\$	44.73	\$	1,326,378	78.7%
2001	42,304	\$	53.20	\$	1,799,401	94.0%
Total	260,920			\$	10,235,235	

### **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

# Zions Bancorporation March 8, 1996 Option Grant

Grant Terms

Vesting Vest 25% after each of first

four years

Term Expire after 6 years

**Grant Summary** 

Grant Granted Grant Exercised Terminated

Date Price

3/8/1996 348,700 \$ 18.13 315,936 7,664

Exercise by Year

		Weighted		
		Average		
		Market		Cumulative
	Number	Value at	\$ Value	%
Year	Exercised	Exercise	Realized	Exercised
1007	20.722	<b>4.25.05</b>	<b>4</b> 250 762	5.00
1997	20,732	\$ 35.05	\$ 350,763	5.9%
1998	52,405	\$ 50.78	\$ 1,710,853	21.0%
1999	60,741	\$ 63.08	\$ 2,730,358	38.4%
2000	45,367	\$ 47.67	\$ 1,340,075	51.4%
2001	54,893	\$ 53.23	\$ 1,926,983	67.1%
2002	81,798	\$ 51.69	\$ 2,744,823	90.6%
Total	315,936		\$ 10,803,854	

# **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

# Zions Bancorporation March 21, 1997 Option Grant

Grant
Terms

Vesting Vest 25% after each of first

four years

Term Expire after 6 years

**Grant Summary** 

Grant		Grant		
Date	ate Granted Price		Exercised	Terminated
3/21/1997	456,100	\$ 31.00	405,084	12,091

Exercise by Year

LACICISC by	Tear	Weighted Average Market			Cumulative
	Number	Value at	\$	Value	%
Year	Exercised	Exercise	Re	ealized	Exercised
1998	29,811	\$ 51.81	\$	620,475	6.5%
1999	50,801	\$ 63.63	\$	1,657,426	17.7%
2000	26,501	\$ 49.76	\$	497,257	23.5%
2001	76,100	\$ 55.11	\$	1,834,524	40.2%
2002	73,722	\$ 50.92	\$	1,468,443	56.3%
2003	148,149	\$ 41.72	\$	1,588,215	88.8%
Total	405,084		\$	7,666,340	

### **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

# Zions Bancorporation April 24, 1998 Option Grant

Grant
Terms

Vesting Vest 25% after each of first

four years

Term Expire after 6 years

### **Grant Summary**

Grant		Grant		
Date	Granted	Price	Exercised	Terminated
4/24/1998	624,725	\$ 48.50	461,382	63,518

Weighted

# Exercise by Year

Year	Number Exercised	Average Market Value at Exercise	\$ Value Realized	Cumulative % Exercised
1999	19,148	\$ 63.14	\$ 280,383	3.1%
2000	5,311	\$ 55.64	\$ 37,907	3.9%
2001	57,644	\$ 56.77	\$ 476,595	13.1%
2002	35,598	\$ 55.07	\$ 234,027	18.8%
2003	127,250	\$ 58.18	\$ 1,231,706	39.2%
2004	216,431	\$ 57.73	\$ 1,998,545	73.9%
Total	461,382		\$ 4,259,163	

# TABLE OF CONTENTS

# Zions Bancorporation April 23, 1999 Option Grant

	Grant Terms						
Vesting	Vesting Vest 25% after each of first four years						
Term	Expire after 6 years						
Grant Sun	nmary	_					
Grant Date	Granted		rant rice	Exe	ercised	Terminated	
4/23/1999	746,750	\$	69.13	2	28,750	589,553	
Exercise by	Year	A	eighted verage arket			Cumulative	
Year	Number Exercised		alue at cercise		Value ealized	% Exercised	
2000	0		n/a	\$	0	0.0%	
2001	0		n/a	\$	0	0.0%	
2002	0		n/a	\$	0	0.0%	
2003	0		n/a	\$	0	0.0%	
2004	0		n/a	\$	0	0.0%	
2005 Total	28,750 28,750	\$	69.99	\$ \$	24,817 24,817	3.9%	
	•				•		
			S-34				

# TABLE OF CONTENTS

# Zions Bancorporation March 31, 2000 Option Grant

	Grant Terms						
Vesting	Vesting Vest one-third after each of first three years						
Term	•						
Grant Sun	nmary						
Grant			Grant				
Date	Granted		Price	F	Exercised	Terminated	
3/31/2000	947,500		\$ 41.63		780,805	45,358	
Exercise by	Year						
		W	eighted				
			verage				
		M	arket				
	Number	V	alue at	'	Value	Cumulative	
Year	Exercised	E	xercise	Re	alized	%Exercised	
2001	49,144	\$	55.72	\$	692,907	5.2%	
2002	81,606	\$	55.74	\$	1,151,915	13.8%	
2003	219,646	\$	56.57	\$	3,281,856	37.0%	
2004	161,142	\$	61.62	\$	3,222,213	54.0%	
2005	138,234	\$	71.65	\$	4,149,930	68.6%	
2006	45,527	\$	80.64	\$	1,776,266	73.4%	
2007	85,506	\$	85.48	\$	3,749,623	82.4%	
Total	780,805			\$	18,024,710		

# TABLE OF CONTENTS

# Zions Bancorporation May 26, 2000 Option Grant

	Grant Terms							
Vesting	Vest one-third after each of first							
Term	three years Expire after 7 years							
Grant Sum	ımary							
Grant		Grant						
Date	Granted	Price	Exercised	Terminated				
5/26/2000	352,250	\$ 44.94	86,218	17,199				
Exercise by	Year							
		Weighted						
		Average						
		Market						
		Value						
	Number	at .	\$ Value	Cumulative				
Year	Exercised	Exercise	Realized	%Exercised				
2001	13,339	\$ 56.72	\$ 157,1	29 3.8%				
2001	28,386	\$ 50.72	\$ 137,1					
2002	83,642	\$ 56.81	\$ 993,1					
2004	63,565	\$ 61.41	\$ 1,047,1					
2005	31,682	\$ 70.19	\$ 800,0					
2006	19,478	\$ 81.09	\$ 704,7					
2007	46,126	\$ 83.55	\$ 1,781,1					
Total	286,218		\$ 5,765,547					

### **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

### Zions Bancorporation April 20, 2001 Option Grant

Grant

2004

2005

2006

2007

2008

Total

	Terms					
Vesting Term	Vest one-third after each of first three years Expire after 7 years					
Grant Sum	mary	<b>C</b>				
Grant	C 1	Grant	Б : 1	TD : . 1		
Date	Granted	Price	Exercised	Terminated		
4/20/2001	1,473,270	\$ 54.35	24,097	64,404		
Exercise by Y	Year					
	- <b></b>	Weighted Average Market Value	I			
	Number	at	\$ Value	Cumulative		
Year	Exercised	Exercise	Realized	%Exercised		
2002	2,648	\$ 55.88	\$ 4,0	0.2%		
2003	90,827	\$ 59.72	\$ 487,3	6.3%		

S-37

348,693 \$ 62.91

99,567 \$ 83.67

0

\$ 70.57

\$ 80.64

n/a

\$

245,027

137,335

924,097

2,986,146

3,973,886

3,609,863

2,919,730

\$ 13,981,014

0

30.0%

46.6%

56.0%

62.7%

62.7%

# TABLE OF CONTENTS

# Zions Bancorporation April 26, 2002 Option Grant

Grant	
Terms	

Vesting Vest one-third after each of first

three years

Term Expire after 7 years

**Grant Summary** 

Grant		Grant		
Date	Granted	Price	Exercised	Terminated
4/26/2002	1.577.550	\$ 53.72	955,579	26.097

### Exercise by Year

Year	Number Exercised	Weighted Average Market Value at Exercise	Value ealized	Cumulative % Exercised
2003	64,510	\$ 60.43	\$ 432,709	4.1%
2004	258,272	\$ 62.71	\$ 2,322,646	20.5%
2005	370,094	\$ 70.90	\$ 6,356,924	43.9%
2006 2007	141,743	\$ 80.78	\$ 3,835,482	52.9%
	120,960	\$ 84.09	\$ 3,763,481	60.6%
2008 2009 Total	955,579	n/a	\$ 0 16,621,242	60.6%

# TABLE OF CONTENTS

# Zions Bancorporation January 22, 2003 Option Grant

	Grant Terms								
Vesting	Vest one-third after each of first								
Term	three years Expire after 7 years								
Grant Sum Grant	mary	Grant							
Date	Granted	Price	Exercised	Terminated					
1/22/2003	1,463,450	\$ 42.00	936,862	12,309					
Exercise by	y Year	<b>XX</b> - 1 - 1 - 4 - 4							
		Weighted Average Market							
••	Number	Value at	\$Value	Cumulative					
Year	Exercised	Exercise	Realized	%Exercised					
2004	220,278	\$ 61.11	\$ 4,209,737	15.1%					
2005	294,362	\$ 69.59	\$ 8,121,154	35.2%					
2006	260,506	\$ 80.49	\$ 10,025,774	53.0%					
2007	150,716	\$ 83.46	\$ 6,248,976	63.3%					
2008	11,000	\$ 54.27	\$ 134,935	64.0%					
2009 2010									
Total	936,862		\$ 28,740,574						

# TABLE OF CONTENTS

# Zions Bancorporation April 30, 2004 Option Grant

	Grant Terms									
Vesting		Vest one-third after each of first								
Term	•	three years Expire after 7 years								
Grant Sun Grant Date	nmary Granted	Grant Price	Exercised	Terminated						
4/30/2004	1,699,750	\$ 56.59	650,967	34,430						
Exercise by Year	Year  Number Exercised	Weighted Average Market Value at Exercise	\$ Value Realized	Cumulative %Exercised						
2005	192,083	\$ 71.57	\$ 2,878,023	11.3%						
2006	230,066	\$ 81.21	\$ 5,665,296	24.8%						
2007	228,818	\$ 82.67	\$ 5,966,879	38.3%						
2008 2009 2010 2011	0	n/a	0	38.3%						
Total	650,967		\$ 14,510,198							

# TABLE OF CONTENTS

# Zions Bancorporation May 6, 2005 Option Grant

	Grant Terms								
Vesting	Vest one-third after each of first three years								
Term	Expire after 7 years								
Grant Sur Grant Date	nmary Granted		Grant Price	E	xercised	Terminated			
5/6/2005	741,941	\$	5 70.79		65,880	20,797			
Exercise by	Year	A	eighted verage arket						
Year	Number Exercised	V	alue at xercise		/alue alized	Cumulative %Exercised			
2006	17,207	\$	81.96	\$	192,144	2.3%			
2007	48,673	\$	79.38	\$	646,142	8.9%			
2008 2009 2010 2011 2012	0		n/a		0	8.9%			
Total	65,880			\$	838,325				
			S-41						

# TABLE OF CONTENTS

# Zions Bancorporation May 1, 2006 Option Grant

	Grant Terms								
Vesting		Vest one-third after each of first							
Term	-	three years Expire after 7 years							
Grant Sum	nmary	C.	4						
Grant Date	Granted	Gra Pri		Eve	rcic	ed Te	erminated		
Date	Granted	FII	ce	EXC	icis	eu 1	emmateu		
5/1/2006	936,024	\$	81.15 566			18,263			
Exercise by	Year								
			Weig						
			Aver Mark	_					
	Number		Value		\$ 1	/alue	Cumulative		
Year	Exercised	1		cise	Ψ.	alized			
2007		566		.99		477	0.1%		
2008		0		n/a		0	0.1%		
2009									
2010									
2011									
2012									
2013		<b>.</b>			Φ.				
Total	;	566			\$	477			

## **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

# Zions Bancorporation May 4, 2007 Option Grant

Grant Terms

Vesting Vest one-third after each of first

three years

Term Expire after 7 years

**Grant Summary** 

Grant Grant

Date Granted Price Exercised Terminated

5/4/2007 994,180 \$ 83.25 0

Exercise by Year

Weightd Average

Market Value at

	Number		\$ Value	Cumulative %
Year	Exercised	Exercise	Realized	Exercised
2008				
2009				
2010				
2011				
2012				
2013				
2014				
Total	0		\$0	

#### **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

#### VALUATION OF RECENT STOCK OPTION GRANTS

Prior to January 1, 2006, we accounted for our share-based compensation, including our stock options, under Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25 ("APB 25"), Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees, and related Interpretations, as permitted by SFAS No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation. Accordingly, we did not record any compensation expense with respect to stock options granted prior to 2006, as the exercise price of the options was equal to the quoted market price of our common stock on the date of grant.

Effective January 1, 2006, we adopted SFAS No. 123R, Share-Based Payment, which requires all share-based payments to employees, including grants of employee stock options, to be recognized in the statement of income based on their fair values. This accounting utilizes a "modified grant-date" approach in which the fair value of an equity award is estimated on the grant date without regard to service or performance vesting conditions. We adopted SFAS No. 123R using the "modified prospective" transition method. Under this transition method, compensation expense is recognized beginning January 1, 2006 based on the requirements of SFAS No. 123R for all share-based payments granted after December 31, 2005, and based on the requirements of SFAS No. 123 for all awards granted to employees prior to January 1, 2006 that remain unvested as of that date.

SFAS No. 123R generally recognizes three approaches to stock option valuation:

- a closed-form model such as the Black-Scholes option-pricing formula;
  - the binomial (lattice) method; and
    - market-based valuation.

We have used the Black-Scholes method to estimate the value of stock options and the pro forma share-based compensation. We believe that the Black-Scholes method is currently the most widely-used method of stock option valuation, and we have determined that it is the most appropriate method for our financial reporting purposes, pending the development of an acceptable market-based approach. Our ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> are designed to provide a basis for market-based valuation of stock options. We believe a market-based approach, such as that intended to be demonstrated by this offering of ESOARS<sup>TM</sup>, may ultimately provide a viable, if not superior, alternative to the Black-Scholes and binomial methods for valuing stock options.

The Black-Scholes model estimates the value of a stock option using various assumptions. Use of such assumptions is subjective and requires judgment. The more significant assumptions used to apply this model include:

- a weighted average risk-free interest rate;
  - a weighted average expected life;
  - an expected dividend yield; and
    - an expected volatility.

On October 22, 2007, we announced that we had received notification from the SEC that our patent-pending ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> were sufficiently designed as a market-based method for valuing employee stock options under SFAS 123R. The SEC staff did not object to our view that the market-clearing price of ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> in our auction conducted May 4-7, 2007 was a reasonable estimate of the fair value of the underlying employee stock options.

We used the results of that auction to value our employee stock options granted on May 4, 2007. The value established was \$12.06 per option, which we estimated as approximately 14% below our Black-Scholes model valuation on that date. We used the ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> value for the remainder of 2007 in determining compensation expense for grants of stock options in 2007, and recorded the related estimated future ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> settlement obligation as a liability in the balance sheet. The 2007 stock option expense for these grants was \$2.7 million. The accounting for stock option compensation under SFAS 123R decreased income before income taxes in 2007 by \$15,828,000.

#### **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

Using the Black-Scholes model, in 2006, we recorded compensation expense of \$17,542,000 for stock options and reported in the footnotes to our 2006 financial statements that the pro forms share-based compensation expense of our stock options granted in 2005 and 2004, for all stock options awarded during those years, net of related tax effects, is as follows:

Year of Stock Options Grant	Sh Co	o Forma are-Based mpensation pense
2005	\$	9,793,000
2004	\$	12,503,000

The following table summarizes the weighted average of fair value and the significant assumptions used in applying the Black-Scholes option-pricing model to compute the fair value of share-based compensation expense for our stock options granted in the years indicated:

	2007*	200	)6	200	5	200	4
Weighted average of fair value for options granted Weighted average assumption used:	\$ 15.15	\$	15.02	\$	15.33	\$	11.85
Expected dividend yield Expected	2.0%		2.0%	)	2.0%	)	2.0%
volatility Risk-free interest	17.0%		18.0%	)	25.0%	)	26.8%
rate	4.42%		4.95%	)	3.95%	)	3.11%
Expected life (in years)	5.4		4.1		4.1		3.8

<sup>\*</sup>Relates to all stock options granted in 2007 other than the 994,180 options underlying the ESOARS<sup>TM</sup>, Series 2007.

Presented under the section "Historical Stock Option Exercise Data" in this prospectus supplement is information regarding specified historical option grants. In particular, grant and exercise information regarding only some of our large annual grants is presented in that section. In contrast, the information presented above in this section and reported in our financial statements pertains to all stock options granted during each year represented.

The following table is included for reference only and contains the weighted average grant price (or strike or exercise price) for all stock options granted in the respective years:

		Weighted
	Total	Average
	Options	Grant
Year	Granted	Price
2007	1,054,722	\$ 82.82
2006	979,274	\$ 81.14
2005	912,905	\$ 71.37

2004

2,279,621 \$ 57.28

The Black-Scholes fair values shown above do not factor in the possibility that not all granted options will be exercised due to forfeiture, cancellation, termination, failure to exercise or other factors. Investors in ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> should consider both the valuation of the reference options granted as well as the number of options that will be exercised by our employees after vesting, because payments, if any, to holders of ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> are determined not only by our stock price movements, which the option valuation attempts to capture, but also by the actual exercise of the reference options by employees.

Under SFAS No. 123R, we are also required to estimate the pre-vesting forfeiture rate of our granted options in order to estimate our share-based compensation expense. The pre-vesting forfeiture rate is used to adjust the option grant value for the possibility that prior to vesting some options will not be exercised when an employee's employment is terminated and the options are canceled as a result. We then adjust this estimate over the vesting period to reconcile the original estimate to our actual experience. The effect of forfeiture of reference options prior to vesting on ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> is intended to be eliminated by adjusting payments in the vesting period for known pre-vesting forfeitures, by making an additional payment, if necessary, for payments made relating to the vesting period and by adjusting upward the payments, if any, made during the post-vesting period. See "Description of Our ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> - Calculation of Payments."

#### **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

For additional information regarding the calculation of our share-based compensation expense using the Black-Scholes method, see the section entitled "Share-Based Compensation" on pages 42 and 43 of the Annual Report on Form 10-K for our fiscal year ended December 31, 2007, and Note 17 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements also included in that Annual Report on Form 10-K and the section entitled "Share-Based Compensation" on pages 38 and 39 of the Annual Report on Form 10-K for our fiscal year ended December 31, 2006, and Note 17 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements also included in that Annual Report on Form 10-K.

There are many approaches to valuing stock options recognized by financial analysts in addition to those described above. Each method has its perceived strengths and weaknesses, and most rely on subjective judgments and the application of various assumptions that may or may not reflect the actual performance of stock options and relevant markets. Prospective investors are urged to make their own judgments and determinations as to the future performance of the reference options and the ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> in deciding whether to bid for the ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> and, if so, at what price.

#### **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

#### MATERIAL UNITED STATES FEDERAL INCOME TAX CONSEQUENCES

The following is a summary of the material United States federal income tax consequences as of the date hereof expected to be applicable to the purchase, ownership and disposition of our ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> by U.S. Holders (as defined below), other than those in special situations or subject to special U.S. federal income tax rules. Except to the extent specified herein, any discussion herein of matters of U.S. federal income tax law or legal conclusions under U.S. federal income tax law constitutes the opinion of our counsel, Morrison & Foerster LLP.

Except where noted herein, this discussion addresses only ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> held as capital assets within the meaning of section 1221 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code"). Under section 1221 of the Code, a capital asset is, generally speaking, property that you hold for investment purposes. In addition, as noted above, this discussion does not address consequences that may apply to an investment in our ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> by investors in special situations or that are subject to special U.S. federal income tax rules. In particular, special U.S. federal income tax considerations may apply to an investment in our ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> by investors that are dealers or traders in securities, banks, tax-exempt investors, insurance companies, partnerships and other pass-through entities, non-resident alien individuals, non-U.S. corporations, other non-U.S. investors, and investors that have a functional currency other than the U.S. dollar. In addition, this summary does not describe any U.S. tax consequences of the purchase, ownership or disposition of our ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> arising under the laws of any state, locality or taxing jurisdiction other than the United States federal government. In general, this summary assumes that a holder acquires our ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> at original issuance and does not hold our ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> as part of a hedge, straddle, conversion transaction within the meaning of section 1258 of the Code, or other integrated investment constituting of one or more ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> Units and one or more other positions.

This summary is based on the United States tax laws, regulations, rulings, judicial and administrative decisions, and other authorities in effect or available on the date of this prospectus supplement. All of the foregoing are subject to change, which change may apply retroactively and could affect the continued validity of this summary.

Prospective purchasers of our ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> are urged to consult their own tax advisors as to U.S. federal income tax consequences in light of their particular situations of the purchase, ownership and disposition of our ESOARS<sup>TM</sup>, including the possible application of state, local, non-U.S. or other tax laws.

As used herein, the term "U.S. Holder" means a beneficial owner of our ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> who is, or is treated for U.S. federal income tax purposes as, a citizen or resident of the United States, a corporation or other entity created in or organized under the laws of the United States, or an estate or trust (other than a "foreign estate" or a "foreign trust," each as defined in the Code). If a partnership (including any entity treated as a partnership for U.S. federal income tax purposes) is a beneficial owner of our ESOARS<sup>TM</sup>, the U.S. federal income tax treatment of a partner in the partnership will generally depend on the status of the partner and the activities of the partnership. Partnerships considering the purchase of our ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> are urged to consult their own tax advisors regarding the potential consequences to their partners of an investment in our ESOARS<sup>TM</sup>.

#### U.S. Federal Income Tax Characterization of Our ESOARS<sup>TM</sup>

There are no cases, Treasury regulations, revenue rulings or other binding authorities that directly address the U.S. federal income tax characterization of our ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> or of securities with terms substantially the same as those of our ESOARS<sup>TM</sup>. Accordingly, our counsel, Morrison & Foerster LLP, is unable to render an opinion as to that characterization or as to the proper method of reporting income and loss with respect to our ESOARS<sup>TM</sup>. In the absence of guidance, we intend to file information returns with the Internal Revenue Service ("IRS") reporting income with respect to our ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> settled in cash under a method analogous to the method applicable to income with respect to

cash-settled call options and to report any income with respect to ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> settled for stock under a method analogous to the method for stock-settled stock appreciation rights. However, the proper U.S. tax characterization of our ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> is uncertain, and therefore it is uncertain whether such method of reporting payments on our ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> would be proper. Other federal income tax characterizations of, and methods of reporting payments on, our ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> are possible, which, if they applied, could materially adversely affect the amount, timing and character of income or loss properly reportable with respect to our ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> as compared to the method reported by us. In general, a U.S. taxpayer may rely only on formal written opinions meeting specific regulatory requirements in order to avoid imposition of U.S. federal tax penalties. This summary does not meet those requirements. Therefore, if an alternative treatment of our ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> applied, a U.S. Holder could be subject to U.S. federal tax penalties unless the holder obtained appropriate opinions from its own tax advisor and/or met certain other requirements.

#### **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

Because of the uncertainty of treatment of income and loss in respect our ESOARS<sup>TM</sup>, prospective investors in our ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> are urged to consult their own tax advisors as to the proper classification and reporting of income and loss with respect to our ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> for U.S. federal income tax purposes.

Tax Treatment of U.S. Holders Under Our Proposed Tax Treatment for Holders

Under the method of reporting income that we will adopt for our ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> that is analogous to the method applicable to payments with respect to cash-settled call options or stock-settled stock appreciation rights, a U.S. Holder of our ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> would treat our ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> as a series of cash-settled call options or stock-settled stock appreciation rights exercisable by the holder for a portion of the number of shares of our common stock as relate to the reference options, but which call options or stock appreciation rights are each exercisable for a particular share only upon the exercise by the relevant employee of the related stock option. Thus, each cash-settled call option or stock-settled stock appreciation rights embedded in an ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> Unit would be treated in a manner similar to a "European" style option that is exercisable only at a specific time.

Under this method, a U.S. Holder should be required to allocate the amount paid for our ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> as option premium paid with respect to each stock option represented by our ESOARS<sup>TM</sup>. Because all of the reference options have the same exercise price and term, if we are required to take a position as to the appropriate allocation of a U.S. Holder's purchase price, we intend to take the position that the holder's purchase price should be allocated ratably to each reference option represented by the holder's ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> on the basis of the number of shares of our common stock represented by such reference option. Under this method, on receipt of a payment of cash or shares of our common stock with respect to our ESOARS<sup>TM</sup>, a U.S. Holder should recognize gain equal to the amount of the payment or fair market value of shares issued in settlement of the ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> less the portion of the purchase price paid for our ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> that was allocated to the related stock option that was deemed to have been exercised. In addition, the U.S. Holder generally should recognize a loss at the termination of the U.S. Holder's ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> in the amount of any remaining purchase price attributable to stock options represented by our ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> that were not deemed exercised during the term of the ESOARS<sup>TM</sup>.

Although the character of gain recognized with respect to a cash-settled call option on stock would normally be treated as capital gain, we expect it is more appropriate and intend to file information returns with the Internal Revenue Service reporting income and loss realized by a U.S. Holder with respect to our ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> as ordinary income and loss.

Sale, Exchange or Other Disposition of Our ESOARS<sup>TM</sup>

Under the method of reporting payments on our ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> analogous to the method applicable to payments with respect to cash-settled call options, a U.S. Holder would recognize gain or loss on the sale, exchange or other taxable disposition of our ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> in an amount equal to the difference between the amount realized on the disposition and the U.S. Holder's remaining tax basis in the ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> at the time of disposition (i.e., the portion of the U.S. Holder's initial tax basis that was allocable to the stock options that remain unexercised at the time of the disposition). Such gain or loss should be capital gain or capital loss (and should be long-term capital gain or capital loss if the ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> were held for more than one year at the time of the disposition).

Alternative U.S. Federal Tax Characterizations of ESOARS<sup>TM</sup>

As stated above, our ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> may be properly characterized, and income and loss with respect to ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> may be properly reported, for U.S. federal income tax purposes under a different method. For example, income and loss with respect to our ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> may be properly reported under a method analogous to the method applicable to income and loss with respect to cash-settled forward contracts. Under such a method, the tax consequences for a U.S. Holder

should generally be similar to the treatment of our ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> under the cash-settled call option method described above, although neither the proper recovery of the amount paid for our ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> nor the character of income or loss under this characterization is clear.

Similar to the method applicable to cash-settled forward contracts, our ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> could be treated as "prepaid forward contracts" because, among other things, the holders of our ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> make an upfront payment for their ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> Units. On December 7, 2007, the IRS released Notice 2008-2 (the "Notice") seeking comments from the public on the taxation of financial instruments currently taxed as prepaid forward contracts. According to the Notice, the IRS and U.S. Treasury Department ("Treasury") are considering whether a holder of such instruments should be required to accrue ordinary income on a current basis, regardless of whether any payments are made prior to maturity. The IRS and Treasury are also considering additional issues, including whether additional gain or loss from such instruments should be treated as ordinary or capital, whether foreign holders should be subject to withholding tax on any deemed income accruals, whether Section 1260 of the Code, concerning certain "constructive ownership transactions," applies or should apply to such instruments, and whether any of these determinations depend

#### **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

on the nature of the underlying asset. It is not possible to determine what guidance the IRS and Treasury will ultimately issue, if any. Any future guidance could affect the amount, timing and character of income, gain, or loss in respect of our ESOARS<sup>TM</sup>, possibly with retroactive effect.

In addition to the Notice, legislation recently was introduced in the U.S. Congress which, if enacted, could also impact the taxation of ESOARS<sup>TM</sup>. Under the proposed legislation, a United States holder that acquires a "prepaid derivative contract", as defined in the legislation, would be required to include income on a current basis. It is not possible to predict whether the legislation will be enacted in its proposed form or whether any other legislative action may be taken in the future that may adversely affect the taxation of instruments such as our ESOARS<sup>TM</sup>. Further, it is possible that any such legislation, if enacted, may apply on a retroactive basis.

Although an argument could be made that our ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> should be treated as debt for U.S. federal tax purposes, we do not believe that ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> should be so treated because amounts to be paid with respect to our ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> are entirely contingent.

Similarly, we do not believe that our ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> should be treated as notional principal contracts (i.e., swaps) because they do not provide for periodic payments based on an index and a single notional amount. However, the Internal Revenue Service could assert that position.

Finally, in light of the absence of relevant authorities, it may be appropriate to report income and deductions with respect to our ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> under general rules for financial instruments for which applicable Treasury regulations do not prescribe specific rules. If so treated, a U.S. Holder may be entitled to use a "wait-and-see" approach to recognition of income. That is, the U.S. Holder should report income when payments are made on our ESOARS<sup>TM</sup>, and probably only after the payments exceed the amount paid for our ESOARS<sup>TM</sup>.

Other potential characterizations of our ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> and methods of reporting income and loss with respect to our ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> are possible. U.S. Holders are urged to consult their tax advisors regarding the potential application of these and other alternative methods of reporting income and loss with respect to our ESOARS<sup>TM</sup>.

United States Taxation of Non-U.S. Holders

As used herein, a "Non-U.S. Holder" is a beneficial owner of ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> that is neither a U.S. Holder nor a partnership, an entity treated for U.S. federal tax purposes as a partnership, or an entity organized in or under the laws of the United States, any State thereof or the District of Columbia.

It is not clear whether income or any payments with respect to ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> would be treated as fixed or determinable, annual or periodical gains, profits or income of the kind that is subject to U.S. withholding tax. In the absence of clear authority, we intend to withhold U.S. tax at a 30 percent rate from payments, including stock payments, made on our ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> to a Non-U.S. Holder, unless

the Non-U.S. Holder is eligible for benefits of an income tax treaty providing for an exemption from U.S. tax on such income and delivers to us or our paying agent a properly completed Internal Revenue Service Form W-8BEN establishing such exemption, or

the income with respect to ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> is effectively connected with the conduct of a trade or business in the United States by the Non-U.S. Holder and the Non-U.S. Holder delivers to us or our paying agent a properly completed Internal Revenue Service Form W-8ECI certifying to such treatment.

Information Reporting and Backup Withholding

Generally, payments made on our ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> or stock issued in settlement of our ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> to a U.S. Holder, and the proceeds of a sale or other disposition of our ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> by a U.S. Holder, will be subject to information reporting requirements unless the U.S. Holder is a corporation or other "exempt recipient." In addition, payments to U.S. Holders may be subject to backup withholding (currently at a rate of 28%) unless the U.S. Holder provides to us or our paying agent an Internal Revenue Service Form W-9 or otherwise establishes an exemption.

## **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

Information reporting requirements and backup withholding generally will not apply to payments made to a Non-U.S. Holder, provided that the Non-U.S. Holder certifies to its non-U.S. status (generally by providing to us or our paying agent a properly completed Internal Revenue Service Form W-8BEN) or otherwise establishes an exemption.

We strongly urge you to consult your own tax advisor with respect to all aspects of the United States federal, state, local and foreign tax treatment of the purchase, ownership and disposition of our ESOARS<sup>TM</sup>.

#### **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

#### CERTAIN ERISA CONSIDERATIONS

No ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> Unit may be purchased by or transferred to any "employee benefit plan" within the meaning of Section 3(3) of ERISA (whether or not subject to ERISA, and including, without limitation, foreign or government plans) or by any "plan" described in Section 4975(e)(1) of the Code, or any entity whose underlying assets include plan assets of any of the foregoing (each, a "Benefit Plan Investor"). Any purported purchase or transfer of our ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> in violation of the foregoing restrictions shall be null and void ab initio. Each bidder who purchases the ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> will be deemed to have represented, warranted and acknowledged to us to such effect. No ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> Units may be transferred to a Benefit Plan Investor or an entity using Benefit Plan Investor assets. Each investor in an ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> Unit will be deemed to represent, warrant and covenant that it will not sell, pledge or otherwise transfer such security in violation of the foregoing.

## LEGAL INVESTMENT CONSIDERATIONS

Institutions whose investment activities are subject to legal investment laws and regulations or to review by certain regulatory authorities may be subject to restrictions on investments in our ESOARS<sup>TM</sup>. Any such institution should consult its legal advisors in determining whether and to what extent there may be restrictions on its ability to invest in our ESOARS<sup>TM</sup>. Without limiting the foregoing, any financial institution that is subject to the jurisdiction of the Comptroller of Currency, the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System, the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, the Office of Thrift Supervision, the National Credit Union Administration, any state insurance commission, or any other federal or state agencies with similar authority should review any applicable rules, guidelines and regulations prior to purchasing our ESOARS<sup>TM</sup>.

We do not make any representation as to the proper characterization of the ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> for legal investment or other purposes, or as to the ability of particular investors to purchase our ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> for legal investment or other purposes, or as to the ability of particular investors to purchase our ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> under applicable investment restrictions. The uncertainties described above (and any unfavorable future determinations concerning legal investment or financial institution regulatory characteristics of our ESOARS<sup>TM</sup>) may affect the liquidity of our ESOARS<sup>TM</sup>. Accordingly, all institutions whose activities are subject to legal investment laws and regulations, regulatory capital requirements or review by regulatory authorities should consult their own legal advisors in determining whether and to what extent our ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> are subject to investment, capital or other restrictions.

#### **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

#### LEGAL OWNERSHIP AND BOOK-ENTRY ISSUANCE

We will issue the ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> in book-entry form only. This means that ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> will be represented by one or more fully-registered global certificates representing the entire issuance of ESOARS<sup>TM</sup>. The ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> will be deposited with, or on behalf of, The Depository Trust Company, which we refer to as "DTC" or the "depositary," and will be registered in the name of Cede & Co., a nominee of DTC.

Cede & Co. will be the only registered holder of the ESOARS<sup>TM</sup>. Consequently, because the ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> will be issued only in global form, we will recognize only DTC as the holder of the ESOARS<sup>TM</sup>, and we will make all payments on the ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> to DTC. DTC will pass along the payments it receives to its participants, which in turn will pass the payments along to their customers who are the beneficial owners. DTC and its participants do so under agreements they have made with one another or with their customers; they are not obligated to do so under the terms of the ESOARS<sup>TM</sup>. You will not own ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> directly. Instead, you will own beneficial interests in a global security, through a bank, broker or other financial institution that participates in DTC's book-entry system or holds an interest through a participant.

A global security will not be transferred to or registered in the name of anyone other than DTC or its nominee, unless special termination situations arise. We describe those situations below under "- Special Situations When a Global Security Will Be Terminated." As a result of these arrangements, the depositary, or its nominee, will be the sole registered owner and holder of all ESOARS<sup>TM</sup>, and holders will be permitted to own only beneficial interests in a global security. Beneficial interests must be held by means of an account with a broker, bank or other financial institution that in turn has an account with the depositary or with another institution that does. Thus, you will not be a holder of the security, but only an indirect owner of a beneficial interest in the global security. In the event that termination of the global security occurs, we may issue the ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> through another book-entry clearing system or decide that the ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> may no longer be held through any book-entry clearing system.

#### Special Considerations for Global Securities

As an indirect owner, a holder's rights relating to a global security will be governed by the account rules of the depositary, those of the investor's financial institution (e.g., Euroclear and Clearstream), as well as general laws relating to securities transfers. We do not recognize this type of investor or any intermediary as a holder of securities and instead deal only with the depositary that holds the global security.

#### You should be aware of the following:

- you cannot cause the ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> to be registered in your own name and cannot obtain non-global certificates for your interest in the ESOARS<sup>TM</sup>, except in the special situations we describe below;
- you will be an indirect holder and must look to your own bank or broker for payments on the ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> and protection of your legal rights relating to the ESOARS<sup>TM</sup>, as we describe above in this section;
- you may not be able to sell interests in the ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> to some insurance companies and other institutions that are required by law to own their securities in non-book-entry form;
- you may not be able to pledge your interest in a global security in circumstances where certificates representing the securities must be delivered to the lender or other beneficiary of the pledge in order for the pledge to be effective;

•

the depositary's policies and those of any participant in the depositary's system or other intermediary (e.g., Euroclear or Clearstream) through which that institution holds security interests, which may change from time to time, will govern payments, transfers, exchanges and other matters relating to your interest in a global security. We will have no responsibility for any aspect of the depositary's policies or actions or records of ownership interests in a global security. We also do not supervise the depositary in any way;

the depositary will require that those who purchase and sell interests in a global security within its book-entry system use immediately-available funds, and your broker or bank may require you to do so as well; and

#### **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

financial institutions that participate in DTC's book-entry system and through which you hold your interest in a global security (including Euroclear and Clearstream) may also have their own policies affecting payments, notices and other matters relating to securities. For example, if you hold an interest in a global security through Euroclear or Clearstream, Euroclear or Clearstream, as applicable, will require those who purchase and sell interests in that security through them to use immediately-available funds and comply with other policies and procedures, including deadlines for giving instructions as to transactions that are to be effected on a particular day. There may be more than one financial intermediary in the chain of ownership for an investor. We do not monitor, and are not responsible for, the policies or actions of any of those intermediaries.

Special

Situations When a Global Security Will Be Terminated

In a few special situations described below, a global security will be terminated and interests in it will be exchanged for certificates in non-global form representing ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> Units. After that exchange, the choice of whether to hold your ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> directly or in street name will be up to you. You must consult your own bank or broker to find out how to have your interests in a global security transferred on termination to your own name, so that you will be a holder.

The special situations for termination of a global security are as follows:

DTC notifies us in writing that it is unwilling or unable to continue acting as the depositary, or DTC has ceased to be a clearing agency registered under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, and in either case we fail to appoint a successor depositary within 60 days after the date of such notice from DTC;

we determine that such global security should be exchanged for securities in definitive registered form representing ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> Units, and we deliver written notice to that effect to DTC; or

• there has occurred and is continuing an event of default and our paying agent has received a written request from DTC to issue securities in definitive registered form representing ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> Units.

If a global security is terminated, only DTC, and not we, will be responsible for deciding the names of the institutions in whose names the securities represented by the global security will be registered and, therefore, who will be the holders of those securities.

#### LEGAL MATTERS

The validity of the ESOARS™ offered by this prospectus supplement and certain legal matters with respect to federal income tax will be passed upon for us by Morrison & Foerster LLP, Los Angeles, California. Morrison & Foerster LLP will rely upon the opinion of Callister Nebeker & McCullough, a Professional Corporation, Salt Lake City, Utah, as to matters of Utah law, and Callister Nebeker & McCullough will rely upon the opinion of Morrison & Foerster LLP as to matters of New York law.

The validity of the common stock to be issued by us in connection with payments, if any, made in respect of our ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> will be passed upon for us by Callister Nebeker & McCullough.

#### **EXPERTS**

Ernst & Young LLP, independent registered public accounting firm, has audited our consolidated financial statements included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2007 and the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2007, as set forth in their reports, which are incorporated in this prospectus supplement by reference. Our consolidated financial statements and our management's assessment of

the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting are incorporated by reference in reliance on Ernst & Young LLP's reports, given on their authority as experts in accounting and auditing.

# TABLE OF CONTENTS

# ANNEX A

## FORM OF GLOBAL CERTIFICATE

Annex A

#### **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

CUSIP 989701 404 180,000 UNITS

# GLOBAL CERTIFICATE ZIONS BANCORPORATION EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTION APPRECIATION RIGHTS SECURITIES, SERIES 2008

evidencing the right to receive certain payments from Zions Bancorporation, a Utah corporation, upon the exercise from time to time of stock options comprising a reference pool of stock options to purchase common stock of the Company issued by the Company to certain of its employees (the options comprising this reference pool, the "Reference Options"). The Reference Options are listed and described in Exhibit A hereto.

Issue Date: April 30, 2008

First Payment Final Payment

Date:

July 15, 2009 July 15,

2015

Issuing Agent, Paying Agent and Registrar: Zions First National Bank

Certificate No. 1

ZIONS BANCORPORATION [SEAL]

Name Title

ZIONS FIRST NATIONAL BANK, as Issuing Agent, Paying Agent and Registrar

Name Title

Annex A - Page 1

#### **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

## ZIONS BANCORPORATION EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTION APPRECIATION RIGHTS SECURITIES, SERIES 2008

THIS GLOBAL CERTIFICATE DOES NOT REPRESENT AN INTEREST IN ZIONS BANCORPORATION, ANY OF ITS AFFILIATES OR ANY OF THE REFERENCE OPTIONS. NEITHER THIS CERTIFICATE NOR ANY PAYMENTS HEREUNDER ARE INSURED BY THE FEDERAL DEPOSIT INSURANCE CORPORATION OR GUARANTEED BY ANY AGENCY OR INSTRUMENTALITY OF THE UNITED STATES OR ANY OTHER PERSON.

THIS GLOBAL CERTIFICATE IS HELD BY THE DEPOSITORY TRUST COMPANY (55 WATER STREET, NEW YORK, NEW YORK) ("DTC") OR ITS NOMINEE IN CUSTODY FOR THE BENEFIT OF THE BENEFICIAL OWNERS HEREOF. UNLESS AND UNTIL IT IS EXCHANGED IN WHOLE OR IN PART FOR SECURITIES IN DEFINITIVE REGISTERED FORM, THIS CERTIFICATE MAY NOT BE TRANSFERRED EXCEPT: (I) AS A WHOLE BY DTC TO A NOMINEE OF DTC; (II) BY A NOMINEE OF DTC TO DTC OR ANOTHER NOMINEE OF DTC; OR (III) BY DTC OR ANY SUCH NOMINEE TO A SUCCESSOR DEPOSITORY OR A NOMINEE OF SUCH SUCCESSOR DEPOSITORY, ALL WITH THE PRIOR WRITTEN CONSENT OF THE COMPANY.

UNLESS THIS GLOBAL CERTIFICATE IS PRESENTED BY AN AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OF DTC TO THE COMPANY OR ITS AGENT FOR REGISTRATION OF TRANSFER, EXCHANGE OR PAYMENT, AND ANY CERTIFICATE ISSUED IS REGISTERED IN THE NAME OF CEDE & CO. OR SUCH OTHER NAME AS MAY BE REQUESTED BY AN AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OF DTC (AND ANY PAYMENT IS MADE TO CEDE & CO. OR SUCH OTHER ENTITY AS MAY BE REQUESTED BY AN AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OF DTC), ANY TRANSFER, PLEDGE OR OTHER USE HEREOF FOR VALUE OR OTHERWISE BY OR TO ANY PERSON IS WRONGFUL INASMUCH AS THE REGISTERED OWNER HEREOF, CEDE & CO., HAS AN INTEREST HEREIN.

This certifies that Cede & Co. is the registered owner of 180,000 units of Zions Bancorporation Employee Stock Option Appreciation Rights Securities, Series 2008 (the "ESOARS<sup>TM</sup>," and each unit thereof, an "ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> Unit" evidenced by this Global Certificate (this "Certificate").

Section 1. Definitions. Unless otherwise defined herein, capitalized terms shall have the respective meanings set forth in this Section 1.

- (a) "Additional Payment Amount" means the number of ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> Units then outstanding multiplied by the excess, if any, of (i) the aggregate Net Realized Value realized during the Vesting Period divided by the number of shares of Company Common Stock underlying Reference Options that have vested and have not been modified or cancelled as of the end of the Vesting Period, over (ii) the sum of the amounts previously paid in respect of each ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> Unit during the Vesting Period.
- (b) "Additional Payment Date" means July 15, 2011 (or, if such day is not a Business Day, the next Business Day).
- (c) "Annual Vesting Periods" means the three consecutive 12-month vesting periods (each an "Annual Vesting Period") of the Reference Options commencing on April 24, 2008.

- (d) "Business Day" means any day other than (a) a Saturday or Sunday, or (b) a day on which commercial banks in each of New York, New York and, if applicable, the city in which the principal office of the Paying Agent is located are authorized or obligated by law or executive order to be closed.
- (e) "Certificate" is defined in the introductory paragraph immediately above this Section 1.
- (f) "Certificate Register is defined in Section 2.
- (g) "Company" means Zions Bancorporation, a Utah corporation.
- (h) "Company Common Stock" means the common stock of the Company, no par value per share.
- (i) "DTC" means The Depository Trust Company.

Annex A – Page 2

#### **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

- (j) "Event of Default" means either of the following events:
- (i) the failure to make any payment as set forth in Section 3 or Section 4 below when the same becomes due and payable, and such failure continues for a period of 30 days; or
- (ii) the failure to comply with any other covenant contained herein, which failure continues for a period of 30 days after the Company receives written notice specifying the default (and demanding that such default be remedied) from the Holders of at least a majority of the ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> Units then outstanding.
- (k) "ESOARSTM" and "ESOARSTM Units" are defined in the introductory paragraph immediately above this Sectio 1.
- (l) "Holder" means any person or entity in whose name any ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> are registered, as determined as of the close of business on the applicable Record Date.
- (m) "Independent Valuation Agent" means any independent valuation agent designated by the Company.
- (n) "Net Realized Value" means, for a particular Payment Period, (i) the amount, if any, by which (x) the trading price per share of Company Common Stock on The Nasdaq Stock Market (or other national securities exchange on which the Company Common Stock is then traded) at the time of exercise of a Reference Option, exceeds (y) the exercise price of such Reference Option, multiplied by (ii) the number of shares of Company Common Stock as to which such Reference Option was exercised on that date. If at the time of exercise, the Company Common Stock is not listed on The Nasdaq Stock Market, the over-the-counter market or any other national securities exchange, the "trading price per share of Company Common Stock" referred to in the immediately preceding sentence shall be replaced with a fair market value per share of Company Common Stock as determined in good faith by the Company's board of directors or an Independent Valuation Agent.
- (o) "No Vesting Payment Amount" means the number of ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> Units then outstanding multiplied by \$[], together with interest in respect of such amount at a rate of 4.0% per annum for the period from the Issue Date to (but not including) the No Vesting Payment Date.
- (p) "No Vesting Payment Date" means July 15, 2009 (or, if such day is not a Business Day, the next Business Day).
- (q) "Paying Agent" means Zions First National Bank, as Issuing Agent, Paying Agent and Registrar for the ESOARS<sup>TM</sup>.
- (r) "Payment Amount" means (i) with respect to a particular Payment Period ending during the Vesting Period, the Payment Amount During Vesting Period and (ii) with respect to a particular Payment Period following the completion of the Vesting Period, the Payment Amount During Post-Vesting Period.
- (s) "Payment Amount During Post-Vesting Period" means, with respect to each Payment Period following the completion of the Vesting Period, the number of ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> Units outstanding multiplied by an amount equal to the Net Realized Value divided by the number of shares of Company Common Stock underlying Reference Options that have vested and have not been forfeited, modified or cancelled.
- (t) "Payment Amount During Vesting Period" means, with respect to each Payment Period during the Vesting Period, the number of ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> Units outstanding multiplied by an amount equal to the Net Realized Value divided by the

number of Reference Options that have not been forfeited prior to vesting, modified or cancelled as of the end of the applicable Payment Period.

- (u) "Payment Date" means the 15th day of the month (or, if such 15th day is not a Business Day, the Business Day immediately following) following the end of a calendar quarter, beginning on or about July 15, 2009 and terminating on or about July 15, 2015; provided, however, that in the event of any payment due to be made pursuant to Section 4, the term "Payment Date" means the 15th day of the month (or, if such 15th day is not a Business Day, the Business Day immediately following) following the end of the applicable calendar quarter in which the Company deposits with the Paying Agent the full amount for payment to be made pursuant to Section 4.
- (v) "Payment Period" means the period (i) beginning on the first day of each calendar quarter (or in the case of the initial Payment Date, beginning on April 24, 2009), and (ii) ending on and including the last day of such calendar quarter.

Annex A – Page 3

#### **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

- (w) "Percentage Interest" means, as to a particular Holder at any time, the percentage obtained by dividing (i) the number of ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> Units owned of record by such Holder, by (ii) the total number of ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> Units then outstanding.
- (x) "Physical Securities" is defined in Section 8(a).
- (y) "Record Date" means the last calendar day of the calendar quarter preceding the applicable Payment Date (or, if such day is not a Business Day, then on the next Business Day).
- (z) "Reference Options" means the stock options of the Company comprising the reference pool of stock options to purchase Company Common Stock, which stock options have been issued by the Company to certain of its employees, as set forth on Exhibit A attached hereto.
- (aa) "SFAS No. 123R" is defined in Section 4.
- (bb) "Vesting Period" means the three-year vesting period of the Reference Options ending April 24, 2011.

Section 2. Issuing Agent, Paying Agent and Registrar. Initially, Zions First National Bank shall act as Issuing Agent, Paying Agent and Registrar. The Paying Agent shall keep a register of this Certificate and of its transfer and exchange (the "Certificate Register"). The Paying Agent shall preserve in as current a form as is reasonably practicable the most recent list available to it of the names and address of all Holders. The Company may change the Paying Agent without notice to any Holder. Any subsidiaries of the Company may act as Paying Agent or Registrar.

#### Section 3. Payments.

- (a) The Company shall deposit with the Paying Agent in the form of cash, shares of Company Common Stock or some combination of cash and shares of Company Common Stock, at the Company's discretion:
- (i) the applicable Payment Amount, if any, on or before the fifth Business Day of the month following the end of each calendar quarter, commencing July 8, 2009, for payment to Holders pursuant to Section 3(b);
- (ii) the applicable Additional Payment Amount, if any, on or before July 8, 2011 (the fifth Business Day of the first month following the end of the calendar quarter in which the Vesting Period is completed), for payment to Holders pursuant to Section 3(c) below; and
- (iii) the applicable No Vesting Payment Amount, if any, on or before July 8, 2009 (the fifth Business Day of the first month following the end of the calendar quarter in which the first Annual Vesting Period is completed), for payment to Holders pursuant to Section 3(d) below.
- (b) Commencing on the First Payment Date specified above, and provided that (i) distributions are then payable and (ii) the Company has deposited or caused to be deposited adequate funds and/or shares of Company Common Stock for and with respect to a particular Payment Date for payment to the Holders pursuant to Section 3(a) above, the Paying Agent shall, on or before the Payment Date, pay to each Holder, from funds or shares of Company Common Stock deposited with the Paying Agent by the Company pursuant to Section 3(a) above, such Holder's Percentage Interest of the applicable Payment Amount.
- (c) If any of the Reference Options shall have been forfeited prior to the completion of the Vesting Period, and provided that the Company has deposited or caused to be deposited adequate funds and/or shares of Company

Common Stock for and with respect to the Additional Payment Date for payment to the Holders pursuant to Section 3(a) above, the Paying Agent shall, on or before the Additional Payment Date, in addition to any Payment Amount payable to the Holders pursuant to Section 3(b) above, pay to each Holder, from funds or shares of Company Common Stock deposited with the Paying Agent by the Company pursuant to Section 3(a) above, such Holder's Percentage Interest of the Additional Payment Amount.

(d) If, upon the completion of the first Annual Vesting Period, all of the Reference Options have been forfeited prior to vesting, and provided that the Company has deposited or caused to be deposited adequate funds and/or shares of Company Common Stock for and with respect to the No Vesting Payment Date for payment to the Holders pursuant to Section 3(a) above, the Paying Agent shall, on or before the No Vesting Payment Date, pay to each Holder, from funds or shares of Company Common Stock deposited with the

Annex A - Page 4

#### **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

Paying Agent by the Company pursuant to Section 3(a) above, such Holder's Percentage Interest of the No Vesting Payment Amount and the ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> shall thereafter be canceled.

- (e) If payment is made in shares of Company Common Stock, the number of shares delivered shall be determined by dividing the cash value of the payment due (or portion thereof) by the closing price of the shares of Company Common Stock on The Nasdaq Stock Market (or, if the Company Common Stock is not listed on The Nasdaq Stock Market, on the principal exchange or over-the-counter market on which the Company Common Stock is then listed) on the last trading day prior to the applicable Payment Date, Additional Payment Date or No Vesting Payment Date, as the case may be; provided in each instance that the maximum aggregate number of shares that may be delivered by the Company shall be 540,000 shares of Company Common Stock and provided further that such shares of Company Common Stock shall be delivered by the Company in accordance with DTC's rules and procedures. The Company may deliver cash in lieu of any fractional shares of Company Common Stock based on the closing price of the shares of Company Common Stock determined in accordance with the immediately preceding sentence. Once the Company issues and delivers the maximum aggregate number of shares of Company Common Stock pursuant to this Section 3(e), the Company shall have no further obligation to make payments in either cash or shares of the Company Common Stock to any Holder in respect of the Securities.
- All cash payments by the Paying Agent hereunder shall be by wire transfer in immediately-available funds to the account of the Holder entitled thereto at a bank or other entity having appropriate facilities therefor, if such Holder shall have provided the Paying Agent with wiring instructions no fewer than five Business Days prior to the Record Date for such payment (or, in the case of the payment on the First Payment Date, no later than July 1, 2009), or otherwise by check mailed to the address of such Holder appearing in the certificate register maintained by the Paying Agent.
- (g) Except as otherwise set forth above and in Section 4 below, the ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> are limited in right of payment to the extent of exercises, if any, of Reference Options that create Net Realized Value. Any payment to a Holder hereunder is binding on such Holder and all future Holders and holders of any certificate issued upon the transfer hereof or in exchange herefor or in lieu hereof, whether or not notation of such payment is made upon this Certificate.

Section 4. Modification of Reference Options.

- (a) If one or more Reference Options is modified (pursuant to Section 3.1(c) of the Company's 2005 Stock Option and Incentive Plan) or canceled (pursuant to Section 2.5 or Section 3.1(c) of the Company's 2005 Stock Option and Incentive Plan) in a manner that would be treated as a modification pursuant to paragraphs 51-57 of FASB Statement No. 123R, Share-Based Payment ("SFAS No. 123R"), the Company shall notify the Independent Valuation Agent within five (5) Business Days of such modification. Within 10 Business Days following receipt of such written notification, the Independent Valuation Agent shall determine the cancellation value of the modified Reference Option(s) in accordance with SFAS No. 123R, and shall notify the Company and the Paying Agent in writing of the cancellation value thereof. The Independent Valuation Agent's determination of the cancellation value of such Reference Option(s) shall be final and binding on all parties, absent manifest error. In the event that the Company determines that the Independent Valuation Agent's determination of the cancellation value is due to manifest error, then the Company and the Independent Valuation Agent shall attempt to resolve the issue as soon as commercially practicable, and shall promptly communicate to the Paying Agent any such resolution.
- (b) Subsequent to determination (or final determination, as applicable) of the cancellation value of the applicable Reference Option(s) and written notice thereof pursuant to Section 4(a) above, the Company shall deposit with the Paying Agent an amount equal to the number of ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> Units then outstanding multiplied by the cancellation value of such modified Reference Option(s) as determined (or as finally determined, as applicable) in accordance with Section 4(a) above, divided by the number of shares of Company Common Stock underlying

Reference Options that have not been forfeited prior to vesting, cancelled or modified on or before the sixtieth day following the end of the calendar quarter in which a qualifying modification of Reference Option(s) occurs, for payment to the Holders. The Paying Agent shall thereafter, on or before the applicable Payment Date, pay to each Holder its Percentage Interest of the amount determined in accordance with this Section 4(b).

Section 5. Liquidation Events.

(a) Upon the occurrence of any of the following events (the Reference Options shall be considered to be modified as described in Section 4 above, and the procedures contained in such Section 4 with respect to the determination and payment of the applicable cancellation value shall be followed:

Annex A – Page 5

#### **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

- (i) a liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Company;
- (ii) any consolidation or merger of the Company with or into any other corporation or other entity, or any other corporate reorganization, in which the stockholders of the Company immediately prior to such consolidation, merger or reorganization, own less than 50% of the surviving entity's voting power immediately after such consolidation, merger or reorganization; or
- (iii) a sale or other disposition of all or substantially all of the assets of the Company to a third party.
- (b) In the event of a liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Company pursuant to Section 5(a)(i), any and all payments to be made pursuant to Section 4 shall be subject, subordinate and junior, in right of payment and exercise of remedies to the prior payment of any and all indebtedness, liabilities and other obligations, now existing or hereafter arising, of the Company and any and all payment or distributions of any assets of the Company to the holders of any preferred stock of the Company, now or hereafter issued and outstanding, by reason of their ownership thereof.

Section 6. Reports to Holders. No later than 15 days after each Payment Date, the Company shall deliver or cause to be delivered to each Holder a written report, as set forth in clauses (a) and (b) of this Section 6, relating to payments made on the applicable Payment Date.

- (a) With respect to payments made pursuant to Section 3 above, the report shall set forth, with respect to the applicable Payment Period, information such as (i) the number of Reference Options exercised during the preceding calendar quarter; (ii) the stock price at which the Reference Options were exercised; (iii) the number of Reference Options forfeited, if any, upon the termination of any optionee employee's employment with the Company; and (iv) the calculation of the payment with respect to each ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> Unit.
- (b) With respect to payments made pursuant to Section 4 above, the report shall set forth information such as (i) the number of Reference Options deemed modified pursuant to paragraphs 51-57 of SFAS No. 123R during the preceding calendar quarter; (ii) the cancellation value thereof, as determined pursuant to Section 4(a); and (iii) the calculation of the distribution with respect to each ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> Unit.

Section 7. Transfer and Exchange of Beneficial Interests in the Certificate; Transfer Taxes. The transfer and exchange of beneficial interests in this Certificate shall be effected through DTC in accordance with its rules and procedures that apply to such transfer or exchange. No service charge will be imposed on a holder of any beneficial interest in this Certificate or on a Holder of this Certificate for any registration of transfer or exchange, but the Company may require payment of a sum sufficient to cover any transfer tax or similar governmental charge that may be imposed in connection therewith.

Section 8. Issuance of Physical Securities; Transfer and Exchange of Certificate.

- (a) Securities in definitive registered form representing ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> Units ("Physical Securities") shall be transferred to all beneficial owners in exchange for their beneficial interests in this Certificate upon the occurrence of the following events:
- (i) DTC delivers written notice to the Company that it is unwilling or unable to continue acting as the depositary, or DTC has ceased to be a clearing agency registered under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, and in either case the Company fails to appoint a successor depositary within 60 days after the date of such notice from DTC; or

- (ii) the Company in its sole discretion determines that this Certificate (in whole but not in part) should be exchanged for Physical Securities, and delivers written notice to that effect to DTC; or
- (iii) there has occurred and is continuing an Event of Default and the Paying Agent has received a written request from DTC to issue Physical Securities.
- (b) In connection with any transfer or exchange of a portion of the beneficial interest in the Certificate to beneficial owners pursuant to Section 8(a) above, such Certificate shall be deemed to be surrendered to the Paying Agent for cancellation and Physical Securities shall be issued to and in the names of such beneficial owners identified by DTC in writing to the Paying Agent and the Company, in exchange for its beneficial interest in the Certificate.

Section 9. Persons Deemed Owners. The registered Holder of this Certificate may be treated as its owner for all purposes.

Annex A – Page 6

#### **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

Section 10. CUSIP Number. Pursuant to a recommendation promulgated by the Committee on Uniform Security Identification Procedures, the Company has caused a CUSIP number to be printed on this Certificate. No representation is made as to the accuracy of such number either as printed on this Certificate or as contained in any notice.

Section 11. Amendment, Supplement and Waiver. This Certificate may be amended or supplemented with the written consent of Holders of at least a majority of the ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> Units then outstanding, and any existing default or compliance with any provision hereof may be waived with the written consent of Holders of at least a majority of the ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> Units then outstanding. Notwithstanding the foregoing, this Certificate may be amended or supplemented, without the consent of any Holder, in order to cure any ambiguity, defect, omission or inconsistency in this Certificate.

Section 12. Assignment by Company. The rights and obligations of the Company under this Certificate may not be transferred or assigned by the Company without the written consent of Holders of at least a majority of the ESOARS<sup>TM</sup> then outstanding; provided that the Company may assign its rights and obligations under this Certificate to any successor to its business by merger, consolidation or amalgamation or to any party acquiring all or substantially all of the assets of the Company.

Section 13. Notices. All notices, requests, demands and other communications hereunder shall be in writing and shall be deemed to have been duly given upon delivery if delivered by hand (against receipt), or as of the date of delivery as shown on the receipt if mailed at a post office in the United States by registered or certified mail, postage prepaid, return receipt requested, or as of the date of acknowledgment if transmitted by facsimile transmission or other telecommunication equipment, in any case addressed (A) if to the Company, to Zions Bancorporation, One South Main Street, Salt Lake City, UT 84111, attention: Corporate Secretary, (B) if to the Holder, to the address of the Holder shown on the Certificate Register, (C) if to the Paying Agent, to such address as provided by the Paying Agent to the Company and the Holders in writing, or to such other address(es) as the Company, the Holders and the Paying Agent shall have designated each other in writing.

Section 14. Governing Law. This Certificate shall be construed in accordance with the internal laws of the State of New York (including Section 5-1401 of the General Obligations Laws of New York, but otherwise without regard to conflicts of law principles), and the obligations, rights and remedies of the Holder hereof shall be determined in accordance with such laws.

Annex A – Page 7

# TABLE OF CONTENTS

# **EXHIBIT A**

# DESCRIPTION OF REFERENCE OPTIONS [on file with Zions Bancorporation]

Annex A – Page 8

# **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

## SCHEDULE OF EXCHANGES OF INTERESTS IN THE GLOBAL CERTIFICATE

The following exchanges of a part of this Global Certificate for an interest in another Global Certificate or for a Physical Security, or exchanges of a part of another Global Certificate or Physical Security for an interest in this Global Certificate, have been made:

Date of Exchange	Amount of Decrease in Number of ESOARS <sup>TM</sup> under this Global Certificate	Amount of Increase in Number of ESOARS <sup>TM</sup> under this Global Certificate	Number of ESOARS™ under this Global Certificate Following such Decrease (or Increase)	Signature of Authorized Officer of Paying Agent

Annex A – Page 9

## **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

# **ASSIGNMENT FORM** For value received\_\_ does hereby sell, assign and transfer unto Please insert Social Security Number or other identifying number of assignee Please print or type name and address, including zip code, of assignee: the within Global Certificate and does hereby irrevocably constitute and \_\_\_\_\_Attorney to transfer the Global Certificate on the books of the Company with full power of substitution in the premises. Your Signature:\_\_\_\_ (The signature to this assignment must correspond with the name as written upon the face of the within Global Certificate in every particular, without alteration or enlargement or any change whatsoever) Annex A – Page 10

# TABLE OF CONTENTS

# ANNEX B

# ZIONS BANCORPORATION 2005 STOCK OPTION AND INCENTIVE PLAN

Annex B

## **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

#### ZIONS BANCORPORATION

#### 2005 STOCK OPTION AND INCENTIVE PLAN

#### ARTICLE I

#### **GENERAL**

## 1.1 Purpose

The purpose of the Zions Bancorporation 2005 Stock Option and Incentive Plan (the "Plan") is to promote the long-term success of Zions Bancorporation (the "Company") by providing an incentive for officers, employees and directors of, and consultants and advisors to, the Company and its Related Entities to acquire a proprietary interest in the success of the Company, to remain in the service of the Company and/or Related Entities, and to render superior performance during such service.

- 1.2 Definitions of Certain Terms
- (a) "Award" means an award under the Plan as described in Section 1.5 and Article II.
- (b) "Award Agreement" means a written agreement entered into between the Company and a Grantee in connection with an Award.
- (c) "Board" means the Board of Directors of the Company.
- (d) "Cause" Termination of Employment by the Company for "Cause" means, with respect to a Grantee and an Award, (i) except as provided otherwise in the applicable Award Agreement or as provided in clause (ii) below, Termination of Employment of the Grantee by the Company (A) upon Grantee's failure to substantially perform Grantee's duties with the Company or a Related Entity (other than any such failure resulting from death or Disability), (B) upon Grantee's failure to substantially follow and comply with the specific and lawful directives of the Board or any officer of the Company or a Related Entity to whom Grantee directly or indirectly reports, (C) upon Grantee's commission of an act of fraud or dishonesty resulting in actual or potential economic, financial or reputational injury to the Company or a Related Entity, (D) upon Grantee's engagement in illegal conduct, gross misconduct or an act of moral turpitude, (E) upon Grantee's violation of any written policy, guideline, code, handbook or similar document governing the conduct of directors, officers or employees of the Company or its Related Entities, or (F) upon Grantee's engagement in any other similar conduct or act determined by the Committee in its discretion to constitute "cause"; or (ii) in the case of directors, officers or employees who at the time of the Termination of Employment are entitled to the benefits of a change in control, employment or similar agreement entered into by the Company or a Related Entity that defines or addresses termination for cause, termination for cause as defined and/or determined pursuant to such agreement. In the event that there is more than one such agreement, the Executive Compensation Committee shall determine which agreement shall govern.
- (e) "Code" means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.
- (f) "Committee" means the Executive Compensation Committee (including any successor thereto) of the Board and shall consist of not less than two directors. However, if (i) a member of the Executive Compensation Committee is not an "outside director" within the meaning of Section 162(m) of the Code, is not a "non-employee

director" within the meaning of Rule 16b-3 under the Exchange Act, or is not an "independent director" within the meaning of Nasdaq Market Rule 4350 (c), or (ii) the Executive Compensation Committee otherwise in its discretion determines, then the Executive Compensation Committee may from time to time delegate some or all of its functions under the Plan to a subcommittee composed of members of the Executive Compensation Committee that, if relevant, meet the necessary requirements. The term "Committee" includes the Executive Compensation Committee or any such subcommittee, to the extent of the Executive Compensation Committee's delegation.

- (g) "Common Stock" means the common stock of the Company.
- (h) "Disability" means, with respect to a Grantee and an Award, (i) except as provided in the applicable Award Agreement or as provided in clause (ii) below, "disability" as defined in the Company's long-term disability plan in which Grantee is participating; or

## **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

- (ii) in the case of directors, officers or employees who at the time of the Termination of Employment are entitled to the benefits of a change in control, employment or similar agreement entered into by the Company or a Related Entity that defines or addresses termination because of disability, "disability" as defined in such agreement. In the event that there is more than one such agreement, the Committee shall determine which agreement shall govern. Notwithstanding the foregoing, (A) in the case of an Incentive Stock Option, the term "Disability" for purposes of the preceding sentence shall have the meaning given to it by Section 422 (c)(6) of the Code and (B) to the extent an Award is subject to the provisions of Section 409A of the Code and in order for compensation provided under any Award to avoid the imposition of taxes under Section 409A of the Code, then a Grantee shall be determined to have suffered a Disability only if such Grantee is "disabled" within the meaning of Section 409A of the Code.
- (i) "Exchange Act" means the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.
- (j) The "Fair Market Value" of a share of Common Stock on any date shall be (i) the closing sale price per share of Common Stock during normal trading hours on the national securities exchange, association or other market on which the Common Stock is principally traded for such date or the last preceding date on which there was a sale of such Common Stock on such exchange, association or market, or (ii) if the shares of Common Stock are then traded in an over-the-counter market, the average of the closing bid and asked prices for the shares of Common Stock during normal trading hours in such over-the-counter market for such date or the last preceding date on which there was a sale of such Common Stock in such market, or (iii) if the shares of Common Stock are not then listed on a national securities exchange, association or other market or traded in an over-the-counter market, such value as the Committee, in its discretion shall determine.
- (k) "Grantee" means a person who receives an Award.
- (1) "Incentive Stock Option" means, subject to Section 2.3 (f), a stock option that is intended to qualify for special federal income tax treatment pursuant to Sections 421 and 422 of the Code (or a successor provision thereof) and which is so designated in the applicable Award Agreement. Under no circumstances shall any stock option that is not specifically designated as an Incentive Stock Option be considered an Incentive Stock Option.
- (m) "Key Persons" means then acting or prospective directors, officers and employees of the Company or of a Related Entity, and then acting or prospective consultants and advisors to the Company or a Related Entity.
- (n) "Non-Employee Director" has the meaning given to it in Section 2.13(a).
- (o) "Performance Goals" means the goal(s) (or combined goal(s)) determined by the Committee in its discretion to be applicable to a Grantee with respect to an Award. As determined by the Committee, the Performance Goals applicable to an Award may provide for a targeted or measured level or levels of achievement or change using one or more of the following measures: (i) revenue, (ii) earnings per share, (iii) net income, (iv) return on assets, (v) return on equity, (vi) stock price, (vii) economic profit or shareholder value added, and (viii) total shareholder return. Such measures may be defined and calculated in such manner and detail as the Committee in its discretion may determine, including whether such measures shall be calculated before or after income taxes or other items, the degree or manner in which various items shall be included or excluded from such measures, whether total assets or certain categories of assets shall be used, whether such measures shall be applied to the Company on a consolidated basis or to certain Related Parties of the Company or to certain divisions, operating units or business lines of the Company or a Related Entity, the weighting that shall be given to various measures if combined goals are used, and the periods and dates during or on which such measures shall be calculated. The Performance Goals may differ from Grantee to Grantee and from Award to Award.
- (p) "Person", whether or not capitalized, means any natural person, any corporation, partnership, limited liability company, trust or legal or contractual entity or joint undertaking and any governmental authority.

- (q) "Related Entity" means any corporation, partnership, limited liability company or other entity that is an "affiliate" of the Company within the meaning of Rule 12b-2 under the Exchange Act.
- (r) "Retirement" means, with respect to a Grantee and an Award, (i) except as otherwise provided in the applicable Award Agreement or as provided in clause (ii) below, the Grantee's Termination of Employment with the Company or a Related Entity for a reason other than for Cause and that at the time of the Termination of Employment the Grantee has reached the following age with the corresponding number of years of service with the Company and/or Related Entities:

## **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

Age	Years
	of
	Service
55	10
56	9
57	8
58	7
59	6
60 and	5
older	

or (ii) with respect to a Non-Employee Director, the Grantee's Termination of Employment with the Company at the end of his or her term of office for any reason other than Cause.

- (s) "Rule 16b-3" means Rule 16b-3 under the Exchange Act.
- (t) Unless otherwise determined by the Committee and subject to the following sentence, a Grantee shall be deemed to have a "Termination of Employment" upon ceasing employment with the Company or any Related Entity (or, in the case of a Grantee who is not an employee, upon ceasing association with the Company or any Related Entity as a director, consultant, advisor or otherwise). Unless the Committee in its discretion determines otherwise, it shall not be considered a Termination of Employment of a Grantee if the Grantee ceases employment or association with the Company or a Related Entity but continues or immediately commences employment or association with a majority-owned Related Entity or the Company. The Committee in its discretion may determine (i) that a given termination of employment with the Company or any particular Related Entity does not constitute a Termination of Employment (including circumstances in which employment continues with another Related Entity or the Company), (ii) whether any leave of absence constitutes a Termination of Employment for purposes of the Plan, (iii) the impact, if any, of any such leave of absence on Awards theretofore made under the Plan, and (iv) when a change in a Grantee's association with the Company or any Related Entity constitutes a Termination of Employment for purposes of the Plan. The Committee may also determine in its discretion whether a Grantee's Termination of Employment is for Cause and the date of termination in such case. The Committee may make any such determination at anytime, whether before or after the Grantee's Termination of Employment.

#### 1.3 Administration

- (a) The Committee. The Plan shall be administered by the Committee, which shall consist of not less than two directors.
- (b) Authority. The Committee shall have the authority (i) to exercise all of the powers granted to it under the Plan, (ii) to construe, interpret and implement the Plan and any Award Agreements, (iii) to prescribe, amend and rescind rules and regulations relating to the Plan, including rules governing its own operations, (iv) to make all determinations necessary or advisable in administering the Plan (including defining and calculating Performance Goals and certifying that such Performance Goals have been met), (v) to correct any defect, supply any omission and reconcile any inconsistency in the Plan, (vi) to amend the Plan to reflect changes in applicable law or regulations, (vii) to determine whether, to what extent and under what circumstances Awards may be settled or exercised in cash, shares of Common Stock, other securities, other Awards or other property, or canceled, forfeited or suspended and the method or methods by which Awards may be settled, canceled, forfeited or suspended (including, but not limited to, canceling an Award in exchange for a cash payment (or securities with an equivalent value) equal to the difference between the Fair Market Value of a share of Common Stock on the date of grant and the Fair Market Value of a share

of Common Stock on the date of cancellation, and, if no such difference exists, canceling an Award without a payment in cash or securities), and (viii) to determine whether, to what extent and under what circumstances cash, shares of Common Stock, other securities, other Awards or other property and other amounts payable with respect to an Award shall be deferred either automatically or at the election of the holder thereof or of the Committee.

- (c) Voting. Actions of the Committee shall be taken by the vote of a majority of its members. Any action may be taken by a written instrument signed by a majority of the Committee members, and action so taken shall be fully as effective as if it had been taken by a vote at a meeting.
- (d) Binding determinations. The determination of the Committee on all matters relating to the Plan or any Award Agreement shall be final, binding and conclusive.

## **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

- (e) Exculpation. No member of the Board or the Committee or any officer, employee or agent of the Company or any of its Related Entities (each such person a "Covered Person") shall have any liability to any person (including, without limitation, any Grantee) for any action taken or omitted to be taken or any determination made in good faith with respect to the Plan or any Award. Each Covered Person shall be indemnified and held harmless by the Company against and from any loss, cost, liability or expense (including attorneys' fees) that may be imposed upon or incurred by such Covered Person in connection with or resulting from any action, suit or proceeding to which such Covered Person may be a party or in which such Covered Person may be involved by reason of any action taken or omitted to be taken under the Plan and against and from any and all amounts paid by such Covered Person, with the Company's approval, in settlement thereof, or paid by such Covered Person in satisfaction of any judgment in any such action, suit or proceeding against such Covered Person; provided that the Company shall have the right, at its own expense, to assume and defend any such action, suit or proceeding and, once the Company gives notice of its intent to assume the defense, the Company shall have sole control over such defense with counsel of the Company's choice. The foregoing right of indemnification shall not be available to a Covered Person to the extent that a court of competent jurisdiction in a final judgment or other final adjudication, in either case, not subject to further appeal, determines that the acts or omissions of such Covered Person giving rise to the indemnification claim resulted from such Covered Person's bad faith, fraud or willful criminal act or omission. The foregoing right of indemnification shall not be exclusive of any other rights of indemnification to which Covered Persons may be entitled under the Company's Articles of Incorporation or Bylaws, in each case as amended from time to time, as a matter of law, or otherwise, or any other power that the Company may have to indemnify such persons or hold them harmless.
- (f) Experts. In making any determination or in taking or not taking any action under this Plan, the Committee or the Board may obtain and may rely upon the advice of experts, including professional and financial advisors and consultants to the Committee or the Company. No director, officer, employee or agent of the Company shall be liable for any such action or determination taken or made or omitted in good faith reliance on such advice.
- (g) Board. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein (i) until the Board shall appoint the members of the Committee, the Plan shall be administered by the Board, and (ii) the Board may, in its sole discretion, at any time and from time to time, grant Awards or resolve to administer the Plan. In either of the foregoing events, the Board shall have all of the authority and responsibility granted to the Committee herein.

## 1.4 Persons Eligible for Awards

Awards under the Plan may be made to such Key Persons as the Committee shall select in its discretion.

## 1.5 Types of Awards under the Plan

Awards may be made under the Plan in the form of stock options, including Incentive Stock Options and non-qualified stock options, stock appreciation rights, restricted stock, unrestricted stock, restricted stock units, performance shares, performance units, dividend equivalent units, deferred stock units and other stock-based Awards, as set forth in Article II.

## 1.6 Shares Available for or Subject to Awards

(a) Total shares available. The total number of shares of Common Stock that may be transferred pursuant to Awards granted under the Plan shall not exceed 8,900,000 shares. All of such shares shall be authorized for issuance pursuant to incentive stock options under Section 2.3 or for other Awards under Article II. Such shares may be authorized but unissued Common Stock or authorized and issued Common Stock held in the Company's treasury or acquired by the Company for the purposes of the Plan. The Committee may direct that any stock certificate evidencing shares issued pursuant to the Plan shall bear a legend setting forth such restrictions on transferability as may apply to

such shares pursuant to the Plan. If any Award is forfeited or otherwise terminates or is canceled without the delivery of shares of Common Stock, then the shares covered by such forfeited, terminated or canceled Award shall again become available for transfer pursuant to Awards granted or to be granted under this Plan. However, if any Award or shares of Common Stock issued or issuable under Awards are tendered or withheld as payment for the exercise price of an Award, the shares of Common Stock may not be reused or reissued or otherwise be treated as being available for Awards or issuance pursuant to the Plan. With respect to a stock appreciation right, both shares of Common Stock issued pursuant to the Award and shares of Common Stock representing the exercise price of the Award shall be treated as being unavailable for other Awards or other issuances pursuant to the Plan unless the stock appreciation right is forfeited, terminated or cancelled without the delivery of shares of Common Stock. Any shares of Common Stock delivered by the Company, any shares of Common Stock with respect to which Awards are made by the Company and any shares of Common Stock with respect to which the Company becomes obligated to make Awards,

## **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

through the assumption of, or in substitution for, outstanding awards previously granted by an acquired entity, shall not be counted against the shares available for Awards under this Plan.

- (b) Treatment of Certain Awards. Any shares of Common Stock subject to Awards shall be counted against the numerical limits of this Section 1.6 as one share for every share subject thereto, except that any shares of Common Stock subject to Awards with a per share or unit purchase price lower than 100% of Fair Market Value of a share of Common Stock on the date of grant shall be counted against the numerical limits of this Section 1.6 as 3 shares for every one share subject thereto.
- Adjustments. The number of shares of Common Stock covered by each outstanding Award, the number or amount of shares or units available for Awards under Section 1.6 (a) or otherwise, the number or amount of shares or units that may be subject to Awards to any one Grantee under Section 1.7 (b) or otherwise, the price per share of Common Stock or units covered by each such outstanding Award and any other calculation relating to shares of Common Stock available for Awards or under outstanding Awards (including Awards under Section 2.13) may be proportionately adjusted, as the Committee may determine in its discretion to be appropriate, in order to prevent dilution or enlargement of the benefits or potential benefits intended to be made available under the Plan, for (i) any increase or decrease in the number of issued shares of Common Stock resulting from a stock split, reverse stock split, stock dividend, recapitalization, combination or reclassification of the Common Stock or similar transaction, or any other increase or decrease in the number of issued shares of Common Stock effected without receipt of consideration by the Company or to reflect any distributions to holders of Common Stock (including rights offerings) other than regular cash dividends or (ii) any other unusual or nonrecurring event affecting the Company or its financial statements or any change in applicable law, regulation or accounting principles; provided, however, that conversion of any convertible securities of the Company shall not be deemed to have been "effected without receipt of consideration." Except as expressly provided herein, no issuance by the Company of shares of stock of any class, or securities convertible into shares of stock of any class, shall affect, and no adjustment by reason thereof shall be made with respect to, the number or price of shares of Common Stock subject to an Award. After any adjustment made pursuant to this paragraph, the number of shares subject to each outstanding Award shall be rounded to the nearest whole number.
- (d) Grants exceeding allotted shares. If the shares of Common Stock covered by an Award exceeds, as of the date of grant, the number of shares of Common Stock which may be issued under the Plan without additional shareholder approval, such Award shall be void with respect to such excess shares of Common Stock unless shareholder approval of an amendment sufficiently increasing the number of shares of Common Stock subject to the Plan is timely obtained in accordance with the Plan.

#### 1.7 Regulatory Considerations

- (a) General. To the extent that the Committee determines it desirable for any Award to be given any particular tax, accounting, legal or regulatory treatment, the Award may be made by a Committee consisting of qualifying directors, subject to any necessary restrictions, conditions or other terms or otherwise in such manner as is necessary to obtain the desired treatment.
- (b) Code Section 162(m) provisions. Unless and until the Committee determines that an Award to a Grantee shall not be designed to qualify as "performance-based compensation" under Section 162(m) of the Code, the following rules shall apply to Awards granted to Grantees:
- (i) No Grantee shall be granted, in any fiscal year, stock options or stock appreciation rights to purchase (or obtain the benefits of the equivalent of) more than 500,000 shares of Common Stock;

- (ii) No Grantee shall be granted, in any fiscal year, more than 166,666 shares of restricted stock, unrestricted stock, restricted stock units or performance shares;
- (iii) No Grantee shall receive performance units, in any fiscal year, having a value greater than \$5 million, provided that if any units are awarded with respect to multiple years of service, such limit shall be multiplied by such number of years (not to exceed five years).
- (iv) No Grantee shall be granted, in any fiscal year, dividend equivalent rights with respect to more shares than the aggregate number of shares and units granted to such Grantee in such year; and
- (v) For purposes of qualifying grants of Awards as "performance-based compensation" under Section 162(m) of the Code, the Committee in its discretion may set restrictions based upon the achievement of Performance Goals. The Performance Goals shall be set by the Committee on or before the latest date permissible to enable the Awards to qualify as "performance-based"

## **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

compensation" under Section 162(m) of the Code. In granting share Awards which are intended to qualify under Section 162(m) of the Code, the Committee shall follow any procedures determined by it from time to time to be necessary or appropriate to ensure qualification of the Award under Section 162(m) of the Code (e.g., in determining the Performance Goals).

## 1.8 No Repricing

Without consent of the Company's shareholders, the exercise price (or equivalent) for an Award may not be reduced. This shall include, without limitation, a repricing of the Award as well as an Award exchange program whereby the Grantee agrees to cancel an existing Award in exchange for a new Award.

#### ARTICLE II

#### AWARDS UNDER THE PLAN

## 2.1 Awards and Award Agreements

Each Award granted under the Plan shall be evidenced by an Award Agreement which shall contain such provisions as the Committee in its discretion deems necessary or desirable. Such provisions may include restrictions on the Grantee's right to transfer the shares of Common Stock issuable pursuant to the Award, a requirement that the Grantee become a party to an agreement restricting transfer or allowing repurchase of any shares of Common Stock acquired pursuant to the Award, a requirement that the Grantee acknowledge that such shares are acquired for investment purposes only, and a right of first refusal exercisable by the Company in the event that the Grantee wishes to transfer any such shares. The Committee may grant Awards in tandem or in connection with or independently of or in substitution for any other Award or Awards granted under this Plan or any award granted under any other plan of the Company. Payments or transfers to be made by the Company upon the grant, exercise or payment of an Award may be made in such form as the Committee shall determine, including cash, shares of Common Stock or other securities (or proceeds from the sale thereof), other Awards (by surrender or cancellation thereof or otherwise) or other property and may be made in a single payment or transfer, in installments or on a deferred basis. The Committee may determine that a Grantee shall have no rights with respect to an Award unless such Grantee accepts the Award within such period as the Committee shall specify by executing an Award Agreement in such form as the Committee shall determine and, if the Committee shall so require, makes payment to the Company in such amount as the Committee may determine. The Committee shall determine if loans (whether or not secured by shares of Common Stock) may be extended, guaranteed or arranged by the Company with respect to any Awards; provided, however, that loans to executive officers of the Company may not be extended, guaranteed or arranged by the Company in violation of Section 402 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, Regulation O of the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System or any other applicable law or regulation. Subject to the terms of the Plan, the Committee at any time, whether before or after the grant, expiration, exercise, vesting or maturity of an Award or the Termination of Employment of a Grantee, may determine in its discretion to waive or amend any term or condition of an Award, including transfer restrictions, vesting, maturity and expiration dates, and conditions for vesting, maturity or exercise.

# 2.2 No Rights as a Shareholder

No Grantee of an Award (or other person having rights pursuant to such Award) shall have any of the rights of a shareholder of the Company with respect to shares subject to such Award until the transfer of such shares to such person. Except as otherwise provided in Section 1.6(c), no adjustment shall be made for dividends, distributions or other rights (whether ordinary or extraordinary, and whether in cash, securities or other property) for which the record date is prior to the date such shares are issued.

# 2.3 Grant of Stock Options, Stock Appreciation Rights and Additional Options

- (a) Grant of stock options. The Committee may grant stock options, including Incentive Stock Options and nonqualified stock options, to purchase shares of Common Stock from the Company, to such Key Persons, in such amounts and subject to such terms and conditions (including the attainment of Performance Goals), as the Committee shall determine in its discretion, subject to the provisions of the Plan.
- (b) Grant of stock appreciation rights. The Committee may grant stock appreciation rights to such Key Persons, in such amounts and subject to such terms and conditions (including the attainment of Performance Goals), as the Committee shall determine in its discretion, subject to the provisions of the Plan. Stock appreciation rights may be granted in connection with all or any part of, or

## **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

independently of, any stock option granted under the Plan. A stock appreciation right may be granted at or after the time of grant of such option.

- (c) Stock appreciation rights. The Grantee of a stock appreciation right shall have the right, subject to the terms of the Plan and the applicable Award Agreement, to receive from the Company an amount equal to (i) the excess of the Fair Market Value of a share of Common Stock on the date of exercise of the stock appreciation right over (ii) the exercise price of such right as set forth in the Award Agreement (if the stock appreciation right is granted in connection with a stock option, then the exercise price of the option), multiplied by (iii) the number of shares with respect to which the stock appreciation right is exercised. Payment to the Grantee upon exercise of a stock appreciation right shall be made in cash or in shares of Common Stock (valued at their Fair Market Value on the date of exercise of the stock appreciation right) or both, as the Committee shall determine in its discretion. Upon the exercise of a stock appreciation right granted in connection with a stock option, the number of shares subject to the option shall be correspondingly reduced by the number of shares with respect to which the stock appreciation right is exercised. Upon the exercise of a stock option in connection with which a stock appreciation right has been granted, the number of shares subject to the stock appreciation right shall be reduced correspondingly by the number of shares with respect to which the option is exercised.
- (d) Exercise price. Each Award Agreement with respect to a stock option or stock appreciation right shall set forth the exercise price, which shall be determined by the Committee in its discretion; provided, however, that the exercise price shall be at least 100% of the Fair Market Value of a share of Common Stock on the date the Award is granted (except as permitted in connection with the assumption or issuance of options or stock appreciation rights in a transaction to which Section 424 (a) of the Code applies).
- (e) Exercise periods. Each Award Agreement with respect to a stock option or stock appreciation right shall set forth the periods during which the Award evidenced thereby shall be exercisable, and, if applicable, the conditions which must be satisfied (including the attainment of Performance Goals) in order for the Award evidenced thereby to be exercisable, whether in whole or in part. Such periods and conditions shall be determined by the Committee in its discretion; provided, however, that no stock option or stock appreciation right shall be exercisable more than ten (10) years after the date the Award is issued.
- Incentive stock options. Notwithstanding Section 2.3(d) and (e), with respect to any Incentive Stock Option or stock appreciation right granted in connection with an Incentive Stock Option (i) the exercise price shall be at least 100% of the Fair Market Value of a share of Common Stock on the date the option is granted (except as permitted in connection with the assumption or issuance of options in a transaction to which Section 424(a) of the Code applies) and (ii) the exercise period shall not be for longer than ten (10) years after the date of the grant. To the extent that the aggregate Fair Market Value (determined as of the time the option is granted) of the shares of Common Stock with respect to which Incentive Stock Options and stock appreciation rights granted in connection with Incentive Stock Options granted under this Plan and all other plans of the Company are first exercisable by any Grantee during any calendar year shall exceed the maximum limit (currently, \$100,000), if any, imposed from time to time under Section 422 of the Code, such options and rights shall be treated as nonqualified stock options. For purposes of this Section 2.3(f), Incentive Stock Options shall be taken into account in the order in which they were granted.
- (g) Ten percent owners. Notwithstanding the provisions of Sections 2.3(d), (e) and (f), to the extent required under Section 422 of the Code, an Incentive Stock Option may not be granted under the Plan to an individual who, at the time the option is granted, owns stock possessing more than 10% of the total combined voting power of all classes of stock of his or her employer corporation or of its parent or subsidiary corporations (as such ownership may be determined for purposes of Section 422(b)(6) of the Code) unless (i) at the time such Incentive Stock Option is granted the exercise price is at least 110% of the Fair Market Value of the shares subject thereto, and (ii) the Incentive

Stock Option by its terms is not exercisable after the expiration of five (5) years from the date granted.

2.4 Exercise of Stock Options and Stock Appreciation Rights

Each stock option or stock appreciation right granted under the Plan shall be exercisable as follows:

- (a) Exercise period. A stock option or stock appreciation right shall become and cease to be exercisable at such time or times as determined by the Committee.
- (b) Manner of exercise. Unless the applicable Award Agreement otherwise provides, a stock option or stock appreciation right may be exercised from time to time as to all or part of the shares as to which such Award is then exercisable (but, in any event, only for whole shares). A stock appreciation right granted in connection with an option may be exercised at any time when, and to the same extent that, the related option may be exercised. A stock option or stock appreciation right shall be exercised by written notice to the Company, on such form and in such manner as the Committee shall prescribe.

## **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

- payment of exercise price. Any written notice of exercise of a stock option shall be accompanied by payment of the exercise price for the shares being purchased. Such payment shall be made (i) in cash (by certified check or as otherwise permitted by the Committee), or (ii) to the extent specified in the Award Agreement or otherwise permitted by the Committee in its discretion (A) by delivery of shares of Common Stock (which, if acquired pursuant to the exercise of a stock option or under an Award made under this Plan or any other compensatory plan of the Company, were acquired at least six (6) months prior to the option exercise date) having a Fair Market Value (determined as of the exercise date) equal to all or part of the exercise price and cash for any remaining portion of the exercise price, (B) to the extent permitted by law, by such other method as the Committee may from time to time prescribe, including a cashless exercise procedure through a broker-dealer.
- (d) Delivery of shares. Promptly after receiving payment of the full exercise price, or after receiving notice of the exercise of a stock appreciation right for which payment by the Company will be made partly or entirely in shares of Common Stock, the Company shall, subject to the provisions of Section 3.3 (relating to certain restrictions), transfer to the Grantee or to such other person as may then have the right to exercise the Award, the shares of Common Stock for which the Award has been exercised and to which the Grantee is entitled. If the method of payment employed upon option exercise so requires, and if applicable law permits, a Grantee may direct the Company to deliver the shares to the Grantee's broker-dealer.

## 2.5 Cancellation and Termination of Stock Options and Stock Appreciation Rights

The Committee may, at any time prior to the occurrence of a change of control and in its discretion, determine that any outstanding stock options and stock appreciation rights granted under the Plan, whether or not exercisable, will be canceled and terminated and that in connection with such cancellation and termination the holder of such options (and stock appreciation rights not granted in connection with an option) may receive for each share of Common Stock subject to such Award a cash payment (or the delivery of shares of stock, other securities or a combination of cash, stock and securities equivalent to such cash payment) equal to the difference, if any, between the amount determined by the Committee to be the Fair Market Value of the shares of Common Stock and the applicable exercise price per share multiplied by the number of shares of Common Stock subject to such Award; provided that, if such product is zero or less or to the extent that the Award is not then exercisable, the stock options and stock appreciation rights will be canceled and terminated without payment therefore.

#### 2.6 Termination of Employment

- (a) Termination of Employment by Grantee for any Reason or By the Company for Cause. Except to the extent otherwise provided in paragraphs (b), (c), (d) and (e) below or in the applicable Award Agreement, all stock options and stock appreciation rights whether or not vested and to the extent not theretofore exercised shall terminate immediately upon (i) the Grantee's Termination of Employment at Grantee's election for any reason or (ii) Grantee's Termination of Employment by the Company for Cause.
- (b) At election of Company or a Related Entity. Except to the extent otherwise provided in the applicable Award Agreement, upon the Termination of Employment of a Grantee at the election of the Company or a Related Entity (other than in circumstances governed by paragraph (a) above or paragraphs (c), (d) or (e) below) the Grantee may exercise any outstanding stock option or stock appreciation right on the following terms and conditions: (i) exercise may be made only to the extent that the Grantee was entitled to exercise the Award on the date of the Termination of Employment; and (ii) exercise must occur within three (3) months after the Termination of Employment but in no event after the expiration date of the Award as set forth in the Award Agreement.

- Retirement. Except to the extent otherwise provided in the applicable Award Agreement, upon the Termination of Employment of a Grantee by reason of the Grantee's Retirement, the Grantee may exercise any outstanding stock option or stock appreciation right on the following terms and conditions: (i) exercise may be made only to the extent that the Grantee was entitled to exercise the Award on the date of Retirement; (ii) exercise must occur within three (3) years after Retirement but in no event after the expiration date of the Award as set forth in the Award Agreement; and (iii) notwithstanding clause (ii) above, the option or right shall terminate on the date Grantee begins or agrees to begin employment with another company that is in the financial services industry unless such employment is specifically approved by the Committee.
- (d) Disability. Except to the extent otherwise provided in the applicable Award Agreement, upon the termination of Employment of a Grantee by reason of Disability the Grantee may exercise any outstanding stock option or stock appreciation right on the following terms and conditions: (i) exercise may be made only to the extent that the Grantee was entitled to exercise the Award on the date of Termination of Employment; and (ii) exercise must occur six (6) months after the Termination of Employment but in no event after the expiration date of the Award as set forth in the Award Agreement.

## **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

(e) Death. Except to the extent otherwise provided in the applicable Award Agreement, if a Grantee dies during the period in which the Grantee's stock options or stock appreciation rights are exercisable, whether pursuant to their terms or pursuant to paragraph (b), (c) or (d) above, any outstanding stock option or stock appreciation right shall be exercisable on the following terms and conditions: (i) exercise may be made only to the extent that the Grantee was entitled to exercise the Award on the date of death; and (ii) exercise must occur six (6) months after the date of the Grantee's death. Any such exercise of an Award following a Grantee's death shall be made only by the Grantee's executor or administrator, unless the Grantee's will specifically disposes of such Award, in which case such exercise shall be made only by the recipient of such specific disposition. If a Grantee's executor (or administrator) or the recipient of a specific disposition under the Grantee's will shall be entitled to exercise any Award pursuant to the preceding sentence, such executor (or administrator) or recipient shall be bound by all the terms and conditions of the Plan and the applicable Award Agreement which would have applied to the Grantee.

#### 2.7 Grant of Restricted Stock and Unrestricted Stock

- (a) Grant of restricted stock. The Committee may grant restricted shares of Common Stock to such Key Persons, in such amounts and subject to such terms and conditions (including the attainment of Performance Goals), as the Committee shall determine in its discretion, subject to the provisions of the Plan.
- (b) Grant of unrestricted stock. The Committee may grant unrestricted shares of Common Stock to such Key Persons, in such amounts and subject to such terms and conditions as the Committee shall determine in its discretion, subject to the provisions of the Plan.
- (c) Rights as shareholder. The Company may issue in the Grantee's name shares of Common Stock covered by an Award of restricted stock or unrestricted stock. Upon the issuance of such shares, the Grantee shall have the rights of a shareholder with respect to the restricted stock or unrestricted stock, subject to the transfer restrictions and the Company's repurchase rights described in paragraphs (d) and (e) below and to such other restrictions and conditions as the Committee in its discretion may include in the applicable Award Agreement.
- (d) Company to hold certificates. Unless the Committee shall otherwise determine, any certificate issued evidencing shares of restricted stock shall remain in the possession of the Company until such shares are free of any restrictions specified in the Plan or the applicable Award Agreement.
- (e) Nontransferable. Shares of restricted stock may not be sold, assigned, transferred, pledged or otherwise encumbered or disposed of except as specifically provided in this Plan or the applicable Award Agreement. The Committee at the time of grant shall specify the date or dates (which may depend upon or be related to the attainment of Performance Goals) and other conditions on which the non-transferability of the restricted stock shall lapse. Unless the applicable Award Agreement provides otherwise, additional shares of Common Stock or other property distributed to the Grantee in respect of shares of restricted stock, as dividends or otherwise, shall be subject to the same restrictions applicable to such restricted stock. The Committee at any time may waive or amend the transfer restrictions or other condition of an Award of restricted stock.
- (f) Termination of employment. Except to the extent otherwise provided in the applicable Award Agreement or unless otherwise determined by the Committee, in the event of the Grantee's Termination of Employment for any reason, shares of restricted stock that remain subject to transfer restrictions as of the date of such termination shall be forfeited and canceled.

#### 2.8 Grant of Restricted Stock Units

- (a) Grant of restricted stock units. The Committee may grant Awards of restricted stock units to such Key Persons, in such amounts and subject to such terms and conditions (including the attainment of Performance Goals), as the Committee shall determine in its discretion, subject to the provisions of the Plan.
- (b) Vesting. The Committee, at the time of grant, shall specify the date or dates on which the restricted stock units shall become vested and other conditions to vesting (including the attainment of Performance Goals).
- (c) Maturity dates. At the time of grant, the Committee shall specify the maturity date or dates applicable to each grant of restricted stock units, which may be determined at the election of the Grantee if the Committee so determines. Such date may be on or later than, but may not be earlier than, the vesting date or dates of the Award. On the relevant maturity date(s), the Company shall

## **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

transfer to the Grantee one unrestricted, fully transferable share of Common Stock for each vested restricted stock unit scheduled to be paid out on such date and as to which all other conditions to the transfer have been fully satisfied. The Committee shall specify the purchase price, if any, to be paid by the Grantee to the Company for such shares of Common Stock.

(d) Termination of Employment. Except to the extent otherwise provided in the applicable Award Agreement or unless otherwise determined by the Committee, in the event of the Grantee's Termination of Employment for any reason, restricted stock units that have not vested or matured shall be forfeited and canceled.

#### 2.9 Grant of Performance Shares and Performance Units

- Grant of performance shares and units. The Committee may grant performance shares in the form of actual shares of Common Stock or share units over an identical number of shares of Common Stock, to such Key Persons, in such amounts (which may depend on the extent to which Performance Goals are attained), subject to the attainment of such Performance Goals and satisfaction of such other terms and conditions (which may include the occurrence of specified dates), as the Committee shall determine in its discretion, subject to the provisions of the Plan. The Performance Goals and the length of the performance period applicable to any Award of performance shares or performance units shall be determined by the Committee. The Committee shall determine in its discretion whether performance shares granted in the form of share units shall be paid in cash, Common Stock, or a combination of cash and Common Stock.
- (b) Company to hold certificates. Unless the Committee shall otherwise determine, any certificate issued evidencing performance shares shall remain in the possession of the Company until such performance shares are earned and are free of any restrictions specified in the Plan or the applicable Award Agreement.
- Nontransferable. Performance shares may not be sold, assigned, transferred, pledged or otherwise encumbered or disposed of except as specifically provided in this Plan or the applicable Award Agreement. The Committee at the time of grant shall specify the date or dates (which may depend upon or be related to the attainment of Performance Goals) and other conditions on which the non-transferability of the performance shares shall lapse. Unless the applicable Award Agreement provides otherwise, additional shares of Common Stock or other property distributed to the Grantee in respect of performance shares, as dividends or otherwise, shall be subject to the same restrictions applicable to such performance shares. The Committee at any time may waive or amend the transfer restrictions or other condition of an Award of performance shares.
- (d) Termination of Employment. Except to the extent otherwise provided in the applicable Award Agreement or unless otherwise determined by the Committee, in the event of the Grantee's Termination of Employment for any reason, performance shares and performance share units that remain subject to transfer restrictions as of the date of such termination shall be forfeited and canceled.

## 2.10 Grant of Dividend Equivalent Rights

The Committee may in its discretion include in the Award Agreement with respect to any Award a dividend equivalent right entitling the Grantee to receive amounts equal to the ordinary dividends that would be paid, during the time such Award is outstanding and unexercised, on the shares of Common Stock covered by such Award if such shares were then outstanding. In the event such a provision is included in an Award Agreement, the Committee shall determine whether such payments shall be made in cash, in shares of Common Stock or in another form, whether they shall be conditioned upon the exercise or vesting of, or the attainment or satisfaction of terms and conditions applicable to, the Award to which they relate, the time or times at which they shall be made, and such other terms and conditions as the Committee shall deem appropriate.

## 2.11 Deferred Stock Units

- (a) Description. Deferred stock units shall consist of a restricted stock, restricted stock unit, performance share or performance unit Award that the Committee in its discretion permits to be paid out in installments or on a deferred basis, in accordance with rules and procedures established by the Committee. Deferred stock units shall remain subject to the claims of the Company's general creditors until distributed to the Grantee.
- (b) 162(m) limits. Deferred stock units shall be subject to the annual Section 162(m) limits applicable to the underlying restricted stock, restricted stock unit, performance share or performance unit Award as forth in Section 1.7(b).

## **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

#### 2.12 Other Stock-Based Awards

The Committee may grant other types of stock-based Awards to such Key Persons, in such amounts and subject to such terms and conditions, as the Committee shall in its discretion determine, subject to the provisions of the Plan. Such Awards may entail the transfer of actual shares of Common Stock, or payment in cash or otherwise of amounts based on the value of shares of Common Stock.

## 2.13 Director Stock Options

- (a) Eligibility. Until and unless the Committee in its discretion determines otherwise (i) all voting directors of the Company who are not employees of the Company ("Non-Employee Directors") shall automatically receive stock options pursuant to this Section 2.13.
- (b) Grant of director stock options. Until and unless the Committee in its discretion determines otherwise, (i) each Non-Employee Director shall automatically be granted stock options to purchase four thousand (4,000) shares of Common Stock pursuant to this Section 2.12 on the first business day after the date the Plan is approved by the Company's shareholders and (ii) thereafter, each Non-Employee Director shall automatically be granted stock options to purchase four thousand (4,000) shares of Common Stock each year on the first business day following the annual meeting of the shareholders of the Company. If the number of shares then remaining available for the grant of stock options under the Plan is not sufficient for each Non-Employee Director to be granted a stock option for four thousand (4,000) shares, then each Non-Employee Director shall be granted a stock option for a whole number of shares equal to the number of shares then remaining available divided by the number of Non-Employee Directors, disregarding any fractional shares.
- (c) Exercise Price. Notwithstanding Section 2.3(d), until and unless the Committee in its discretion determines otherwise, the per share exercise price for each stock option granted under this Section 2.13 shall be 100% of the Fair Market Value of a share of Common Stock on the date the stock option is granted.
- (d) Exercise Period. Notwithstanding Section 2.3(e), until and unless the Committee in its discretion determines otherwise, each stock option granted under this Section 2.13 shall vest and become exercisable in four equal installments of one thousand (1,000) shares beginning on the date six months from the date of the grant and on each anniversary of the first vesting date. Notwithstanding Section 2.3(e), and subject to Sections 2.6 and 3.7 and other applicable provisions of the Plan, until and unless the Committee in its discretion determines otherwise, each stock option granted under this Section 2.13 shall be exercisable for ten (10) years from the date of grant and shall expire thereafter.
- (e) Non-statutory options. Stock options granted under this Section 2.13 will constitute nonqualified stock options.
- (f) Other stock option terms applicable. Except as set forth in this Section 2.13, all stock options granted under this Section 2.13 will be subject to and benefited by the terms and conditions (including Section 3.7) of the Plan applicable to other stock options granted under the Plan.

#### ARTICLE III

#### **MISCELLANEOUS**

#### 3.1 Amendment of the Plan; Modification of Awards

Board authority to amend Plan. The Board in its discretion may at any time suspend, discontinue, revise or amend the Plan in any respect whatsoever, except that any such amendment (other than an amendment pursuant to paragraphs (d), (e) or (f) of this Section 3.1 or an amendment to effect an assumption or other action consistent with Section 3.7) that materially impairs the rights or materially increases the obligations of a Grantee under an outstanding Award shall be effective with respect to such Grantee and Award only with the consent of the Grantee (or, upon the Grantee's death, the Grantee's executor (or administrator) or the recipient of a specific disposition under the Grantee's will). For purposes of the Plan, any action of the Board that alters or affects the tax treatment of any Award shall not be considered to materially impair any rights of any Grantee.

## **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

- (b) Shareholder approval. Shareholder approval of any amendment shall be obtained to the extent necessary to comply with Section 422 of the Code (relating to Incentive Stock Options) or any other applicable law, regulation or rule (including the rules of self-regulatory organizations).
- (c) Committee authority to amend Awards. The Committee in its discretion may at any time, whether before or after the grant, expiration, exercise, vesting or maturity of or lapse of restriction on an Award or the Termination of Employment of a Grantee, amend any outstanding Award or Award Agreement, including an amendment which would accelerate or extend the time or times at which the Award becomes unrestricted or may be exercised, or waive or amend any goals, restrictions or conditions set forth in the Award Agreement. However, any such amendment (other than an amendment pursuant to paragraphs (d), (e) or (f) of this Section 3.1 or an amendment to effect an action consistent with Section 3.7) that materially impairs the rights or materially increases the obligations of a Grantee under an outstanding Award shall be made only with the consent of the Grantee (or, upon the Grantee's death, the Grantee's executor (or administrator) or the recipient of a specific disposition under the Grantee's will). For purposes of the Plan, any action of the Committee that alters or affects the tax treatment of any Award shall not be considered to materially impair any rights of any Grantee.
- (d) Regulatory changes generally. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Section 3 3.1 or the Plan, the Board or the Committee shall have full discretion to amend the Plan or an outstanding Award or Award Agreement to the extent necessary to preserve any tax, accounting, legal or regulatory treatment with respect to any Award and any outstanding Award Agreement shall be deemed to be so amended to the same extent, without obtaining the consent of any Grantee (or, after the Grantee's death, the Grantee's executor (or administrator) or the recipient of a specific disposition under the Grantee's will), without regard to whether such amendment adversely affects a Grantee's rights under the Plan or such Award and Award Agreement.
- (e) Section 409A changes. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Section 3.1 or the Plan, the Board or the Committee shall have full discretion to amend the Plan or any outstanding Award or Award Agreement to the extent necessary to avoid the imposition of any tax under Section 409A of the Code. Any such amendments to the Plan, an Award or an Award Agreement may be adopted without obtaining the consent of any Grantee (or, after the Grantee's death, the Grantee's executor (or administrator) or the recipient of a specific disposition under the Grantee's will), regardless of whether such amendment adversely affects a Grantee's rights under the Plan or such Award or Award Agreement.
- (f) Other tax changes. In the event that changes are made to Section 83(b), 162(m), 422 or other applicable provision of the Code the Board or the Committee may, subject to Sections 3.1 (a), (b) and (c), make any adjustments it determines in its discretion to be appropriate with respect to the Plan or any Award or Award Agreement.

#### 3.2 Tax Withholding

- (a) Tax withholdings. As a condition to the receipt of any shares of Common Stock pursuant to any Award or the lifting of restrictions on any Award, or in connection with any other event that gives rise to a federal or other governmental tax withholding obligation on the part of the Company relating to an Award (including, without limitation, FICA tax), the Company shall be entitled to require that the Grantee remit to the Company an amount sufficient in the opinion of the Company to satisfy such withholding obligation.
- (b) Withholding shares. If the event giving rise to the withholding obligation is a transfer of shares of Common Stock, then, unless otherwise provided in the applicable Award Agreement, the Grantee may satisfy only the minimum statutory withholding obligation imposed under paragraph (a) by electing to have the Company withhold shares of Common Stock having a Fair Market Value equal to the amount of tax to be withheld. For this purpose, Fair Market Value shall be determined as of the date on which the amount of tax to be withheld is determined (and any fractional share amount shall be settled in cash).

## 3.3 Restrictions

- (a) Required consents. If the Committee shall at any time determine that any consent (as hereinafter defined) is necessary or desirable as a condition of, or in connection with, the granting of any Award, the issuance or purchase of shares of Common Stock or other rights thereunder, or the taking of any other action thereunder (a "Plan Action"), then no such Plan Action shall be taken, in whole or in part, unless and until such consent shall have been effected or obtained to the full satisfaction of the Committee.
- (b) Definition. The term "consent" as used herein with respect to any action referred to in paragraph (a) means (i) any and all listings, registrations or qualifications in respect thereof upon any securities exchange or under any federal, state or local law, rule or

## **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

regulation, (ii) any and all written agreements and representations by the Grantee with respect to the disposition of shares, or with respect to any other matter, which the Committee shall deem necessary or desirable to comply with the terms of any such listing, registration or qualification or to obtain an exemption from the requirement that any such listing, qualification or registration be made, (iii) any and all consents, clearances and approvals in respect of a Plan Action by any governmental or other regulatory bodies, and (iv) any and all consents or authorizations required to comply with, or required to be obtained under, applicable local law or otherwise required by the Committee. Nothing herein shall require the Company to list, register or qualify the shares of Common Stock on any securities exchange.

## 3.4 Nonassignability

- (a) Nonassignability. No Award or right granted to any person under the Plan shall be assignable or transferable other than by will or by the laws of descent and distribution, and all such Awards and rights shall be exercisable during the life of the Grantee only by the Grantee or the Grantee's legal representative and any such attempted assignment, transfer or exercise in contravention of this Section 3.4 shall be void. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Committee may in its discretion permit the donative transfer of any Award under the Plan (other than an Incentive Stock Option) by the Grantee (including to a trust or similar instrument), subject to such terms and conditions as may be established by the Committee.
- (b) Cashless exercises permitted. The restrictions on exercise and transfer in paragraph (a) above shall not be deemed to prohibit the authorization by the Committee of "cashless exercise" procedures with parties who provide financing for the purpose of (or who otherwise facilitate) the exercise of Awards consistent with applicable legal restrictions and Rule 16b-3.

## 3.5 Requirement of Notification of Election Under Section 83(b) of the Code

If a Grantee, in connection with the acquisition of shares of Common Stock under the Plan, is permitted under the terms of the Award Agreement to make the election permitted under Section 83(b) of the Code (i.e., an election to include in gross income in the year of transfer the amounts specified in Section 83(b) of the Code notwithstanding the continuing transfer restrictions) and the Grantee makes such an election, the Grantee shall notify the Company of such election within ten (10) days of filing notice of the election with the Internal Revenue Service, in addition to any filing and notification required pursuant to regulations issued under Section 83(b) of the Code.

3.6 Requirement of Notification Upon Disqualifying Disposition Under Section 421(b) of the Code

If any Grantee shall make any disposition of shares of Common Stock issued pursuant to the exercise of an Incentive Stock Option under the circumstances described in Section 421(b) of the Code (relating to certain disqualifying dispositions), such Grantee shall notify the Company of such disposition within ten (10) days thereof.

# 3.7 Change in Control

- (a) Definition. A "Change in Control" means the occurrence of any one of the following events:
- (i) any Person (as defined in Sections 13(d) and 14(d) of the Exchange Act) is or becomes the Beneficial Owner (as defined in Rule 13d-3 under the Exchange Act), directly or indirectly, of securities of the Company representing 20% or more of the combined voting power of the Company's then outstanding securities ("Company Voting Securities"); provided, however, that the event described in this clause (i) shall not be deemed a Change in Control by virtue of any of the following acquisitions: (A) by the Company or any corporation controlled by the Company, (B) by any employee benefit plan (or related trust) sponsored or maintained by the Company or any corporation controlled by the Company, (C) by any underwriter temporarily holding securities pursuant to an offering of such securities, (D)

pursuant to a Non-Qualifying Transaction (as defined in clause (iii) below), (E) pursuant to any acquisition by Grantee or any group of persons including Grantee (or any entity controlled by Grantee or any group of persons including Grantee), (F) a transaction (other than one described in clause (iii) below) in which outstanding Company Voting Securities are acquired from the Company, if a majority of the Continuing Directors (as defined in clause (ii) below) approve a resolution providing expressly that the acquisition pursuant to this subclause (F) does not constitute a Change in Control under this clause (F), or (G) any acquisition by a person of 20% of the outstanding Company Voting Securities as a result of an acquisition of common stock of the Company by the Company which, by reducing the number of shares of common stock of the Company outstanding, increases the proportionate number of shares beneficially owned by such person to 20% or more of the outstanding Company Voting Securities, provided, however, that if a person shall become the beneficial owner of 20% or more of the outstanding Company Voting Securities by reason of a share acquisition by the Company as described above and

## **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

shall, after such share acquisition by the Company, become the beneficial owner of any additional shares of common stock of the Company, then such acquisition shall constitute a Change in Control;

- (ii) individuals who, on March 1, 2005, constitute the Board ("Continuing Directors"), cease for any reason to constitute at least a majority thereof, provided that any person becoming a director subsequent to such date whose election or nomination for election was approved by a vote of at least a majority of the Continuing Directors then on the Board (either by a specific vote or by approval of the proxy statement of the Company in which such person is named as a nominee for director, without written objection to such nomination) shall be a Continuing Director; provided, however, that no individual initially elected or nominated as a director of the Company as a result of an actual or threatened election contest with respect to directors or as a result of any other actual or threatened solicitation of proxies or consents by or on behalf of any person other than the Board shall be deemed to be a Continuing Director;
- (iii) the consummation of a merger, consolidation, statutory share exchange or similar form of corporate transaction involving the Company or any of its subsidiaries that requires the approval of the Company's shareholders, whether for such transaction or the issuance of securities in the transaction (a "Business Combination"), unless immediately following such Business Combination: (A) more than 50% of the total voting power of (x) the corporation resulting from such Business Combination (the "Surviving Corporation"), or (y) if applicable, the ultimate parent corporation that directly or indirectly has beneficial ownership of at least 95% of the voting securities eligible to elect directors of the Surviving Corporation (the "Parent Corporation"), is represented by Company Voting Securities that were outstanding immediately prior to such Business Combination (or, if applicable, is represented by shares into which such Company Voting Securities were converted pursuant to such Business Combination), and such voting power among the holders thereof is in substantially the same proportion as the voting power of such Company Voting Securities among the holders thereof immediately prior to the Business Combination, (B) no person (other than any employee benefit plan (or related trust) sponsored or maintained by the Surviving Corporation or the Parent Corporation), is or becomes the beneficial owner, directly or indirectly, of 20% or more of the total voting power of the outstanding voting securities eligible to elect directors of the Parent Corporation (or, if there is no Parent Corporation, the Surviving Corporation) and (C) at least a majority of the members of the board of directors of the Parent Corporation (or, if there is no Parent Corporation, the Surviving Corporation) following the consummation of the Business Combination are Continuing Directors (any Business Combination which satisfies all of the criteria specified in subclauses (A), (B) and (C) above shall be deemed to be a "Non-Qualifying Transaction"); provided, however, that if Continuing Directors constitute a majority of the Board immediately following the occurrence of a Business Combination, then a majority of Continuing Directors in office prior to the Consummation of the Business Combination may approve a resolution providing expressly that such Business Combination does not constitute a Change in Control under this clause (iii) for any and all purposes of the Plan.
- (iv) the shareholders of the Company approve a plan of complete liquidation or dissolution of the Company; or
- (v) the consummation of an agreement (or agreements) providing for the sale or disposition by the Company of all or substantially all of the Company's assets other than a sale or disposition which would result in the voting securities of the Company outstanding immediately prior thereto continuing to represent 50% or more of the combined voting power of the Company or such surviving entity outstanding immediately after such sale or disposition.
- (b) Effect of Change in Control. Upon the occurrence of a Change in Control specified in paragraph (a)(i) or (a)(ii) above and immediately prior to the occurrence of a Change in Control specified in paragraph (a)(iii), (a)(iv) or (a)(v) above, Awards shall Fully Vest (as defined in paragraph (c) below). If, within two (2) years after the occurrence of a Change in Control a Termination of Employment occurs with respect to any Grantee for any reason other than Cause, Disability, death or Retirement, Grantee shall be entitled to exercise Awards at any time thereafter until the earlier of (i) the date forty-two (42) months after the date of Termination of Employment and (ii) the expiration date in the applicable Award Agreement.

Fully Vest. The following shall occur if Awards "Fully Vest": (i) any stock options and stock appreciation rights granted under the Plan shall become fully vested and immediately exercisable, (ii) any restricted stock, restricted stock units, performance shares, performance units and other stock-based Awards granted under the Plan will become fully vested and matured, any restrictions applicable to such Awards shall lapse and such Awards denominated in stock will be immediately paid out, and (iii) any Performance Goals applicable to Awards will be deemed to be fully satisfied; provided that (A) any Performance Goals whose performance period has not yet lapsed shall be calculated based on the higher of (x) the target value of the Awards as established by the Committee and (y) the value of the Awards calculated under the terms of the Awards based on the average performance through the end of the fiscal quarter immediately prior to the effective date of the Change of Control (continued pro forma through the end of the performance period if necessary for purposes of determining whether the Performance Goal would have been met), and (B) if the Award has a

## **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

performance period greater than one (1) year, the amount of the Award payable to the Grantee will be pro rated, based on a fraction, the numerator of which is the number of fiscal quarters completed from the beginning of the performance period until the effective date of the Change of Control and the denominator is the total number of fiscal quarters in the performance period.

(d) Section 409A. To the extent it is necessary for the term "change of control" to be defined as provided in Section 409A of the Code in order for compensation provided under any Award to avoid the imposition of taxes under Section 409A of the Code, then the term "change in control", only insofar as it applies to any such Award, shall be defined as provided in Section 409A of the Code, rather than as provided in Section 3.7 (a), and the terms of Sections 3.7(b) through (c) shall be applied and interpreted with respect to such Section 409A definition in such manner as the Committee in its discretion determines to be equitable and reflect the intention of Sections 3.7(a) through (c).

## 3.8 No Right to Employment

Nothing in the Plan or in any Award Agreement shall confer upon any Grantee the right to continue in the employ of or association with the Company or any Related Entity or affect any right which the Company or Related Entity may have to terminate such employment or association at any time (with or without cause).

# 3.9 Nature of Payments

Unless the Committee determines at any time in its discretion, any and all grants of Awards and issuances of shares of Common Stock under the Plan shall constitute a special incentive payment to the Grantee and shall not be taken into account in computing the amount of salary or compensation of the Grantee for the purpose of determining any benefits under any pension, retirement, profit-sharing, bonus, life insurance or other benefit plan of the Company or under any agreement with the Grantee, unless such plan or agreement specifically provides otherwise.

#### 3.10 Non-Uniform Determinations

The Committee's determinations under the Plan need not be uniform and may be made by it selectively among persons who receive, or are eligible to receive, Awards (whether or not such persons are similarly situated). Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the Committee shall be entitled, among other things, to make non-uniform and selective determinations, and to enter into non-uniform and selective Award Agreements, as to the persons to receive Awards under the Plan, and the terms and provisions of Awards under the Plan.

## 3.11 Other Payments or Awards

Nothing contained in the Plan shall be deemed in any way to limit or restrict the Company from making any award or payment to any person under any other plan, arrangement or understanding, whether now existing or hereafter in effect.

#### 3.12 Interpretation

The section headings contained herein are for the purpose of convenience only and are not intended to define or limit the contents of the sections. As used in the Plan, "include," "includes," and "including" are deemed to be followed by "without limitation" whether or not they are followed by such words or words of like import; except as the context requires, the singular includes the plural and visa versa; and references to any agreement or other document are references to such agreement or document as amended or supplemented from time to time. Any determination, interpretation or similar act to be made by the Committee shall be made in the discretion of the Committee, whether or not the applicable provisions of the Plan specifically refer to the Committee's discretion.

## 3.13 Effective Date and Term of Plan

Unless sooner terminated by the Board, the Plan, including the provisions respecting the grant of Incentive Stock Options, shall terminate on the tenth anniversary of the adoption of the Plan by the Board; provided that the Plan shall continue to govern outstanding Awards until such Awards have been satisfied or terminated. All Awards made under the Plan prior to its termination shall remain in effect until such Awards have been satisfied or terminated in accordance with the terms and provisions of the Plan and the applicable Award Agreements.

#### **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

#### 3.14 Governing Law

All rights and obligations under the Plan shall be construed and interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of Utah, without giving effect to principles of conflict of laws.

#### 3.15 Severability; Entire Agreement

If any of the provisions of this Plan or any Award Agreement is finally held to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable (whether in whole or in part), such provision shall be deemed modified to the extent, but only to the extent, of such invalidity, illegality or unenforceability and the remaining provisions shall not be affected thereby; provided, that if any of such provisions is finally held to be invalid, illegal, or unenforceable because it exceeds the maximum scope determined to be acceptable to permit such provision to be enforceable, such provision shall be deemed to be modified to the minimum extent necessary to modify such scope in order to make such provision enforceable hereunder. The Plan and any Award Agreements contain the entire agreement of the parties with respect to the subject matter thereof and supersede all prior agreements, promises, covenants, arrangements, communications, representations and warranties between them, whether written or oral, with respect to the subject matter thereof.

## 3.16 No Third Party Beneficiaries

Except as expressly provided therein, neither the Plan nor any Award Agreement shall confer on any person other than the Company and the grantee of any Award any rights or remedies thereunder.

#### 3.17 Successors and Assigns

The terms of this Plan shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the Company and its successors and assigns.

#### 3.18 Waiver of Claims

Each Grantee of an Award recognizes and agrees that prior to being selected by the Committee to receive an Award he or she has no right to any benefits hereunder. Accordingly, in consideration of the Grantee's receipt of any Award hereunder, he or she expressly waives any right to contest the amount of any Award, the terms of any Award Agreement, any determination, action or omission hereunder or under any Award Agreement by the Committee, the Company or the Board, or any amendment to the Plan or any Award Agreement (other than an amendment to this Plan or an Award Agreement to which his or her consent is expressly required by the express terms of the Plan or an Award Agreement).

#### 3.19 Relation to Key Employee Plan, You're the Owner Plan and Directors Plan

Notwithstanding any other provisions to the contrary in the Company's Key Employee Incentive Stock Option Plan, Amended and Restated 1998 Non-Qualified Stock Option and Incentive Plan or Amended and Restated 1996 Non-Employee Directors Stock Option Plan ("Directors Plan"), upon shareholder approval of this Plan and filing and effectiveness of a Form S-8 registration statement with the Securities and Exchange Commission for this Plan, no new awards of shares of Common Stock will be granted under the Company's Key Employee Incentive Stock Option Plan, Amended and Restated 1998 Non-Qualified Stock Option and Incentive Plan or Directors Plan. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in the Directors Plan or Section 2.13, only one grant of stock options shall be made to Non-Employee Directors in 2005 pursuant to the Directors Plan and/or Section 2.13.

# TABLE OF CONTENTS

## ANNEX C

## ZIONS BANCORPORATION STANDARD STOCK OPTION AWARD AGREEMENT

Annex C

### **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

#### ZIONS BANCORPORATION

#### 2005 STOCK OPTION AND INCENTIVE PLAN

#### STANDARD STOCK OPTION AWARD AGREEMENT

This Stock Option Award Agreement (this "Agreement") is made and entered into as of the date set forth on Exhibit A (the "Grant Date") by and between Zions Bancorporation, a Utah corporation (the "Company"), and the person named on Exhibit A (the "Grantee") pursuant to the Company's 2005 Stock Option and Incentive Plan (the "Plan"). Capitalized terms not defined in this Agreement have the meanings ascribed to them in the Plan.

- 1. Grant of Stock Option. Pursuant and subject to the Plan and this Agreement, the Company hereby grants to the Grantee the right and option (an "Option") to purchase all or any part of the aggregate number of shares of the Company's Common Stock (the "Common Stock") set forth on Exhibit A at the purchase price per share set forth on Exhibit A (the "Option Exercise Price").
- 2. Term of Option. This Option shall expire on the date set forth on Exhibit A (the "Expiration Date") and must be exercised, if at all, on or before the earlier of the Expiration Date or the date on which this Option is earlier terminated in accordance with the provisions of the Plan or Section 4 of this Agreement.
- 3. Vesting. Except as otherwise provided herein, this Option shall vest as set forth on Exhibit A and shall be exercisable only to the extent that it has vested. This Option shall cease to vest upon Grantee's Termination of Employment and may be exercised after Grantee's date of termination only as set forth in the Plan or in Section 4 of this Agreement.
  - 4. Termination of Employment.
- 4.1 Termination of Employment by Grantee for any Reason or By the Company for Cause. Except to the extent otherwise provided in Sections 4.2 through 4.5 below, this Option, whether or not vested and to the extent not therefore exercised, shall terminate immediately upon (i) the Grantee's Termination of Employment at Grantee's election for any reason or (ii) Grantee's Termination of Employment by the Company for Cause.
- 4.2 At election of Company or a Related Entity. Upon the Termination of Employment of a Grantee at the election of the Company or a Related Entity (other than in circumstances governed by Section 4.1 above or Section 4.3 through 4.5 Grantee below) the Grantee may exercise this Option on the following terms and conditions: (i) exercise may be made only to the extent that the Grantee was entitled to exercise this Option on the date of the Termination of Employment; and (ii) exercise must occur within three (3) months after the Termination of Employment but in no event after the Expiration Date.
- 4.3 Retirement. Upon the Termination of Employment of Grantee by reason of the Grantee's Retirement, Grantee may exercise this Option on the following terms and conditions: (i) exercise may be made only to the extent that Grantee was entitled to exercise this Option on the date of Retirement; (ii) exercise must occur within three (3) years after Retirement but in no event after the Expiration Date; and (iii) notwithstanding clause (ii) above, the option or right shall terminate on the date Grantee begins or agrees to begin employment with another company that is in the financial services industry unless such employment is specifically approved by the Committee.

- 4.4 Disability. Upon the Termination of Employment of Grantee by reason of Disability, Grantee may exercise this Option on the following terms and conditions: (i) exercise may be made only to the extent that Grantee was entitled to exercise this Option on the date of Termination of Employment; and (ii) exercise must occur within six (6) months after the Termination of Employment but in no event after the Expiration Date.
- 4.5 Death. If Grantee dies during the period in which this Option is exercisable, whether pursuant to its terms or pursuant to Section 4.2 through 4.4 above, this Option shall be exercisable on the following terms and conditions: (i) exercise may be made only to the extent that Grantee was entitled to exercise this Option on the date of death; and (ii) exercise must occur within six (6) months after the date of the Grantee's death. Any such exercise of this Option following Grantee's death shall be made only by Grantee's executor (or administrator) or only by the recipient of such specific disposition. If Grantee's executor (or administrator) or the recipient of a specific disposition under Grantee's will shall be entitled to exercise this Option pursuant to the preceding sentence,

Annex C - Page 1

### **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

such executor (or administrator) or recipient shall be bound by all the terms and conditions of the Plan and this Agreement which would have applied to the Grantee.

5. Manner of Exercise.

- 5.1 Stock Option Exercise Agreement. To exercise this Option, Grantee (or in the case of exercise after Grantee's death, Grantee's executor, administrator or recipient of a specific disposition) must deliver to the Company an executed stock option exercise agreement in such form as may be required by the Company from time to time (the "Exercise Agreement"), which shall set forth, among other things, Grantee's election to exercise this Option, the number of shares being purchased, any restrictions imposed on the shares of Common Stock and any representations, warranties and agreements regarding Grantee's investment intent and access to information as may be required by the Company to comply with applicable securities laws. If someone other than Grantee exercises this Option, then such person must submit documentation reasonably acceptable to the Company that such person has the right to exercise this Option.
- 5.2 Payment. The Exercise Agreement shall be accompanied by full payment for the shares of Common Stock being purchased (the "Exercise Price"). Such payment shall be made (i) in cash (by check), (ii) by delivery of shares of Common Stock (which, if acquired pursuant to the exercise of a stock option or under an Award made under the Plan or any other compensatory plan of the Company, were acquired at least six (6) months prior to the option exercise date) having a Fair Market Value (determined as of the exercise date) equal to all or part of the exercise price and cash for any remaining portion of the exercise price or (iii) to the extent permitted by law, by such other method as the Committee may from time to time prescribe, including a cashless exercise procedure through a broker-dealer. Any shares of Common stock delivered in payment of the Exercise Price shall be fully paid and free and clear of all liens, claims, encumbrances and security interests.
- 5.3 Tax Withholding. Prior to the issuance of the shares of Common Stock upon exercise of this Option, Grantee must pay, or otherwise provide for to the satisfaction of the Company, any applicable federal or state withholding obligations of the Company.
- 5.4 Limitations on Exercise. This Option may not be exercised unless such exercise is in compliance, to the reasonable satisfaction of the Committee, with all applicable federal and state securities laws, as they are in effect on the date of exercise. This Option may not be exercised as to fewer than 100 shares of Common Stock unless it is exercised as to all shares as to which this Option is then exercisable.
- 5.5 Other Conditions. The Committee may require that Grantee comply with such other procedures relating to the exercise of this Option and delivery of shares pursuant to such exercise as the Committee may determine, including the use of specified broker-dealers and the manner in which Grantee shall satisfy tax withholding obligations with respect to such shares.
- 5.6 Issuance of Shares. As promptly as is practicable after the receipt of the Exercise Agreement, in form and substance satisfactory to the Company, payment of the Exercise Price and satisfaction of Sections 5.3 through 5.5 above, the Company shall issue the shares of Common Stock registered in the name of Grantee, Grantee's authorized assignee or Grantee's legal representative. The Company may postpone such delivery until it receives satisfactory proof that the issuance of such shares will not violate any of the provisions of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, any rules or regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission (the "SEC") promulgated thereunder, or the requirements of applicable state law relating to authorization, issuance or sale of securities, or until there has been compliance with the provisions of such acts or rules. Grantee understands that the Company is under no obligation to register or qualify the shares of Common Stock with the SEC, any state securities commission or any stock exchange to effect such compliance.

- 6. Right of Offset. The Company shall have the right to offset against the obligation to deliver shares of Common Stock in respect of any exercise of this Option, any outstanding amounts then owed by Grantee to the Company.
- 7. Nontransferability of Option. This Option shall not be assignable or transferable by Grantee other than by will or by the laws of descent and distribution, and shall be exercisable during the life of the Grantee only by the Grantee or the Grantee's legal representative and any such attempted assignment, transfer or exercise in contravention of this Section 7 shall be void.
- 8. Privileges of Stock Ownership. Grantee shall not have any of the rights of a stockholder of the Company with respect to any shares of Common Stock subject to the issuance of such shares to Grantee. Except as otherwise provided in Section 1.6(c) of the Plan, no adjustment shall be made for dividends, distributions or other rights (whether ordinary or extraordinary, and whether in cash, securities or other property) for which the record date is prior to the date such shares are issued.

Annex C - Page 2

#### **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

- 9. No Obligation to Employ. Nothing in the Plan or this Agreement shall confer on Grantee any right to continue in the employ of, or other relationship with, the Company or any Related Entity, or limit in any way the right of the Company or any Related Entity to terminate Grantee's employment or other relationship at any time, with or without Cause.
- 10. Non-Qualified Options; Incentive Stock Options. It is intended that this Option shall be treated as an incentive stock option to the maximum extent permitted by the Plan (including Sections 2.3 (f) and (g) thereof) and the Code, and that the remainder of this Option, if any, shall be treated as a non-qualified option.
- 11. Change in Control. Subject to the terms of the Plan, Grantee shall be entitled to the benefits of Section 3.7 of the Plan with respect to this Option.
- 12. Entire Agreement. This Option is granted pursuant to the Plan and this Option and Agreement are subject to the terms and conditions of the Plan. The Plan is incorporated herein by reference. This Agreement, the Plan and such other documents as may be executed in connection with the exercise of this Option constitute the entire agreement and understanding of the parties hereto with respect to the subject matter hereof and supersede all prior understandings and agreements with respect to such subject matter. Any action taken or decision made by the Committee arising out of or in connection with the construction, administration, interpretation or effect of this Agreement shall lie within its sole and absolute discretion, as the case may be, and shall be final, conclusive and binding on the Grantee and all persons claiming under or through the Grantee.
- 13. Notices. Any notice required to be given or delivered to the Company under the terms of this Agreement shall be in writing and addressed to the Corporate Secretary of the Company at its principal corporate offices. Any notice required to be given or delivered to Grantee shall be in writing and addressed to Grantee at the address indicated below or to such other address as such party may designate in writing from time to time to the Company. All notices shall be deemed to have been given or delivered upon: personal delivery; three (3) days after deposit in the United States mail by certified or registered mail (return receipt requested); one (1) business day after deposit with any return receipt express courier (prepaid); or one (1) business day after transmission by facsimile.
- 14. Successors and Assigns. The Company may assign any of its rights under this Agreement. This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the successors and assigns of the Company. Subject to the restrictions on transfer set forth herein, this Agreement and the Plan shall be binding upon Grantee and Grantee's heirs, executors, administrators, legal representatives, successors and assigns.
- 15. Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the internal laws of the State of Utah without regard to that body of law pertaining to choice of law or conflict of laws.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the date noted above.

ZIONS BANCORPORATION

Annex C – Page 3

# TABLE OF CONTENTS

Exhibit A
Grant Date:
Name of Grantee:
Number of Option Shares:
Option Exercise Price:
Expiration Date:
Vesting Schedule: The right of Grantee to purchase the aggregate number of shares of Common Stock covered by the Option shall vest as follows:
Annex C – Page 4

## **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

## ZIONS BANCORPORATION 2005 STOCK OPTION EXERCISE AGREEMENT

If you are exercising your option through a broker-dealer you do not need to fill out this form but must complete forms provided by the broker-dealer and acceptable to the Company in its sole discretion.

I hereby elect to purchase the number of shares of Common Stock of Zions Bancorporation (the "Company") as set forth below:

Grantee:	Number of Shares To Be
	Purchased:
Social Security	Purchase Price per
Number:	Share:
Share Delivery	Aggregate Purchase
Instructions:	Price:
	Date of
	Grant:
	Phone
	Number:
Type of Option: [ ] Incentive Stock Opti	ion [ ] Nonqualified Stock Option
	ertificate(s) representing the option shares in my name er, if desired) as [] joint tenants or [] tenants in common (initial one).
•	reby delivers to the Company the Exercise Price, to the extent permitted in the n the Company and Grantee as follows (check as applicable and complete):
[ ] Cash Exercise: by check* in the am	ount of \$;
Stock of the Company owned by Gr	fully-paid, nonassessable and vested shares of the Common rantee for at least six (6) months prior to the date hereof and ato cover the fractional share amount due.
Payment of	f Withholding Tax (Non-Qualified options only).
[ ]Grantee hereby delivers to the Comp withholding tax obligations of the Co	pany a check* in the amount of \$necessary to satisfy any ompany.
Date: Sig	gnature of Grantee:

<sup>\*</sup> Checks should be made payable to Zions Bancorporation

# [FOR COMPANY USE ONLY]

Received on The closing Price for the stock on this day was \$per share.
Return form to Jennifer Jolley, interoffice: UT KC11-0669, mail: One South Main Street, Suite 1134, Salt Lake City, UT 84111
24579442.22 05170389
Annex C – Page 5

#### **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

#### **PROSPECTUS**

Zions Bancorporation

Debt Securities
Warrants or Other Rights
Stock Purchase Contracts
Units
Common Stock
Preferred Stock
Depositary Shares

Zions Capital Trust C Zions Capital Trust D

Capital Securities
As fully and unconditionally
guaranteed as described herein by Zions Bancorporation

Zions Bancorporation and the Issuer Trusts from time to time may offer to sell the securities listed above. The debt securities, warrants, rights, purchase contracts and preferred stock may be convertible into or exercisable or exchangeable for common or preferred stock or other securities of the Company or debt or equity securities of one or more other entities. The common stock of the Company is quoted on the Nasdaq National Market under the symbol "ZION."

Zions Bancorporation and the Issuer Trusts may offer and sell these securities to or through one or more underwriters, dealers and/or agents on a continuous or delayed basis.

This prospectus describes some of the general terms that may apply to these securities and the general manner in which they may be offered. The specific terms of any securities to be offered, and the specific manner in which they may be offered, will be described in a supplement to this prospectus.

These securities will not be savings accounts, deposits or other obligations of any bank or non-bank subsidiary of ours and are not insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System or any other governmental agency.

Neither the Securities and Exchange Commission nor any other regulatory body has approved or disapproved of these securities or passed upon the accuracy or adequacy of this prospectus. Any representation to the contrary is a criminal offense.

This prospectus is dated March 31, 2006.

155

# TABLE OF CONTENTS

## TABLE OF CONTENTS

ABOUT THIS	1
PROSPECTUS	
WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE	1
INFORMATION	
DISCLOSURE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING	2
STATEMENTS	
USE OF	3
PROCEEDS	
DESCRIPTION OF DEBT SECURITIES WE MAY	3
OFFER	
DESCRIPTION OF WARRANTS OR OTHER RIGHTS WE MAY	22
OFFER	
DESCRIPTION OF STOCK PURCHASE CONTRACTS WE MAY	27
OFFER	
DESCRIPTION OF UNITS WE MAY	28
OFFER	
DESCRIPTION OF COMMON STOCK WE MAY	31
OFFER	
DESCRIPTION OF PREFERRED STOCK WE MAY	34
OFFER	
DESCRIPTION OF DEPOSITARY SHARES WE MAY	36
OFFER	
THE ISSUER	39
TRUSTS	
DESCRIPTION OF CAPITAL SECURITIES AND RELATED	41
INSTRUMENTS	
DESCRIPTION OF JUNIOR SUBORDINATED	52
DEBENTURES	
DESCRIPTION OF	64
GUARANTEES	
RELATIONSHIP AMONG THE CAPITAL SECURITIES AND THE RELATED INSTRUMENTS	68
LEGAL OWNERSHIP AND BOOK-ENTRY	69
ISSUANCE	
SECURITIES ISSUED IN BEARER	74
FORM	
CONSIDERATIONS RELATING TO INDEXED	78
SECURITIES	
UNITED STATES	80
TAXATION	
PLAN OF	101
DISTRIBUTION	
EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT INCOME SECURITY	104
ACT	
VALIDITY OF THE	105
SECURITIES	
EXPERTS	105

### **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

#### ABOUT THIS PROSPECTUS

This document is called a "prospectus," and it provides you with a general description of the securities we may offer. Each time we sell securities, we will provide a prospectus supplement containing specific information about the terms of the securities being offered. That prospectus supplement may include a discussion of any risk factors or other special considerations that apply to those securities. The prospectus supplement may also add, update or change the information in this prospectus. If there is any inconsistency between the information in this prospectus and any prospectus supplements, you should rely on the information in that prospectus supplement. You should read both this prospectus and any prospectus supplement together with additional information described under the heading "Where You Can Find More Information."

Zions Bancorporation, a Utah corporation, also referred to in this document as Zions, and Zions Capital Trust C and Zions Capital Trust D, each a statutory trust created under the laws of the State of Delaware (each trust is also referred to as an Issuer Trust and together as the Issuer Trusts) have filed a registration statement with the Securities and Exchange Commission, or the SEC, using a shelf registration or continuous offering process. Under this shelf process, Zions and the Issuer Trusts may offer and sell any combination of the securities described in this prospectus, in one or more offerings.

Our SEC registration statement containing this prospectus, including exhibits, provides additional information about us and the securities offered under this prospectus. The registration statement can be read at the SEC's web site or at the SEC's offices. The SEC's web site and street addresses are provided under the heading "Where You Can Find More Information."

When acquiring securities, you should rely only on the information provided in this prospectus and in the related prospectus supplement, including any information incorporated by reference. No one is authorized to provide you with different information. We are not offering the securities in any state where the offer is prohibited. You should not assume that the information in this prospectus, any prospectus supplement or any document incorporated by reference is truthful or complete for any date other than the date indicated on the cover page of these documents.

After the securities are issued, one or more of our subsidiaries, including Zions Direct, Inc., may buy and sell any of the securities as part of their business as a broker-dealer. Those subsidiaries may use this prospectus and the related prospectus supplement in those transactions. Any sale by a subsidiary will be made at the prevailing market price at the time of sale.

Unless otherwise mentioned or unless the context requires otherwise, all references in this prospectus to "Zions," "we," "us," "our" or similar references mean Zions Bancorporation and its subsidiaries.

Unless otherwise stated, currency amounts in this prospectus and any prospectus supplement are stated in United States dollars.

#### WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION

We file annual, quarterly and current reports, proxy statements and other information with the SEC. You may read and copy any document we file at the SEC's public reference room in Washington, D.C. at 100 F Street, N.W., Washington, D.C. 20549. Please call the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330 for further information on the public reference room. In addition, our SEC filings are available to the public at the SEC's web site at http://www.sec.gov. However, information on this website does not constitute a part of this prospectus. You can also inspect reports, proxy statements and other information about us at the offices of the Nasdaq National Market, 1735 K Street, N.W., Washington, D.C. 20006-1500.

The SEC allows us to "incorporate by reference" into this prospectus the information in documents we file with it. This means that we can disclose important information to you by referring you to those documents. The information incorporated by reference is considered to be a part of this prospectus and should be read with the same care. When we update the information contained in documents that have been incorporated by reference by making future filings with the SEC, the information incorporated by reference in this prospectus

1

## **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

is considered to be automatically updated and superseded. In other words, in the case of a conflict or inconsistency between information contained in this prospectus and information incorporated by reference into this prospectus, you should rely on the information contained in the document that was filed later.

We incorporate by reference the documents listed below and any documents we file with the SEC in the future under Section 13(a), 13(c), 14, or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 until our offering is completed:

• Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2005.